
 
 

Environment, Climate Emergency and 
Transport Committee 
 

Date: Thursday, 20 October 2022 
Time: 
 

6.00 p.m. 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Anna Perrett 
Tel: 0151 691 8564 
e-mail: annaperret@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
This meeting will be webcast at 

https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home 

 
AGENDA  
 
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
2. APOLOGIES  
 
3. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 

pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest. 
 

4. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

Please note that public seating is limited, therefore members of the public 
are encouraged to arrive in good time. 
 
Wirral Council is fully committed to equalities and our obligations under The 
Equality Act 2010 and Public Sector Equality Duty. If you have any 
adjustments that would help you attend or participate at this meeting, please 
let us know as soon as possible and we would be happy to facilitate where 
possible. Please contact committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk 
 

Public Document Pack

https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 
2022, attached. 
 

5. PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS  
 
 Please telephone the Committee Services Officer if you have not 

received an acknowledgement of your question/statement by the 
deadline for submission. 
 

 5.1 Public Questions 
 

  Notice of question to be given in writing or by email by 12 
noon, 17 September 2022, to the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
(committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to be dealt with in 
accordance with Standing Order 10. 
 

 5.2 Statements and petitions 
 

  Notice of representations to be given in writing or by email by 
12 noon, 17 September 2022 to the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer (committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to be dealt 
with in accordance with Standing Order 11.1. 
 
Petitions may be presented to the Committee. The person 
presenting the petition will be allowed to address the meeting 
briefly (not exceeding one minute) to outline the aims of the 
petition. The Chair will refer the matter to another appropriate 
body of the Council within whose terms of reference it falls 
without discussion, unless a relevant item appears elsewhere 
on the Agenda. Please give notice of petitions to 
committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk in advance of the meeting. 
. 
 

 5.3 Questions by Members 
 

  Questions by Members to be dealt with in accordance with 
Standing Orders 12.3 to 12.8. 
 

SECTION A - KEY AND OTHER DECISIONS 
 
6. DEVELOPMENT FUNDING FOR TRANSPORT PIPELINE 

BIRKENHEAD CENTRAL GATEWAY (Pages 7 - 16) 
 
7. FUTURE HIGH STREETS FUND MOVEMENT SCHEMES (Pages 17 

- 132) 
 
8. ACTIVE TRAVEL FUND TRANCHE 2 - BAYSWATER ROAD & 

LEASOWE ROAD (Pages 133 - 164) 
 
SECTION B - BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 
9. 2022-23 BUDGET MONITORING QUARTER 1 (Pages 165 - 188) 
 

mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk


SECTION C - WORK PROGRAMME / OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
 
10. WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 189 - 196) 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
 The terms of reference for this committee can be found at the end of 

this agenda. 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND 
TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday, 21 July 2022 

 
Present: Councillor EA Grey (Chair) 

 
 Councillors S Foulkes 

S Percy 
T Smith 
A Gardner 
L Fraser 
 

V Wilson 
H Gorman 
N Graham 
O Osanlou 
 

Apologies Councillors P Connolly 
 

  

 
 

19 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chair welcomed attendees and viewers to the meeting and reminded 
everyone that the meeting was webcast and retained on the Council’s website 
for two years. 
 

20 APOLOGIES  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Paul Connolly. 
 

21 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members were asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any 
other relevant interest and to state the nature of the interest. No such 
declarations were made. 
 

22 MINUTES  
 
Resolved – That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 June 2022 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

23 PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS  
 
23.1 Public Questions  
 
The Chair indicated that 4 questions had been received. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Sarah Spoor asked about the possibility of a provision for wheelchair 
accessible swings to be installed in Wirral parks, and if this could be funded 
from a maintenance budget underspend.  
 
The Chair responded by summarising the factors considered when replacing 
play equipment, including but not limited to; health and safety, play value, 
location and age range. Funding for such replacements was successfully 
secured in 2018 and has all been allocated to projects. The Chair made clear 
that there was no underspend and explained that there was a range of 
accessible equipment provided across Wirral. The Chair added that officers 
were open to discussions on how these provisions could be improved.  
 
The Chair read out a question on behalf of John Devine which enquired about 
the possibility of a standalone procedure that would fast track the replacement 
of fluorescent lighting due to its inefficiency, in order to reap both monetary 
and environmental benefits sooner than the current system allows. 
 
The Chair acknowledged the substantial benefits of LED lighting for its 
reduction in electricity consumption and longer lifespan. A standalone 
programme had yet to be established but other initiatives were in place, such 
as; any future replacements in Council buildings and maintained schools will 
be LED. Initiatives were being widened across all maintained schools in order 
to access the scale of work needed. These programmes were determined by 
a number of factors, such as; funding, timing of replacements and other 
works, capacity of approved contractors. 
 
Gary Holmes asked for an explanation as to why a rubbish bin had been 
removed from Storeton Road and not replaced, as well as when a 
replacement could be expected. 
 
The Chair responded that Council records did list a referral for a replacement 
rubbish bin. At the time of the request the stock of these rubbish bins needed 
to be replenished, new funding had also been received which required the 
council to procure a new provider of rubbish bins. This location was listed for 
replacement once these tasks had been completed. 
 
James Hankey asked a question about what legal advice had been sought 
before expenditure on the proposed parking changes, as well as what were 
the running costs for this scheme, compared to the projected income, and 
what were the predefined purposes the excess profit would be used for. 
 
The Chair informed that a written response would be provided within 10 
working days. 
 
23.2 Statements and petitions  
 
No statements or petitions had been received. 

Page 2



23.3 Questions by Members  
 
Councillor Osanlou asked a question regarding the extreme heat that had 
affected Wirral in recent events, and whether the council had undertaken any 
fire risk assessments in areas of long grass, and whether these areas had 
been listed in order to develop a risk mitigation plan which included the usage 
of fire breaks.  
 
The Chair informed Councillor Osanlou that the Council did not currently have 
a single risk assessment in place for grass fires, but instead took advice from 
Merseyside Fire and Rescue. Specific concerns were included in the 
management plan for parks and open spaces. The Chair explained the most 
common source of outdoors fires were through the careless use of 
barbeques, discarded cigarettes, or deliberate arson. 
 

24 CITY REGION SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT SETTLEMENT HIGHWAY 
STRUCTURAL MAINTENANCE PROGRAMME 2022-23  
 
The Senior Highways Officer, introduced the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhood Services which sought the Committee’s approval of the 
disbursement of grant funding from the Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority’s (LCRCA) City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS) 
for 2022/2023 into Wirral Council’s Capital Programme for Highways 
Structural Maintenance and Bridge Maintenance. The report also requested 
approval for the disbursement of the indicative funding for years 2023/24, 
2024/25, 2025/26, and 2026/27, in the same programme. The report also 
requested acceptance of an indicative highway condition matrix that would be 
used to inform future programme investment decisions.  
 
In response to member questions in relation to which roads were eligible, it 
was confirmed that eligibility was determined using a long development 
process that members were involved in, this was looked at in further detail to 
determine which attributes would trigger eligibility. In response to a question 
regarding the overall deliverability of the scheme, it was explained that the 
scheme was considered deliverable taking into account the regular 
maintenance, and the fact that the work was planned to take place over 
multiple years. It was reported that a trial period was used to assure the 
longevity and cost effectiveness of the material used. 
 
Resolved – That  
 

(1) The allocation of indicative grant funding likely to be allocated to 
Wirral Council in the City Region Sustainable Transport 
Settlement (CRSTS) Combined Authority Transport Plan 
programme (Highways Structural Maintenance) amongst the 
relevant subject areas over the next 4 years, as set out in 
Appendix 1 to this report be approved and;  

Page 3



(2) The proposed programme of works for Wirral’s Carriageways, 
Footway Improvements and Bridge Maintenance for 2022/23, 
using grant funding allocated to Wirral Council by Liverpool City 
Region Combined Authority (LCRCA) in the 2022/23 City Region 
Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS), Combined Authority 
Transport Plan Programme (Highways Structural Maintenance), as 
set out in Appendix 2 to this report be approved and; 

(3) the indicative RAG rated highway network condition matrix as set 
out in Appendix 3 to this report, to be used by officers as one of 
the decision tools when developing highway structural 
maintenance programmes be accepted, and 

(4) The Director of Neighbourhood Services, in consultation with the 
Chair and Party Spokespersons of the Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Transport Committee, be authorised to revise or 
amend the delivery or implementation of the work programmes, as 
deemed necessary, having due regard for the available resources 
and applicable risk-based prioritisation of locations selected for 
intervention and treatment. 

 
25 FUTURE OF PARKS TENNIS - ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT FROM LAWN 

TENNIS ASSOCIATION (LTA) AND IMPLEMENTATION AND 
PROCUREMENT OF THE FUTURE OPERATING MODEL  
 
The Leisure, Libraries and Engagement Modernisation Officer, introduced the 
report of the Director of Neighbourhood Services which proved the Committee 
with the Lawn Tennis Association’s (LTA) capital grant funding proposal for 
tennis court improvement works across Wirral, including operating models for 
the future management and maintenance of the courts.  
 
The report also provided an overview of tennis provision across the Council’s 
parks and open spaces and proposed a sustainable way forward for tennis 
provision across Wirral’s Parks and Open Spaces in the future.  
 
It was clarified to the committee that the funding would contribute to 
broadening the game of tennis to a wider audience and in turn work toward 
health benefits for the borough. Day to day maintenance would be the 
responsibility of the operator. The LTA had offered to increase funding to 
mirror the costs of building materials increasing. Trials were run previously to 
measure the effectiveness of the booking system, schools and libraries were 
also involved in order to facilitate the booking process for those without 
sufficient access.   
 
On a motion moved by the Chair and seconded by Councillor Foulkes, it was, 
 
Resolved – That the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 
 

Page 4



 
(1) Authorises the Director of Neighbourhoods to accept the grant 

funding from the Lawn Tennis Association in the sum of £300,000 
to enable tennis court improvement for the Council parks courts.  

(2) Requests that Director of Neighbourhoods develops a sustainable 
operating model and programmes of inclusive tennis activity that 
prevents low income from being an obstacle to participation in 
tennis across the borough and brings back a further report to the 
Committee which also includes detail as to how the model will 
support social inclusion and overall participation. 

(3) Requests that the Director of Neighbourhoods continues to work 
with the NHS to develop social prescribing opportunities and a 
borough-wide referral programme. 

(4) The Committee also welcomes the provision of £40k funding from 
the LTA to deliver the LTA Serves Programme which takes tennis 
into the heart of local communities and encourages residents to 
become more physically active. 

 
26 TREE, HEDGEROW AND WOODLAND STRATEGY PROGRESS REPORT 

2022  
 
The Assistant Director of Neighbourhoods Services introduced the report of 
the Director of Neighbourhood Services which provided an update in the Tree, 
Hedgerow and Woodland Strategy which was approved in July 2020. 
 
The aims of the strategy were to protect, regenerate and care for Wirral’s 
existing trees, hedgerows and woodlands. To plant more trees and 
hedgerows. To create a framework for decision making and establish a 
prioritised action plan for 2020-2030. The report provided the first update on 
the progress of the Strategy, including the metrics selected to assess 
performance and the actions achieved to date. The tree, hedgerow and 
woodland planting undertaken since the Strategy was adopted was 
summarised within the report.  
 
a discussion followed on the engagement of residents in the removal of trees 
and development of hedgerows and gardens, as well as the importance of 
tree protection within the strategy. Officers advised that the strategy was 
developing in order to allow for further involvement with residents. Officers 
detailed some of the difficulties that arise when planting in urban areas. 
Furthermore, planning policy is in place to encourage new developments to 
involve more greenery. During the last planting season funding was secured 
for the first Natural Regeneration site.  
 
Resolved – That  
 

Page 5



The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee note the 
contents of the report, the progress of the Tree, Hedgerow and 
Woodland Strategy to date and the Strategy actions for 2022/23. 
 

27 ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 
PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 
The Assistant Director of Neighbourhoods Services introduced the report of 
the Director of Neighbourhood Services which provided the Committee with a 
performance report in relation to Environment and Climate Emergency, and 
Highways and Infrastructure. The report was designed based on discussion 
with Members through working group activity in 2021.  
 
Members were keen to establish that the figures in the report were largely 
affected by Covid working conditions and a number of unprecedented 
extreme weather incidents. Members wanted to know what was being 
achieved in terms of reducing transport emissions. The Chair highlighted the 
importance of road safety when encouraging active travel in order to reduce 
transport emissions.  
 
Resolved – That the report be noted. 
 

28 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Chair introduced the report and welcomed the inclusion of the Parking 
Strategy, and hoped that the committee could work closely with other 
councillors and officers to assure its smooth delivery. 
 
Further suggested items for consideration included an update on flood risks 
and the introduction of parking charges. 
 
Resolved - That the work programme be noted. 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

  

 

ENVIRONMENT CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIROMENT COMMITTEE  

20 OCTOBER  2022 
 

REPORT TITLE: DEVELOPMENT FUNDING FOR TRANSPORT 

PIPELINE – BIRKENHEAD CENTRAL GATEWAY  

 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE 

 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
This report seeks approval to accept grant funding of up to £1,582,500 from the Liverpool 
City Region Combined Authority to support the development of the Birkenhead Central 
Gateway Programme. The report also notes the approved slippage of £1,092,129 from 
2021/22 development funding grant award.    The development funding will support key 
regeneration projects including Argyle Street, Dock Branch Park, Hind Street and 
Woodside.     
 
The acceptance of the development funding will support all five themes of the Wirral Plan 
2021-26: Inclusive Economy, Safe & Pleasant Communities, Sustainable Environment, 
Brighter Futures and Active & Healthy Lives. 
 
This matter affects the Birkenhead and Tranmere Ward and the Rock Ferry Ward. 
 
This matter is a Key Decision. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Environment,  Climate Change and Transport Committee is requested to note and 
comment on the proposals set out within this report.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

 
1.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1.1 To enable the development of the transport projects to continue which will support 

the delivery of several key catalyst projects and neighbourhoods identified in 
Birkenhead 2040, the Levelling Up Fund (LUF) programme and the wider 
regeneration of the Left Bank.   

 
1.2     To ensure that the Council achieves development and delivery of transport and 

regeneration schemes within the Borough as part of a Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority (LCRCA) wide programme of schemes and interventions.  

 
1.3 To ensure that the Council supports schemes which will deliver increased levels of 

sustainable travel as set out in the emerging Local Plan and to support actions 
required to address the Climate Emergency and the target in the Cool2 Strategy to ‘a 
complete transition to fossil fuel free local travel by around 2030’. 
 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

2.1 The Council could decide to not accept the funding. This is not considered to be an 
appropriate option given that the delivery of the Argyle Street, Dock Branch Park, 
Hind Street and Woodside projects are catalyst transport projects in Birkenhead 
2040 and the LUF programme.  Supporting sustainable and active travel is in line 
with the Council’s commitment to addressing the climate emergency, improving the 
health of Wirral’s residents and encouraging alternative modes of transport to the 
private car.  

 
2.2 The funding could be used for other purposes. This is not considered an appropriate 

option as it would not meet the terms of the grant funding agreement, as the funding 
is specifically to support delivery of the Argyle Street, Dock Branch Park, Hind Street 
and Woodside projects. Should the funding be used for other purposes the Council 
would be in breach of the conditions which the grant funding is subject to.  

 
3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
LCRCA Transport Pipeline and City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement  
 

3.1 Pool 1 of the Transport Pipeline was agreed by the LCRCA in March 2021. This 
consisted of 20 projects across the City Region which align with strategic priorities, 
were considered to deliver significant benefits for the city region and are deliverable 
between 2022/23 and 2026/27. The pipeline of schemes was developed using an 
evidence led approach and the schemes were commissioned with the intention of 
supporting their development and delivery, subject to the availability of funding. This 
agreed pipeline helped shape both the priorities in the LCRCA City Region 
Sustainable Transport (CRSTS) bid and LCRCA LUF submission. 
 

3.2 From April 2021, the LCRCA has been in discussions with the Department for 
Transport (DfT) regarding the transport capital funding and as part of this process, 
£5.6m capacity funding was allocated to the LCRCA from the DfT to develop the 

Page 8



 

 

pipeline projects and a further £11.1m was made available by the LCRCA to meet 
the total development requirements. In September 2021, the LCRCA submitted a 
prospectus to the DfT as part of the Comprehensive Spending Review. After 
reviewing this document, the LCRCA was awarded, subject to business case, an 
indicative £710m from CRSTS in October 2021 to fund capital transport interventions 
between 2022/23 and 2026/27. 
 

3.3 The LCRCA has allocated development funding to constituent Local Authorities to 
support the development of projects within the approved programme. In 2021/22 the 
Council was awarded and accepted £1,460,900 of development funding.  The 
Council has now been allocated a further £1,582,500 for 2022/23 to support the 
delivery of the Birkenhead Central Gateway Programme.  £1,092,129 of slippage has 
been approved from the 2021/22 programme.  Within the wider Birkenhead Central 
Gateway programme the key regeneration projects include Argyle Street, Dock 
Branch Park, Hind Street and Woodside.     
 

Birkenhead Central Gateway Programme  

3.4. In summary the projects for which the grant relates are set out below; 
 

Argyle Street -Argyle Street is part of the LCRCA Levelling Up Fund Programme and 
the aim of the projects is to deliver connectivity and public realm improvements at 
Argyle Street including the Argyle Street/Conway roundabout.   
 
Dock Branch Park 
Dock Branch Park is an iconic, catalytic and transformational project for 
Birkenhead’s regeneration included in the Birkenhead Central Gateway programme 
and involves the creation of a new active travel corridor linking three key 
developments areas being Wirral Waters, Birkenhead Town Centre and Hind Street.  
 
Hind Street Movement Strategy 
The development of a movement strategy to support the removal of the Birkenhead 
flyovers is a critical project to enable the development of the Hind Street Urban 
Village development, supporting the delivery of the Local Plan. 
 

 Woodside 
Woodside is part of the CRSTS programme and the aim of the project is to deliver 
connectivity and public realm improvements including;  

• Reconfiguration of the Woodside Gyratory; 
• Realignment/Relocation of Bus Turnaround; 
• Investment in Public Realm and Wayfinding; and 
• Delivery of New and Improved Walking and Cycling Infrastructure. 

 
Placemaking 
This project sees funding to support the delivery of a behaviour change campaign 
and to support the further development of the Birkenhead 3D model to be used to 
support public and stakeholder consultation on regeneration and transport schemes.  

 
 
 
 

Page 9



 

 

Scheme Outputs 
 
3.5 The conditions of the Grant Funding Agreement specify that the funding needs to be 

spent by no later than the 31st March 2023.  The Council will be expected to achieve 
the outputs set out in Table 1; 

 
Table 1: Scheme Outputs  

 

Scheme Name  Outputs  

Argyle Street  Completion of RIBA 2 design for Argyle Street  

 Completion of RIBA 2 design for Argyle Street/Conway 
Street roundabout  

Dock Branch Park  Completion of RIBA 3 design for Dock Branch Park 
North  

 Completion of RIBA 3 design for Dock Branch Park 
South 

Hind Street  Update to Wirral Traffic Model and building of detailed 
junction models using LINSIG software 

Woodside   Completion of RIBA 2 design  

Placemaking  Behaviour change campaign advertisements 

 Flythrough for 3D model  

Resourcing   Argyle Street Project Manager Resource 

 Dock Branch Park Project Manager Resource 

 Hind Street Project Manager Support  

 Cross Programme Highways Resource  
(i) 0.5 FTE Traffic Engineer 
(ii) 0.5 FTE Structures 
(iii) 0.5 FTE Maintenance  

 

 
3.6 A report on this subject matter is being considered by the Economy,  Regeneration 

and Housing Committee on 19 October 2022.  The recommendations in that report 
are that “the Economy, Regeneration and Housing Committee is recommended to: 

 
(1) Authorise the Director of Regeneration and Place to: 

 
(a) accept grant funding of up to £2,674,629 to support the development of the 

Birkenhead Central Gateway Programme allocated to the Council by Liverpool 

City Region Combined Authority; and  

 
(b)  commence the necessary pre-development work to achieve the outputs set out 

in Table 1of this report. 

 
(2) Recommend to the Policy and Resources Committee that the Capital Programme 

be amended so that the £2,674,629 grant funding allocated to Wirral Council by 

Liverpool City Region Combined Authority be allocated to the development of the 

Birkenhead Central Gateway Programme. 

  

Page 10



 

 

3.7 This report is being brought to  enable the Environment Climate Change and 

Transport Committee to be updated and to comment on the subject matter. 

Consideration of this report will enable the Committee’s  view to be made known to 

the Policy and Resources Committee and the also to the  Director of Regeneration 

and Place prior to the implementation of  any delegated authority in relation to the 

matter 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
4.1 The Birkenhead Central Gateway Development Funding for 2022/23 is a sum of 

£1,582,500.  
 
4.2 £1,460,900 of development funding had previously been awarded to the Council for 

the 2021/22 financial year.  This was accepted in November 2021.   
 
4.3 Table 2 sets out the breakdown of the 2022/3 funding across the programme 

including details of approved slippage from the development funding allocation from 
2021/22.   

 
Table 2: Financial Breakdown of 2022/23 Birkenhead Central Gateway 
Development Funding 

 

Scheme Name  Slippage from 

2021/22 

2022/23 

allocation  

Total Funding 

2022/23 

Argyle Street £150,000 £345,000 £495,000 

Dock Branch Park £608,472 £525,000 £1,133,472 

Hind Street 0 £300,000 £300,000 

Woodside  £300,000 0 £300,000 

Placemaking £33,657 0 £33,657 

Resourcing  0 £412,500 £412,500 

Total  £1,092,129 £1,582,500 £2,674,629 

   
 

5.0       LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
5.1 The Council is required to enter into a grant funding agreement with the LCRCA the 

precise form of which will be settled by the Director of Law and Governance.   
 
5.2 Following scheme delivery the Section 151 Officer will be required to sign a 

declaration confirming that the funding was defrayed in accordance with the grant 
conditions. 

Page 11



 

 

 
5.3 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution any amendment to the Capital 

Programme requested by a Committee or officer in excess of £500,000 is reserved 
to Policy & Resources Committee.  

 
5.4 On 30 June 2021 Policy and Resources Committee resolved in the context of a  
 report in relation to Active Travel Funding - Tranche 1, Tranche 2 and Local  
 Authority Capability Funding amongst other matters, that it noted    

“the significant overlap between the terms of reference of the Economy Regeneration 
and Development Committee and the Environment, Climate Emergency and 
Transport Committee and requests that these committees work jointly with Economy 
Regeneration and Development Committee leading on active travel issues which 
affect major regeneration master plan projects and the Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Transport Committee to lead on all other transport, active travel and 
road safety strategy and schemes. Officers are asked to liaise with the Chairs of both 
 committees on all transport planning to ensure that the work programmes are always 
agreed...” 

 
5.5 A similar  report has  been brought to Economy Regeneration and Housing 

Committee  as it is charged with responsibility for (amongst other matters) 
formulation and delivery of the Council’s strategic development objectives for 
planning, sustainability and transportation. This report is being brought to the 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee due to the cross cutting 
issues that the subject matter relates to having regard to terms of reference of the 
respective Committees.  

 
4.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS 
 
6.1  Existing staff resources in Legal Services will be used to finalise the grant funding 

agreement.  
 
6.2 Existing staff resources will be used for the development work, supplemented by 

external support where required.  
 
5.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
7.1 The Council recognises that risk management is essential in good decision making 

and is a critical element of good governance.  The Council continually develops its 
risk management processes to manage risk proactively and effectively.  The Council 
has recently established a dedicated Project Management Office (PMO) to support 
the Regeneration and Place Directorate.  The PMO will have oversight of the FHSF 
Movement Schemes programme and will ensure that it is aligned with the Council’s 
corporate policy to managing risk.  Programme risk registers will be developed and 
these will be updated throughout the programme lifecycle in order to assist the 
Council in identifying, controlling and managing risk. The project risk register will set 
out actions to mitigate the key risks, and the risks and proposed mitigation measures 
will be actively monitored by the Regeneration and Place Programme Management 
Office and reported as appropriate.   

 
7.2 Failure to deliver the required outputs of the development funding would result in a 

failure to support the delivery of the priorities of the LCRCA and have reputational 

Page 12



 

 

impact on Wirral and the LCR. Consequently, this could result in the loss or clawback 
of funding or impact on future funding decisions and awards.   

 
7.3 Due to the current macro-economic situation, there is a significant national increase 

in costs. If this impacts on the projects included within Table 2, the projects will be 
scaled down to ensure the total cost does not exceed the grant available.  

  
8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  
 
8.1 This Committee and relevant ward members have been engaged regarding the 

schemes outlined in section 3.4 and will continue to be engaged as the development 
work progresses.  The Active Travel Members Working Group will be engaged as 
the scheme designs are progressed and appropriate stakeholder and public 
consultations will be undertaken.  The schemes were all included in the Birkenhead 
2040 Framework consultation undertaken in Spring 2021.  

 
8.3 Wirral Council has a statutory consultation process that is required for the 

undertaking of work on the adopted highway which will require public consultation, 
objections to which would be considered under the Scheme of Delegation in the 
Council’s Constitution.  
 

8.4 Consultations will be undertaken in accordance with the following guiding principles: 
 

 It should be at a time when proposals are at a formative stage;  

 Must include sufficient reasons for particular proposals to allow those consulted 
to give intelligent consideration and an intelligent response;  

 Those consulted should be made aware of the factors that are of decisive 
relevance to the decision;  

 Adequate time should be given for consideration and response;  

 The product of the consultation should be conscientiously taken into account by 
the decision makers in finalising their statutory proposals/ when the ultimate 
decision is taken. 

8.5 The Wirral Active Travel Forum is a formally constituted group which meets quarterly 
with interested public and private organisations and individuals, to support active 
travel as a simple, low cost and effective way for people to access life opportunities 
whilst increasing levels of physical activity in their day to day life. Membership of this 
group is open to all and the forum will continue to be engaged as these programmes 
develop. 
 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 

carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity. 

 
9.2. Whilst there are no equality implications arising from this report, the associated 

 actions arising from the delivery may need to assess any equality issues and 
 mitigate any negative impact that may emerge. 

 

Page 13



 

 

10.0  ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1 Increasing cycling and walking will help combat climate change. By encouraging 

and enabling people to travel more on foot and by cycle instead of private car 
harmful emissions will be reduced. Promoting active and sustainable travel can 
result in reduced emissions of Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2), particulate matter (PM) and 
CO2 helping to tackle climate change and improve air quality. 

 
10.2  Gear Change identifies that mode shift to active transport is one of the most cost 

effective ways of reducing transport emissions and that meeting the targets to double 
cycling and increasing walking would lead to savings of £567million annually from air 
quality alone and prevent 8,300 premature deaths each year in England and provide 
opportunity to improve green spaces and biodiversity.  

 
11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS 
    
11.1 Delivery of the schemes supported by this development funding will help promote 

more active and sustainable travel and less use of the private car so will help provide 
equality of accessibility for local residents and businesses, help reduce local 
congestion and improve safety for vulnerable roads users as well health and air 
quality. 

 
11.2 Sustainable travel is at the heart of the Birkenhead 2040 Framework and emerging 

Local Plan. In this context that the schemes contained in the Birkenhead Central 
Gateway are part of a wider regeneration programme to deliver a prosperous, 
inclusive economy to benefit local residents.  
 

11.3 The project supports the reduction in energy consumption as it will support the Cool 
2 target of ‘a complete transition to fossil fuel free local travel by around 2030’ and 
helps fulfil the actions within the Climate and Emergency Action Plan. 

 
11.4 The Birkenhead Central Gateway programme will contribute to the LCR Pathway to 

Net Zero Carbon. Building 600km of new and upgraded cycling and walking routes 
across the LCR over the next few years to support modal shift is identified as part of 
the Pathway the LCR needs to follow to achieve net zero. Two-thirds of LCR 
journeys are less than 3 miles, currently half of those are undertaken by car.  

 
11.5 Through any future procurement exercises the Council will be looking to maximise 

further social value activity through creation of local employment and training. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Julie Barnes 

 (Strategic Transport Infrastructure - Lead Commissioner - Transport 
and Tech) 

  telephone:  0151 606 2365 
  email:  juliebarnes@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 
 
None  
 
 

Page 14



 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Gear Change Plan for Cycling and Walking – Department for Transport July 2020 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-plan-for-england 
 
Birkenhead 2040 
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/business/regeneration/birkenhead-2040-framework 
 
City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement Prospectus  
https://www.liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/wp-

content/uploads/LCR%20Sustainable%20Transport%20Settlement%20Prospectus.pdf 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
 
 

Council Meeting  Date 

OFFICER DECISION NOTICE  

DEVELOPMENT FUNDING FOR BIRKENHEAD 
CENTRAL GATEWAY 

 

18/11/2021 

OFFICER DECISION NOTICE LEVELLING UP FUND 

 

17/02/2022 

 

Page 15

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-plan-for-england
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/business/regeneration/birkenhead-2040-framework
https://www.liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/LCR%20Sustainable%20Transport%20Settlement%20Prospectus.pdf
https://www.liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/LCR%20Sustainable%20Transport%20Settlement%20Prospectus.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

ENVIRONMENT CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIROMENT COMMITTEE>  

20 OCTOBER  2022 
 
REPORT TITLE: FUTURE HIGH STREETS FUND MOVEMENT 

SCHEMES  

 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE  

 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
This report provides Members with an update regarding the work undertaken to progress 
the Future High Streets Fund (FHSF) Movement Schemes in Birkenhead. The schemes 
are: 

 Charing Cross / Grange Road, Birkenhead; and 

 Conway Street / Europa Boulevard, Birkenhead 

The report requests that Members note the progress made in the development and design 
of the schemes and seeks approval to undertake public and stakeholder consultation and 
engagement in relation to both schemes.  

The FHSF Movement Schemes will support all five themes of the Wirral Plan 2021-26: 
Inclusive Economy, Safe & Pleasant Communities, Sustainable Environment, Brighter 
Futures and Active & Healthy Lives. 

Appendix 1 of this report contains information which is exempt from publication in 
accordance with paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972  
 
This matter affects the wards of Birkenhead and Tranmere.   

This matter is a not a Key Decision.  

 
RECOMMENDATIONS   
 
The Environment Climate Change and Transport Committee is requested to note and 
comment on the proposals set out within this report.  

 
 
 
 
. 
  

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

1.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1.1 To enable the development of the transport projects which will support the delivery of 
several key catalyst projects and neighbourhoods identified in Birkenhead 2040, and 
the wider regeneration of Birkenhead town centre. 
 

1.2 To ensure that the Council achieves successful development and delivery of 
movement projects within the Future High Street Fund programme. FHSF is a wider 
programme of schemes and interventions.  
 

1.3 To ensure that the Council supports schemes which will deliver increased levels of 
sustainable travel as set out in the emerging Local Plan and to support action 
required to address the Climate Emergency and the target in the Cool2 Strategy to ‘a 
complete transition to fossil fuel free local travel by around 2030’. 
 

1.4 The FHSF Movement Schemes will deliver high quality active travel infrastructure 
and support the Council and the LCR to address climate change and work towards 
net zero. Improvements to active travel infrastructure will support the sustainable 
regeneration of the Borough as identified in the emerging Local Plan and the 
Birkenhead 2040 Framework. The proposed schemes will increase the use of active 
sustainable travel modes, therefore reducing the reliance on the private car. 

 
2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
2.1 The Council could decide not to progress with the development and consultation of 

the FHSF Movement Schemes. This is not considered to be appropriate as delivery 
of active travel projects is part of the wider transport strategy to support sustainable 
regeneration and successful delivery of the Birkenhead 2040 Framework and the 
emerging Local Plan. 
 

2.2 The Council could decide not to progress with the development of the FHSF 
Movement Schemes. This is not considered an appropriate option as failure to 
deliver improved walking and cycling infrastructure could result in reputational issues 
for the Council in terms of its commitment to active travel and achieving net zero 
which could result in future funding allocations being reduced against wider 
transport, regeneration, and environment programmes. This could also result in the 
reputational damage with the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
which administers the FHSF programme as well as financial implications regarding 
the loss of FHSF grant associated to Movements Schemes as well as impact on the 
wider FHSF programme. 

 
3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
FHSF Movement Schemes 

 
3.1     On 27 May 2022 the Director of Regeneration and Place agreed to approve the 

  appointment of Mott MacDonald Group Limited to carry out outline and detailed 
design 

Page 18



 

 

  (RIBA stages 3 and 4): 
 
          (a) for the Future High Street Fund (“FHSF”) Conway Street / Europa Boulevard 

movement project via the Fusion 21 Procurement Framework, and  
 
          (b) for the FHSF Grange Road / Charing Cross movement project via the Council’s 

Strategic Transport Contract.  
 
3.2   The direct award of the commissions to Mott MacDonald to undertake the design 

enabled the work to be undertaken in line with the required delivery timescales.  The 
FHSF grant funding agreement set a programme end date of 31 March 2024. 

 
3.3 The FHSF Movement Schemes Programme includes 2 schemes in Birkenhead; 
 

 Conway Street / Europa Boulevard; and  

 Grange Road / Charing Cross  

 Both schemes are key to the regeneration of Birkenhead town centre, aiming to 
make the town centre more attractive and support increasing active and sustainable 
travel movements. Design work for both schemes is underway with a summary of 
both schemes set out below; 

 
Conway Street / Europa Boulevard 
 

3.4     The proposed concept design introduces a two-way segregated cycleway between 
Argyle St junction and Conway Place junction. The current pavement on the north 
side of Conway Street is proposed to be replaced by high quality footway paving, to 
improve the pedestrian environment and accessibility. This includes the 
implementation of a new pedestrian/cycle super-crossing between the Bus Station 
and Europa Boulevard (West). The proposals also incorporate modifications to 
Europa Boulevard (between Conway Street and Price Street) converting the existing 
northbound carriageway to pedestrian and cycleway use with the southbound 
carriageway modified to run as two-way for general traffic. The project is also looking 
at options to reduce the dominance and speed of vehicles in Claughton Road 
between the bus station and Hemingford Street to make this a safer and more 
pleasant environment for pedestrians. This project is funded through the FHSF 
programme, the LCRCA Active Travel Tranche 3 Programme.  
 
Design of the scheme to RIBA Stage 2 has been completed and a concept plan of 
the scheme is included within the RIBA 1 / 2 report at Appendix 2 of this report.  

 
Grange Road / Charing Cross 

 
3.5     The proposed concept design includes upgrades to the pedestrianised area of 

Grange Road plus Charing Cross junction modifications to improve crossing facilities 
for pedestrians and potential closure of Grange Road West (between Clayton Street 
and Charing Cross). This project is entirely funded through the FHSF programme. 

 
3.6     Design of the scheme to RIBA Stage 2 has been completed and a concept plan of 
          the scheme is included within the RIBA Stage 1 / 2 report at Appendix 3 of this report.  

 

Page 19



 

 

 
Ward members and initial local business stakeholder engagement 
 

3.7 A number of Birkenhead Ward Member engagement sessions have taken place to 
provide an update regarding the progress of the schemes and also to inform an initial 
local business stakeholder consultation on the Charing Cross / Grange Road 
scheme concepts. The results of the initial business engagement for the Charing 
Cross / Grange Road scheme are also included within section 6 of the RIBA 1 / 2 
report at Appendix 3 of this report. 

   
 Proposed Consultation Approach for FHSF Movement Projects 
 
3.8 The following summarises the methodology for consultation for the FHSF Movement 

Schemes.   
 

 Ongoing engagement with Ward Members and Chairs and Spokespersons of 
the Economy, Regeneration and Housing Committee and Environment, 
Transport and Climate Change Committee to discuss progress of the 
schemes and to seek members input into the methodology and design of the 
detailed public engagement and consultation material; 

 Further meetings of the Members Active Travel Working Group to provide 
updates regarding the emerging designs and to input into the approach to 
consultation; 

 The Wirral Active Travel Forum will be engaged and provided with an update 
of the work undertaken to date and views of the forum members will be sought 
on the proposals;  

 The Council’s ‘Behaviour Change’ campaign will support the ‘Active Travel’ 
awareness ‘lead in’ to the consultation for the FHSF schemes;  

 Use of the Council’s ‘Have Your Say’ consultation portal to seek public and 
stakeholder feedback on the specific FHSF scheme consultation; 

 Ensure the emerging FHSF Movement Scheme proposals are aligned in other 
Policy, Active Travel project or Masterplan consultations being prepared within 
the town centre; 

 Preparing consultation material on the FHSF Movement proposals that allows 
hard copy and online access to ‘easy to use’ information and graphic material;  

 Utilising video or virtual presentation material to demonstrate how the schemes 
will look and operate; 

 In person events will be held in an appropriate location; and 

 Consultation with statutory agencies including Merseyside Police and 
Emergency Services. 

 
3.9 It is currently anticipated that consultation for both schemes will commence in 

November/December 2022. Public or stakeholder consultation will take place after 
consultation with Ward Members and Chairs and Spokespersons of Economy, 
Regeneration and Housing Committee and Environment, Transport and Climate 
Change Committee.  

 

3.10 A report on this subject matter is being considered by the Economy Regeneration 
and Housing Committee on 19 October er 2022.  The recommendations in that 
report are that; 

Page 20



 

 

“The Economy, Regeneration and Housing Committee is requested to authorise the 
Director of Regeneration and Place to: 

(1)  Agree, in consultation with the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority and 

the  Chair and Spokespersons of the Economy, Regeneration and Housing 

Committee and the Chair and Spokesperson of the Environment, Transport and 

Climate Change Committee, the extent, alignment and design of the Future High 

Street Movement Schemes at Charing Cross / Grange Road, Birkenhead and 

Conway Street / Europa Boulevard, Birkenhead which will be the subject of the 

stakeholder and public consultation and engagement;  

 

(2) Approve and implement the approach to consultation as set out in paragraph 
3.8 of   this report. 

 

3.11 This report is being brought to enable the Environment Climate Change and 

Transport Committee to be updated and to comment on the subject matter. 

Consideration of this report will to enable members’ view to be made known to the 

Director of Regeneration and Place prior to implementing any delegated authority in 

relation to the matter. 

 

3.12 Further reports regarding the outcome of consultation will be brought to a future 
meeting of the Active Travel Members Working Group for consideration. Subject to 
outcomes of the consultations, construction of FHSF Movement Projects is expected 
to commence late summer 2023 with completion in early 2024. 

 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 

4.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.  A previous report 
considered by the Director of Regeneration and Place in June 2022 approved the 
award of the design funding for the design work to Mott MacDonald which included 
the production of materials suitable for consultation.   
 

4.2 A separate report seeking approval for the acceptable of £2,225,000 of Active Travel 
Tranche 3 grant funding that the Council has received from Tranche 3 of the 
Department for Transport Active Travel Programme which will form part of the 
budget for the Conway Street/Europa Boulevard Movement project will be 
considered in a separate report to this Committee on 19 October 2022. 

 
4.3 The available budget for this scheme is set out in Appendix 1 of this report.  

Appendix 1 of this report is exempt from publication in accordance with paragraph 3 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972  

 
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 The Council has statutory duties as defined by the Highways Act 1980, Road Traffic 

Regulations Act 1984, Road Traffic Act 1988, Local Government Act 1972 and the 
Traffic Management Act 2004. 
 

Page 21



 

 

5.2 Should the scheme be implemented, the schemes may require new or amended 
Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs) to secure the objectives of the scheme. 
Consultation in respect of the TROs is required.  Any objections received will be 
dealt with in line with the Councils Constitution. 
 

5.3 A similar  report has  been brought to Economy Regeneration and Housing 
Committee  as it is charged with responsibility for (amongst other matters) 
formulation and delivery of the Council’s strategic development objectives for 
planning, sustainability and transportation. This report is being brought to the 
Environment, Calimate Emergency and Tranposrt Committee due to the cross 
curtrting issues that the subject matter relates to having regard to terms of reference 
of the respective Committees.  
 

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS 
 

6.1 Existing staff resources in the Regeneration and Neighbourhoods Directorates, the 
Intelligence Team and Communication and Marketing Team will support the 
development and consultation of the FHSF schemes, supplemented by external 
specialist support secured via Mott MacDonald where required. Progress of the 
schemes will also be monitored through the Regeneration and Place Directorate 
Programme Management Office. 
 

6.2 There are no ICT implications. 
 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
7.1 The Council recognises that risk management is essential in good decision making 

and is a critical element of good governance.  The Council continually develops its 
risk management processes to manage risk proactively and effectively.  The Council 
has recently established a dedicated Project Management Office (PMO) to support 
the Regeneration and Place Directorate. The PMO will have oversight of the FHSF 
Movement Schemes programme and will ensure that it is aligned with the Council’s 
corporate policy to managing risk. A programme Risk Register has been developed.  
This will be updated throughout the programme lifecycle to assist the Council in 
identifying, controlling and managing risk.  

 
7.2 The project risk register at this preliminary design stage has identified the following 

key risks with appropriate mitigation measures in place for this stage of the project. 
 

 Project does not deliver required outputs to meet funders requirement  

 Project cannot be delivered to budget due to increasing costs in construction 
industry  

 Project cannot be delivered within timescales 

 Objections are received to the scheme proposals during consultation phases 
which cannot be overcome and/or following consultation a decision is taken 
not to progress the scheme 

 Scheme design fail to align with masterplans and neighbouring schemes 
 

Page 22



 

 

7.3 It is recognised that the timescales required by the funders are challenging and 
therefore to mitigate delivery risk, tasks have been overlapped within the work 
programme for both schemes to meet delivery / spend deadlines. Market analysis 
and soft market testing with contractors is also proposed to be undertaken in parallel 
with the design stages to support the procurement stages of the programme.    

 
7.4 Other risks may be identified as the project proceeds through consultation towards 

implementation. The project risk register set outs actions to mitigate the key risks, 
and the risks and proposed mitigation measures will be actively monitored by the 
Regeneration and Place Programme Management Office and reported as 
appropriate.   
 

7.5 Active Travel England will be reviewing the scheme designs and as part funders of 
the Conway Street/Europa Boulevard scheme will be required to approve any final 
designs prior to delivery. Failure to design the scheme in accordance with the 
technical guidance LTN1/20 could result in clawback of funding.  
 

7.6 Due to the current macro-economic situation, there is a significant national increase 
in costs. If this impacts on the projects included within this report, the projects will be 
scaled down to ensure the total cost does not exceed the grant available.  

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  
 
8.1 Wirral Council has a statutory consultation process that is required for the 

undertaking of work on the adopted highway which will require public consultation. 
 

8.2 Consultations will be undertaken in accordance with the following guiding principles: 

 It should be at a time when proposals are at a formative stage;  

 Must include sufficient reasons for particular proposals to allow those 
consulted to give intelligent consideration and an intelligent response;  

 Those consulted should be made aware of the factors that are of decisive 
relevance to the decision;  

 Adequate time should be given for consideration and response; and 

 The product of the consultation should be conscientiously considered by the 
decision makers in finalising their statutory proposals/ when the ultimate 
decision is taken. 
 

8.3 Consultation has been undertaken in March 2022 with businesses for the Charing 
Cross / Grange Road scheme (see Appendix 3 of this report). This feedback is being 
considered as part of the current design work.   
 

8.4 Paragraph 3.7 of this report contain the details of the proposed Consultation and 
Engagement Strategy. Ward Members and Chairs and Spokespersons of both 
Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee and Environment, Climate 
Change and Transport Committee will be consulted regarding the detailed content of 
materials.  

 

8.5 The FHSF Movement Schemes consultation will be supported by the Behaviour 
Change campaign and will also make use of the ‘Have Your Say?’ online resource 
as well as providing specific plan or visualisation material to directly affected 
properties and stakeholders. In person events will be held in an appropriate location.  

Page 23



 

 

 
8.6 The Wirral Active Travel Forum is a formally constituted group which meets quarterly 

with interested public and private organisations and individuals, to support active 
travel as a simple, low cost and effective way for people to access life opportunities 
whilst increasing levels of physical activity in their day-to-day life. Membership of this 
group is open to all and the forum will continue to be engaged.  

8.7 On 4th March 2021, the Economy Regeneration and Development Committee 
resolved to establish a Members Active Travel Working Group to support the work of 
Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee.  Members of that group will 
be engaged as the FHSF Movement Scheme proposals develop and a meeting of 
that group will take place prior to the consultation taking place on the concept plans.  
 

8.8 The Government has recently established Active Travel England (ATE) who are the 
overseeing executive agency for active travel and will be responsible for funding and 
providing advice and guidance regarding walking and cycling schemes. ATE will be 
reviewing the scheme designs and as part funders of the Conway Street/Europa 
Boulevard scheme will be required to approve any final designs prior to delivery. 

 
8.9. Further consultation will also be required with regard to any changes to TRO’s that 

may be required as part of the final scheme design.  
 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 The Council has an obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector 
Equality duty (Sect 149 2011) to show due regard to the duty and show due regard 
to mitigate any negative impacts that may affect people with protected characteristics 
under the Act.  

 
9.2  An Equality Impact Assessment for both schemes have been completed. These are 

published on the Council’s website https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-
neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments  

 
10.0  ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Delivery of the FHSF Movement Schemes will enable increased numbers of journeys 

to be undertaken by sustainable modes, especially for local journeys, therefore 
reducing resident’s reliance on the private car and reducing carbon emissions.  
Increasing cycling and walking will help combat climate change. By encouraging and 
enabling people to travel more on foot and by cycle instead of private car harmful 
emissions will be reduced.  Promoting active travel can result in reduced emissions 
of Nitrogen Dioxide, particulate matter and Carbon Dioxide helping to tackle climate 
change and improve air quality.  Other local benefits include reduction of particulates 
associated with motor vehicle tyre and brake wear. 

 
10.2 Gear Change Cycling Strategy produced by Government in Summer 2020 identifies 

that mode shift to active transport is one of the most cost-effective ways of reducing 
transport emissions and that meeting the targets to double cycling and increasing 
walking would lead to savings of £567million annually from air quality alone and 
prevent 8,300 premature deaths each year in England and provide opportunity to 
improve green spaces and biodiversity. 

 

Page 24

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments


 

 

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS    

11.1 The FHSF Movement Schemes will help promote more active travel and less use of 
the private car so will help provide equality of accessibility for local residents and 
businesses, help reduce local congestion and improve safety for vulnerable roads 
users as well health and air quality. 

 
11.2 Sustainable travel is at the heart of the Birkenhead 2040 Framework and emerging 

Local Plan.  In this context that the FHSF Movement Schemes form part of a wider 
regeneration programme to deliver a prosperous, inclusive economy to benefit local 
residents.  
 

11.3 The project supports the reduction in energy consumption as it will support the Cool 
2 target of ‘a complete transition to fossil fuel free local travel by around 2030’ and 
helps fulfil the actions within the Climate and Emergency Action Plan. 

 
11.4 The schemes will contribute to the Liverpool City Region Pathway to Net Zero 

Carbon.  Building 600km of new and upgraded cycling and walking routes across the 
LCR over the next few years to support modal shift is identified as part of the 
Pathway the LCR needs to follow to achieve net zero. Two-thirds of LCR journeys 
are less than 3 miles, currently half of those are undertaken by car.  
 

11.5 Through any future procurement exercises the Council will be looking to maximise 
further social value activity through creation of local employment and training. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Julie Barnes 

  (Strategic Transport Infrastructure - Lead Commissioner - Transport 
and Tech) 

  telephone:  0151 606 2365 
  email:  juliebarnes@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 Scheme budgets (exempt from publication in accordance with paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972). 
Appendix 2 Conway Street / Europa Boulevard RIBA 1 / 2 Report 
Appendix 3 Charing Cross / Grange Road RIBA 1 / 2 Report 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Wirral Plan 2026 
Wirral Plan 2025 - Wirral Intelligence Service 
 
Gear Change Plan for Cycling and Walking – Department for Transport July 2020 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-plan-for-england 
 
Local Transport Note 1/20 Cycle Infrastructure Design - Department for Transport July 
2021 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-120 
 
 

Page 25

https://www.wirralintelligenceservice.org/strategies-and-plans/wirral-plan-2025/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-plan-for-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-120


 

 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 
 

Council Meeting  Date 

 TOWN / HIGH STREET FUNDS: FUTURE HIGH 
STREET FUND 
Policy & Resources Committee 

17 March 2021 

TOWN / HIGH STREET FUNDS: FUTURE HIGH 
STREET FUND 
Economy Regeneration & Development Committee 

4 March 2021  
 

 
. 

 

Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Stage 01 & 02 Report

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard, Birkenhead

P
age 29



Revision Date Originator Checker Approver Description

A 27/09/22 Dan Levers Alice Gallareto Tom Roberts Draft for Client comments

B 05/10/22 Dan Levers Alice Gallareto Tom Roberts Final

Information class: Confidential  

This document is issued for the party which commissioned it and for specific 

purposes connected with the above-captioned project only. It should not be 

relied upon by any other party or used for any other purpose. 

We accept no responsibility for the consequences of this document being 

relied upon by any other party, or being used for any other purpose, or 

containing any error or omission which is due to an error or omission in data 

supplied to us by other parties. 

This document contains confidential information and proprietary intellectual 

property. It should not be shown to other parties without consent from us and 

from the party which commissioned it. 

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 30



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Contents

1. Introduction

2. Existing Conditions

3. Issues & Opportunities

4. Vision & Design Principles

5. Concept Options

6. Concept Design

3

4

7

22

25

27

32

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 31



1    Introduction

P
age 32



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

5Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report

Park Rail Station and Birkenhead Park Station 

transport hubs from the waterfront and the town 

centre.

Project Delivery

Wirral Council have been awarded £3.9 million 

from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing 

and Communities (DLUHC)’s Future High 

Street Fund to deliver this scheme. The Council 

has also made a funding bid of £2.225 million to 

the Active Travel Fund Tranche 3 for the 

scheme.

This Study

Mott MacDonald have been commissioned by 

Wirral Council to undertake a two-stage study 

to progress concept options for Conway Street 

and Europa Boulevard, Birkenhead. 

The purpose of this report is to provide a 

focused brief of baseline conditions and 

showcase the concept designs for the two 

routes. The following chapters cover:

• Existing conditions: a baseline 

assessment of the current existing 

conditions and identification of issues and 

opportunities.

• Concept options: outlining potential options 

for the schemes, derived from the baseline 

assessment.

Background

Conway Street (A553) is an arterial route which 

lies on an east-west axis around 300 metres 

north of Birkenhead Town Centre. It is a key 

route for bus services serving Birkenhead Bus 

Station, as well as a key route to Birkenhead 

Park and the town centre. 

Europa Boulevard lies perpendicular to Conway 

Street is a key gateway to the town centre and 

Wirral Met College for those arriving by train at 

Conway Park Station or by bus.

Conway Street and Europa Boulevard are key 

routes for transport connections for the 

Birkenhead town centre and wider Wirral – as 

they provide access to the Bus Station, Conway 

1.1  Introduction

Conway Street – looking towards the Bus Station

Europa Boulevard – looking towards Conway Street

Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 33



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

6Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report

Figure 1.1. shows the extents of the study area 

(red line boundary) and local context, including 

Birkenhead Bus Station, Conway Park Rail 

Station and neighbouring streets.

The study area is bordered by:

• Price Street to the north

• The roundabout junction with Argyle Street 

to the east

• Birkenhead Bus Station, car parking and 

retail uses to the south, and;

• Conway Street (towards Birkenhead Park) to 

the west.

1.2  Study Area

Conway Street – crossing to the Pyramids shopping centre

Figure 1.1 – Conway Street and Europa Boulevard Study Area

Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 34



2    Existing Conditions

P
age 35



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

8

2.1   Then & Now

Conway Street - 1915

Conway Street – 1960s Conway Street – 1970s

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 36



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Guard rail, mixed surfaces

Carriageway dominance

9

Restricted pedestrian movement 

Dog-legged crossings Excessive junction footprint

Conway Education Centre – Underutilised listed building

Clutter 

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 37



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Grange Rd – 00s

Underutilised public and pedestrian space

Tired, underwhelming station front and public realm

10

Indirect crossings away from desire linesPedestrian desire lines over busway 

Littered, poor public realm and pedestrian space

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 38



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
Figure 2.1 – Existing Land Uses

Figure 2.1 identifies existing land uses across 

the study area, focusing on ground floor 

uses. The most prominent land use across the 

study area is professional services.

There are a small amount of ground floor 

frontages along Conway Street. The few 

professional services facing the street are 

concentrated on the north side, including Wirral 

Council’s Conway Building, which is Grade II 

listed, and businesses providing legal services.

This trend is mirrored on Europa Boulevard 

where the most prominent ground floor land 

uses are also professional services.

The Wirral Met College Conway Park Campus 

is also located on Europa Boulevard, opposite 

to Conway Park Rail Station. The station is 

operated by Merseyrail, with frequent services 

to West Kirby, New Brighton and Liverpool.

The most dominant land use in the south of the 

study area is Birkenhead Bus Station, which 

occupies a large area of land opposite to 

Adelphi Street. In addition to this, there are 

several car parks either side of the bus station, 

and retail uses to the southwest.

There is a small cluster of food and drink and 

nightclub establishments around Conway 

Street/Argyle Street roundabout  in the east of 

the study area. These uses tend to generate 

trips from taxis late at night.

2.2   Existing Land Uses

11Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 39



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
Figure 2.2 – Car Parking

Figure 2.2 shows the location of on and off-

street parking across the study area and in 

neighbouring areas. In addition to this the plan 

shows areas for taxi pick up/drop off and 

loading.

A large proportion of land bordering the south of 

the study area boundary is allocated to parking 

for the town centre and retail spaces. This 

includes the large multistorey car park for the 

Pyramids Shopping Centre (685 spaces).

Most of the surface level car parks are pay and 

display, with a small number of private car 

parking for businesses on the north side of 

Conway Street.

On-street parking on Europa Boulevard is also 

pay and display between 8:30am and 6pm, and 

free outside of these hours.

Loading bays can be found on the north side of 

Conway Street, with restrictions between 

7:30am-10am, and 4:30-6:30pm.

The total parking provision is shown in table 2.1 

below.

2.3   Car Parking

12Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report

Multi storey 

spaces

Public 

surface level 

spaces

On street 

spaces

Total spaces

685 1027 54 1766

Table 2.1 – Car Parking Provision

Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 40



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
Figure 2.3 – Listed Buildings

Figure 2.3 shows listed buildings within the 

study area. In total there are two listed 

buildings, both of which are on Conway Street.

• The building at 118 Conway Street is listed 

on the National Heritage List for England as 

a Grade II:

The Crown Public House is also listed as a 

Grade II:

2.4   Listed Buildings

Conway Building

The Crown Public House

13Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 41



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
Figure 2.4 – Crossings and Desire Lines

Figure 2.4 shows existing signalised and non-

signalised crossings points, and pedestrian 

desire lines across the study area. 

The main pedestrian movements within the 

study area occur between the transport hubs 

and retail areas. Both the rail and bus station 

host a high volume of passengers throughout 

the day. 

There are five north-south signalised crossing 

points over Conway Street. Due to the current 

indirect layout of the crossings, including long 

strips of guard-rail, crossing movements are 

notably more convoluted than pedestrian desire 

lines.

The current crossing design and guard-rail 

prevents pedestrians from moving freely within 

the study area, and creates severance for those 

travelling east-west past the bus station. There 

is only one signalised crossing point over the 

busway, and pedestrians are restricted from 

crossing by signage and guard railing.

2.5   Pedestrian Movement & Desire Lines

14

Pedestrian movement 

restrictions at Bus Station
Informal crossing lines 

between Europa Boulevard 

and the Bus Station

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 42



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
Figure 2.5 – Recorded Crime

2.6   Recorded Crime

Figure 2.5 identifies crime hotspots across the 

study area, with reference to Police.uk records 

covering the area between April 2021-2022.

The key crime hot spots are mainly situated in 

or around the larger stores and retail spaces 

(Argos/Wilko). Most of the reported crimes 

relate to instances of antisocial behaviour or 

theft.

A high number of crime has also been recorded 

outside of The Beach night club at the east end 

of Conway Street - and other venues nearby. 

The majority of these offences were reported as 

violent offences, drugs and public order 

offences.

There have been ten reported bicycle thefts in 

or close to the study area. Three of these 

occurred behind Wirral Met College.

15Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 43



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
Figure 2.6 – Bus and Rail Services and Frequency

2.7 Public Transport

Figure 2.6 shows existing public transport 

within the study area, including both bus and 

rail routes, services and frequencies, and public 

transport infrastructure. 

Bus

There are four bus stops within the study area 

(excluding Birkenhead Bus Station). Two of 

these are located on Europa Boulevard, with 

the remaining two on Conway Street. All four of 

the bus stops are sheltered.

In total, nine buses per hour travel eastbound 

on Conway Street during peak times, 

comprised of five services which stop on the 

north side of Conway Street.

There are four buses travelling northbound on 

Europa Boulevard in the morning between 5AM 

and 8AM. The bus stop is located outside of 

Conway Park station. 

Birkenhead Bus Station has a total of ten 

stands, with eight being currently in use. It is 

served by around 39 services which cover the 

wider area of Chester, Wirral and Liverpool. 

There are around 64 buses per hour operating 

out of Birkenhead Bus Station during peak 

times.

Rail

Conway Park station is on the Wirral Line loop 

line of the Merseyrail network. Rail services 

from Conway Park to Liverpool Central run 

every 5-10 minutes, and to New Brighton or 

West Kirby every 15 minutes.

16Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 44



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Year Count method Pedal cycles
Two wheeled 

motor vehicles
Cars and taxis

Buses and 

coaches
LGV HGV

All motor 

vehicles

2020
Estimated using previous 

year’s AADF on this link
52 76 5501 177 882 73 6709

2019 Manual Count 45 103 7242 279 1000 83 8708

2018

Estimated using previous 

year’s AADF on this link 83 71 8200 353 1597 154 10375

2017

Estimated using previous 

year’s AADF on this link 75 72 8291 390 1568 154 10474

2016

Estimated using previous 

year’s AADF on this link 78 71 8353 417 1489 153 10483

Table 2.2 shows traffic flow data from 2016-

2020 for Conway Street, between the A5029 

and A552.

The data was determined through a manual 

count (2019) and estimated (2016-2018, 2020) 

by the Department for Transport. 

Data from the latest manual count shows that 

the total traffic count was 8708. The most 

significant vehicle classification was cars and 

taxis, which accounted for over 83% of vehicle 

types. 

The large drop in vehicles estimated for 2020 

can be attributed to the impacts of the Covid-19 

pandemic and subsequent Government 

national lockdown measures.

2.8   Traffic Flows

17

Table 2.2 – Traffic Flow Data (DfT 2020)

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report

1%
1%

83%

3%
11%

1%

2019 Manual Count

Pedal cycles

Two wheeled motor vehicles

Cars and taxis

Buses and Coaches

LGV

HGV

Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 45



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
Figure 2.7 – Active Travel Collisions

Figure 2.7 shows the location of all active travel 

collisions (involving pedestrians or cyclists) 

which have occurred within the study area 

between 2017-2021. In this time there where a 

total of ten active travel collisions in the study 

area, including one fatal pedestrian collision in 

2018 at Adelphi Street junction.

All of these collisions have occurred on Conway 

Street. A cluster of three collisions have 

occurred opposite to Birkenhead Bus Station, of 

which two involved pedestrians (fatal and 

serious), and one a child casualty (slight).

Several slight collisions have also occurred to 

the west and east of the study area. 

2.9   Active Travel Collisions

18Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 46



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 2.8 highlights public realm conditions on 

Conway Street.

• The public realm is generally in a tired, 

underwhelming state. Surfacing is 

inconsistent through the study area and 

often patchy, with different colours and 

materials.

• There is an abundance of signage on the 

street which has built up and resulted in 

cluttered footways.

• There are several bollards and an excessive 

use of guard railing, particularly around the 

crossings and bus station, which inhibit 

movement and create pinch points.

• There are a few cycle loops within the study 

area, but most are in poor condition and did 

not seem to be used upon site visitation 

(June 2022).

• The public realm and materials used in the 

space outside of the Grade II listed Conway 

Building do not reflect the appearance and 

character of the building. 

2.10   Public Realm Conditions – Conway Street

19

Figure 2.8 – Public Realm Conditions 

Conway Street

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 47



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 2.9 highlights public realm conditions on 

Europa Boulevard.

• As is the case with Conway Street, the 

public realm is generally in a tired, 

underwhelming state. Surfacing is 

inconsistent through the study area and 

often patchy, with different colours and 

materials.

• Whilst there are a number of benches along 

Europa Boulevard, street furniture is old and 

worn and the overall appearance of the area 

is untidy.

• Bins are placed in various locations along 

the Boulevard, however there still appears to 

be a high amount of litter in the area. Bins 

were observed to be overspilling during a 

site visit in June 2022.

• The entrance to Conway Park Station lacks 

in wayfinding and there is a poor sense of 

arrival to the town centre. In addition to this 

the current public realm is tired and 

uninviting with a lack of green space or 

street furniture. 

2.11   Public Realm Conditions – Europa Boulevard

20

Figure 2.9 – Public Realm 

Conditions Europa Boulevard

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 48



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
Figure 2.10 – Highway Ownership

Figure 2.10 shows the highway ownership 

across the study area. 

Both Conway Street and Europa Boulevard are 

classified as adopted highway. 

Engagement with the Council will be 

undertaken following further development of the 

preferred option to secure the necessary 

permissions to implement the public realm 

works.

2.12   Highway Ownership

21Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 49



3    Issues & Opportunities

P
age 50



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Interventions such as reducing the carriageway 

width and reclaiming street-space for 

pedestrians will encourage increased footfall 

and regeneration on Europa Boulevard. 

Public realm interventions to improve the 

pedestrian experience could include:

• Introducing dedicated active travel facilities 

to improve the safety and legibility of trips by 

active modes;

• Decluttering the streets from general clutter 

(unnecessary bollards and signage) and 

better maintenance of footways.

• Reducing on-street parking and widening the 

footway;

• Introducing green infrastructure and better 

street furniture;

• Delivering façade upgrades at Conway Park 

Station.

Figure 3.2 – Opportunities – Europa Boulevard

Figure 3.1 – Issues – Europa Boulevard

3.1   Europa Boulevard 

Mott MacDonald – September 2022Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report 23

P
age 51



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Conway Street is signified by carriageway 

dominance, indirect crossings, cluttered 

signage, and overused guard-railings. In many 

places there is a lack of dwell opportunities due 

to a lack of street furniture and green 

infrastructure.

Public realm interventions to improve the 

pedestrian experience could include:

• Continuous footways and more legible 

routes for pedestrians

• More direct crossings following desire lines

• Reduced carriageway dominance and an 

increase in space allocation for active mode 

users

• Removal of clutter including guard rails, 

bollards and poorly positioned signage.

Figure 3.4 – Opportunities – Conway Street

Figure 3.3 – Issues – Conway Street

3.2   Conway Street 

Mott MacDonald – September 2022Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report 24

P
age 52



4    Vision & Design Principles

P
age 53



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Design Principles

• Create a people first space – reduce 

conflicts between different users and the 

impact of vehicles on pedestrian movement

• Promote healthy, active travel through the 

provision of high-quality walking and cycling 

infrastructure

• Create a space with a strong sense of 

purpose – a canvas for activity, vibrancy and 

community

• Green infrastructure at the forefront of 

design proposals

• Promote dwell time through the provision of 

increased space allocation and street 

furniture

• Create a strong first impression of 

Birkenhead at key gateways, including 

Conway Park Station

• Create a place that facilitates natural 

navigation through legible design

• Simplify the streetscene and reduce 

engineering complexity 

• Consolidate parking/pick up facilities

Vision Statement

A new Conway Street and 

Europa Boulevard are key 

to the renaissance of 

Birkenhead. They will be 

beautiful avenues that 

provide a canvas for the 

wider transformation of the 

town centre to build upon.

They will be healthy, green 

streets that provide a 

comfortable pedestrian 

environment and safe 

cycling infrastructure. A 

better balance of 

movement and place will 

allow easy access for 

vehicles, but not dominate 

the streetscene. 

4.1   Vision and Design Principles 

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report 26

P
age 54



5    Concept Options

P
age 55



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 5.1 shows a typical existing street section from Conway Street. 

Conway Street is a wide, hard-engineered route where pedestrians are 

often segregated at the borders of the highway. 

The pedestrian environment is overall underwhelming and lacks street 

furniture providing shelter or resting points. The majority of crossings 

between Argyle St junction and Hemingford St are dog-legged crossings –

which prioritise vehicular flow against easiness of crossing for pedestrians 

and cyclists. In total 4 options have been developed for the street. 

Key design features of Option 1 (figure 5.2) include:

• Single-lane (1.5m) segregated cycle lanes either side of the 

carriageway

• Widened footways on both sides of the street and a slightly reduced 

carriageway width on the eastbound carriageway

• Public realm improvements on the north side of the street, including tree 

planting, resting points and an improved footway surface.

Note: Due to the current location of the bus stop and the bus station on the 

south facing side of Conway Street, the cycle route would be conflicting 

with pedestrians and bus movements. This would require a number of 

additional crossings points for pedestrians.

Key design features of Option 2A (figure 5.3) include:

• Westbound traffic lanes are maintained whilst the eastbound traffic 

route is reduced to one lane.

• The introduction of a segregated bi-directional cycle lane on the north 

side of the street

• Public realm improvements on the north side of the street, including a 

widened footway, tree planting, resting points and an improved footway 

surface.

• In this option there are no proposed changes to the south side of the 

street. 

5.1   Conway Street

28

Existing

Option 1

Figure 5.2 – Conway Street – Option 1

Figure 5.1 – Conway Street – Existing 

Figure 5.3 – Conway Street – Option 2A

Option 2A

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 56



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Key design features of Option 2B (preferred option) (figure 5.4) include:

• Westbound traffic lanes are maintained whilst the eastbound traffic 

route is reduced to one lane.

• The introduction of a segregated bi-directional cycle lane on the north 

side of the street separated from the carriageway by a 2m planted tree 

buffer

• A slightly narrowed footway (0.6m) but public realm improvements 

including trees, resting points and improved footway surface

• In this option there are no proposed changes to the south side of the 

street

Key design features of Option 2C (figure 5.5) include:

• As per Option 2B (above) with the addition of a renewed hardscape 

central median with new tree planting

Key design features of Option 3 (figure 5.6) include:

• As per Option 2C (above) with the addition of public realm 

improvements on the south side of the street

• Public realm improvements include the removal of the bus stop area, a 

widened footway, new tree planting and an improved footway surface

Across all options, the street will also benefit from enhanced crossings and 

decluttering, including the removal of superfluous signage and guard-

railing.

29Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

Option 2B

Figure 5.4 – Conway Street – Option 2B

Option 2C

Figure 5.5 – Conway Street – Option 2C

Figure 5.6 – Conway Street – Option 3

Option 3

P
age 57



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

5.2   Europa Boulevard

30

Existing

Option 1

Figure 5.8 – Europa Boulevard – Option 1

Figure 5.7 – Europa Boulevard - Existing

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

Figures 5.7 shows a typical existing street section from Europa Boulevard. 

The existing layout is dominated by the carriageway and central boulevard. 

The space allocation for public realm is poor, with narrow footways, and 

there is a distinct lack of active travel infrastructure. 

In addition to this, the environment outside of Conway Park station is 

underwhelming and unattractive, with a poor sense of arrival to the town 

centre and a lack of shelter or resting points.

In total 3 options have been developed for Europa Boulevard.

Figure 5.8 shows design Option 1 (preferred option). The proposed design 

aims to re-balance the street space to include active travel movements and 

enhance the existing central boulevard. 

The key elements of the proposed design include:

• Northbound traffic lane is removed and replaced with a bi-directional 

cycleway, planting and widened footway.

• East side of the street converted to two-way.

• Improved public realm materials.

• Introduction of new street furniture and planting.

P
age 58



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

31Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

Option 3

Figure 5.10 – Europa Boulevard – Option 3

Figure 5.9 – Europa Boulevard – Option 2

Option 2

Key design features of Option 2 (figure 5.9) include:

• As per Option 1 with the addition of a linear path down the centre of the 

central boulevard

• Crown lift on trees on green space.

Key design features of Option 3 (figure 5.10) include:

• Bi-directional cycleway down the centre the green space.

• Crown lift trees on green space.

• Expansive public realm and landscaping on the west side of the street.

Across all options, the street will also benefit from enhanced crossings and 

decluttering, including the removal of superfluous signage and guard-

railing.

P
age 59



6    Concept Design

P
age 60



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 6.1: Conway Street Concept

6.1   Conway Street

33

Figure 6.1 shows the preferred option concept design (Option 2B) for Conway Street. The proposed 

design introduces a two-way segregated cycleway between Argyle St junction and Conway Pl junction, 

which can be expanded west when further funding is available. The current tired footway on the north 

side of Conway St will be replaced by high quality paving – to improve the pedestrian environment and 

accessibility. This includes the implementation of a new pedestrian supercrossing between the Bus 

Station and Europa Boulevard (West). 

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

Bi-directional segregated cycleway and tree planting 

Sauchiehall Street, Glasgow

Pedestrian ‘Super Crossing’ and central median planting 

Maid Marian Way, Nottingham

Central median tree planting

Streatham High Road, London

Please note that proposed changes to the roundabout junction with Argyle St are not included within 

this concept due to the potential need to phase implementation.

P
age 61



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

6.2   Europa Boulevard

34

Figure 6.2 shows the preferred option concept design (Option 1) for Europa Boulevard. The proposed 

design will see the existing northbound carriageway closed and replaced with a new generous footway 

and cycleway. This requires the full conversion of the east side lane to two-way traffic flow, and the 

removal of all on-street parking. 

Figure 6.2: Europa Boulevard Concept

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

Derby Railway Station enhanced public realm Lloyd George Avenue (concept design)

Cardiff

‘Grey to Green’ public realm and connectivity initiative

Castlegate, Sheffield

The transformed west side of Europa Boulevard includes new high-quality paving and the installation 

of a bidirectional segregated cycleway. At Conway Park Station, the current roundabout is to be 

removed and replaced with a new public space. 

P
age 62



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

6.3   Concept Masterplan

35

Figure 6.3 shows the combined concepts for Conway Street and Europa Boulevard.

Figure 6.3: Concept Masterplan

Conway Street & Europa Boulevard - Birkenhead - Stage 1 & 2 Report Mott MacDonald – September 2022

P
age 63



P
age 64



Stage 01 & 02 Report

Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead

P
age 65



Revision Date Originator Checker Approver Description

D 020822 Alice Gallareto
Liz Jones Tom Roberts Tom Roberts Issue

Information class: Confidential  

This document is issued for the party which commissioned it and for specific 
purposes connected with the above-captioned project only. It should not be 
relied upon by any other party or used for any other purpose. 

We accept no responsibility for the consequences of this document being 
relied upon by any other party, or being used for any other purpose, or 
containing any error or omission which is due to an error or omission in data 
supplied to us by other parties. 

This document contains confidential information and proprietary intellectual 
property. It should not be shown to other parties without consent from us and 
from the party which commissioned it. 

P
age 66



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Contents

1. Introduction

2. Existing Conditions

3. Concept Schemes

4. Grange Road Access Options

5. Cost Plan

6. Business Engagement

7. Next Steps

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead 3 Stage01&02 Report

4

6

30

44

51

53

65

P
age 67



1    Introduction

P
age 68



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

This Study

Mott MacDonald has been commissioned by 
Wirral Council to undertake a two-stage study 
to progress concept options and costings for 
Charing Cross and Grange Road, Birkenhead.

In early 2020, Mott MacDonald, Avison Young 
& OPEN worked together with Wirral Council to 
develop early ideas for Charing Cross and 
Grange Road, in Birkenhead Town Centre. 
Wirral Council have subsequently been 
awarded £2.969 million from the Department for 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
(DLUHC)’s Future High Street Fund to deliver 
this scheme.

The purpose of this report is to provide a more 
focused brief for subsequent design stages.

This report therefore consists of the following:

• Existing conditions: an assessment of 
baseline conditions and identification of 
issues and opportunities.

• Concept options: outlining potential options 
for the scheme, derived from both our 
baseline assessment and associated 
stakeholder consultation.

• Cost plan: outlining the costs associated 
with each of the concept options.

1.1  Introduction

5

Charing Cross Junction

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 69



2    Existing Conditions

P
age 70



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Grange Rd – 60s

Grange Rd – 70s

Grange Rd – 00s

2.1  Then & Now

Grange Road and Horatio St

Grange Road – 1950s Grange Road – 1960sGrange Road West  – 1960s

Charing Cross – 1970sCharing Cross – 1950s Charing Cross – 1960s

7Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 71



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Grange Rd – 70s

Grange Rd – 00sGrange Road - today Grange Road West - todayCharing Cross - today Charing Cross - today

Tired, underwhelming public realm

Clutter and vehicles on footway

Poor quality access gate

Guardrail, cracked tactile surface

Historic building form

Excessive junction footprint

Cluttered, narrow footways

Poor pedestrian crossings

8Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 72



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Grange Rd – 70s

9Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Grange Road – Significant issues with fly-parking on side streets.

P
age 73



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 2.1 identifies existing land uses across 
the study area, focusing on ground floor uses.

Ground floor uses on Grange Road are 
predominantly large retail premises facing the 
pedestrianised area. There are also two 
entrances to the Pyramids Shopping Centre
from the street.

The few professional services along 
Grange Road are concentrated towards the 
Charing Cross end, offering access to banks
and few small businesses.

There is a cluster of food and drink 
establishments around Charing Cross junction, 
as well as smaller units on Oxton Road 
and Whetstone Lane. These uses generate 
frequent trips from takeaway delivery services.

Grange Road West is characterised by smaller 
convenience stores and off-licence shops – but 
several sites are currently not in use. The street 
also hosts the Little Theatre - a Wirral based 
Theatre that has its own resident theatre 
company.

2.2   Existing Land Uses

Figure 2.1 – Existing Land Uses

10Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 74



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 2.2 identifies listed buildings within the 
study area. The building at 1-7 Charing Cross is 
listed on the National Heritage List for England 
as a Grade II.

257 Grange Road, at the junction with Charing 
Cross, is also listed as a Grade II.

2.3   Listed Buildings

Figure 2.2 – Listed Buildings

1-7 Charing Cross

257 Grange Road

11Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 75



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 2.3 identifies existing pedestrian 
movement and desire lines across the study 
area. 

Grange Road and adjacent streets host the 
majority of pedestrian movement across the 
area – thanks to the variety of shops and 
services facing Grange Road, two accesses to 
the Pyramids Shopping Centre, several nearby 
car parks and bus stops.

Still, one of the key issues across the study 
area is the conflict between pedestrians and 
vehicles on Grange Road and its side streets –
as cars obstruct pedestrian movement and 
reduce accessible space for walking, 
particularly for those using a wheelchair or 
scooter.

The crossing movement at Charing Cross, due 
to the current junction layout including guardrail, 
dog-legs and refuges, is notably more 
convoluted than the pedestrian desire lines.

2.4   Pedestrian Movement & Desire Lines

Figure 2.3 – Pedestrian Movement & Desire Lines

12Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 76



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figures 2.4 and 2.5 show existing street cross sections at Grange Road and Grange Road West. 
Despite a width of over 13m, pedestrian space along Grange Road is often reduced by clutter and 
parked vehicles obstructing pedestrian movement. Overall, the public realm materials are tired and in 
need of renewal.

2.5   Typical Street Section

Figure 2.4 – Grange Road – Existing Section Figure 2.5 – Grange Road West – Existing Section

Grange Road West is currently dominated by the carriageway width, with narrow footway on both 
sides and on-street car park on the north side of the street. Clutter and footway obstructions can 
reduce the independence of many people, especially older or disabled people with visual or mobility 
impairments.

13Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 77



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

2.6  Recorded Crime

Figure 2.6 – Recorded Crime

Figure 2.6 identifies crime hotspots across the 
study area, according to police.uk records 
between August 2020 to 2021.

The key crime hotspots are mainly situated in or 
around the larger supermarkets on Grange 
Road (ASDA and Iceland), mostly reporting 
shoplifting.

A high number of crime has also been recorded 
on River Street, to the back of McDonalds, as 
well as Menai Street and Back Menai Street, 
which are residential streets. Back Menai Street 
is due to be gated using funding from the Home 
Office Safer Streets Fund.

There has been six reported bicycle thefts in or 
close to the study area. Cyclists are not 
permitted on Grange Road and currently there 
is no provision for secure cycle parking.

Anecdotal feedback and comments from the 
latest business survey highlighted how 
antisocial behaviour on Grange Road and 
Grange Road West is a cause of concern for 
residents. There have also been anecdotal 
reports of antisocial cycling behaviour by 
groups of young people on Grange Road, 
particularly intimidating for elderly and more 
vulnerable members of the community.

14Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 78



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

2.6   Car Parking

Figure 2.7 shows both on-street and off-street 
car parking provision across the study area and 
surroundings.

As shown in Table 2.1 there is a significant 
amount of public parking available in close 
proximity to the study area, including two large 
multi-storey car parks for ASDA and the 
Pyramid Shopping Centre which are a 5-minute 
and 3-minute walk from Charing Cross junction.

The majority of public parking available is ‘pay 
and display’, this includes parking connected to 
the south of Grange Road West and parking at 
the north end of St John Street.

On-street parking on Grange Road West is a 
mix of pay and display and free short stay. 
Barton Street car park is accessible from 
Grange Road West by Clayton St and from 
Oxton Road by Barton Street.

Table 2.1: Car Parking Provision

Multi storey 
spaces

Public 
surface level 
spaces

On street 
spaces

Total 
spaces

1385 242 54 1681

Figure 2.7 – Car Parking

15Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 79



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

2.7 Bus Provision

Figure 2.8 shows the existing bus services 
which run through the study area, as well as 
bus stops on adjacent streets.

There are two bus stops on Oxton Road with an 
average of 3 buses per hour running 
northbound and 5 buses per hour southbound. 
These services travel in a circular route 
through Birkenhead, running through the study 
area along Oxton Road and Exmouth Street.

Bus stops with more frequent services 
are located just outside of the study area, 
approximately a three-minute walk from 
Charing Cross junction. Westbound services 
are located on Claughton Road/ 
Catherine Street, and eastbound on Borough 
Road/Whetstone Lane. Birkenhead Bus Station 
is a 9-minute walk from Charing Cross.

These bus stops offer connections to a wide 
range of locations across Wirral and Liverpool.

Figure 2.8 – Bus Provision

16Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 80



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 2.9 shows the location of all active travel 
collisions (involving pedestrians or cyclists) 
which have occurred within or close to the study 
area between 2017-2021.

There are a total of 9 active travel collisions in 
the study area, including one fatal pedestrian 
collision at Charing Cross junction – involving 
one vehicle.

Four collisions recorded within the study area 
involved cyclists. Charing Cross junction layout 
is particularly challenging for cyclists due to the 
level of traffic and lack of cycling facilities, 
creating an overall poor environment for people 
on bikes. 

Clusters of collisions have been recorded at 
junctions in the surrounding area. There have 
been 7 serious injury incidents - and 9 slight 
injury incidents.

2.8   Collisions Involving Active Travel Users

Figure 2.9 – Active Travel Collisions

17Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 81



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 2.10 shows the location of all traffic  
collisions which have occurred within or close 
to the study area between 2017-2021.

There are a total of 10 collisions in the study 
area, and 35 have been recorded at junctions in 
the surrounding area. The highest frequency of 
collisions has been recorded at Borough Road / 
Whetstone Lane junction and Borough Road / 
Salisbury Street junction.

2.9   All Collisions

Figure 2.10 – All Traffic Collisions

18Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 82



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 2.11 highlights public realm conditions 
throughout the study area covering Grange Rd, 
Charing Cross and Grange Rd West.

- Current public realm is generally in a tired, 
underwhelming state. Surfacing is 
inconsistent through the study area: often 
patchy, mis-matched in colours and 
materials.

- There is a change in level in front of the 
Pyramids entrance on the south side of 
Grange Road.

- There is a significant amount of clutter 
throughout, particularly clustered towards 
Charing Cross end: different style/materials 
bollards, large A-Boards, outdated signage, 
goods and signs from shops, and poorly 
placed street furniture.

- There are several cycle parking stands 
across the study area, but many are in poor 
condition.

2.10   Public Realm Conditions

19Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Figure 2.11 – Public Realm Conditions

P
age 83



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

2.11   Healthy Streets Audit

A Healthy Streets Audit was undertaken to 
determine baseline conditions on Grange Road 
and Grange Road West.

The Healthy Streets approach was developed 
by Transport for London to assess streets 
against a series of 10 evidence-based 
indicators of what makes streets appealing, 
healthy, inclusive places. Each indicator 
describes an aspect of the human experience 
of being on the street and helps to determine 
strengths and weaknesses.

Figure 2.12 shows how Grange Road performs 
fairly well on the Healthy Streets scoring, as 
being pedestrianised conflicts between 
pedestrian and live traffic are strongly reduced. 
Still, the current poor state of the public realm 
reduces attractiveness and physical 
accessibility – e.g., footway materiality is 
inconsistent, and clutter can obstruct pedestrian 
passage. Due to the majority of retail facing the 
street, natural surveillance is not granted during 
hours of darkness.

Figure 2.13 showcases how Grange Road West 
performs poorly on overall attractiveness and 
comfort for pedestrians – this predominantly 
due to narrow, cluttered footways and vehicle 
dominance along the street.

Figure 2.12 – Healthy Streets Audit – Grange Road Figure 2.13 – Healthy Streets Audit – Grange Road West

20Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 84



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Grange Road is pedestrianised between 
Charing Cross and St John Street - with loading 
vehicles permitted before 10:30am and after 
4:30pm. Out of pedestrianisation hours, Grange 
Road works as an eastbound one-way route.

Traffic Regulation Order

The existing Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) 
restricts vehicle access and parking during 
peak shopping times along Grange Road. At 
present, Wirral Council is unable to legally 
enforce moving traffic offences. This means 
that enforcement of the existing TRO can only 
be undertaken by Merseyside Police, and 
contravention has to be witnessed in person by 
a Police officer. This has led to daily disregard 
of the TRO by those driving and parking on the 
street during operational hours.

2.12   Traffic Management

Figure 2.15 – Traffic Management Plan

21Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Figure 2.14 – Grange Road – Existing Traffic Restrictions

P
age 85



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Due to frequent disregard for the vehicular 
restrictions, barriers have been recently 
installed at the junction of Grange Road and 
Charing Cross. A lockable gate has been 
installed to reinforce the existing Traffic 
Regulation Order in place, as a temporary 
solution – as shown in Figures 2.16 to 2.18.

The barrier has been installed at the western-
end of the route, next to McDonald's, and it 
should be locked between 10.30am and 
4.30pm, in line with the existing order. 
However, this relies on daily manual operation, 
and the gate was observed to be open on a site 
visit.

Hostile Vehicle Mitigation

Grange Road has been identified by the
Counter Terrorism Policing North West 
(CTPNW) as an area potentially vulnerable to 
‘vehicle as a weapon attack’. This because
unrestricted access for vehicles into Grange 
Road shopping area from Oxton Road and 
Grange Road West could allow vehicles to gain 
high speed into an area.

Therefore implementation of Hostile Vehicle 
Mitigation measures are required. The 
temporary lockable gate partially provides this, 
though it was observed to be open during 
pedestrianised hours during a site visit.

Options for both the revision and enforcement 
of the TRO, and implementation of improved 
Hostile Vehicle Mitigation measures, are 
considered in Chapter 3 of this report.

22Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Figure 2.16 Grange Road – Gate at Charing Cross junction (1/3)

Figure 2.17 Gate at Charing Cross junction (2/3) Figure 2.18 Gate at Charing Cross junction (3/3)

P
age 86



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Figure 2.19 shows the extent of the highway 
ownership across the study area. All areas of 
interest appear to be under the ownership of 
Wirral Council.

2.13  Highway Ownership

Figure 2.19 – Highway Ownership

23Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 87



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

2.13   Traffic Flows – Charing Cross

Figure 2.20 and 2.21 illustrate the traffic flow for all turning movements at Charing Cross for the Base 
Year 2015, extracted from Wirral Transport Model. With the majority of traffic running on Whetstone Ln 
and Exmouth Street, vehicular flows are fairly consistent between AM and PM scenarios. There is 
however a notable increase of westbound and northbound traffic from Whetstone Lane in the PM peak

Figure 2.21 – Charing Cross Traffic Flows – 2015 PM

Out of the 1,666 vehicles recorded in the AM and 1,984 vehicles recorded in the PM:

• Traffic on Grange Road West accounts for less than 2% of total vehicle flows; while
• 70% of AM traffic and 88% of PM traffic run on the north/south axe of Exmouth Street and 

Whetstone Ln.

Charing Cross junction will need to be re-modelled at the next Riba Stage with updated traffic flow 
data.

24Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Figure 2.20 – Charing Cross Traffic Flows – 2015 AM

P
age 88



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

A Linsig microsimulation model has been developed to assess the existing function of the Charing 
Cross junction, in the 2015 Base Year. LinSig is a software which allows traffic engineers to model 
traffic signals and their effect on traffic capacities and queuing. LinSig also optimises signal timings to 
reduce delay or increase capacity at a junction or group of interlinked junctions.

The Charing Cross model in Figures 2.22 and 2.23 is showing the junction as working at borderline 
capacity in the AM – with Exmouth Street, Whetstone Lane and Oxton Road working at > 85% 
capacity. The PM scenario shows the Whetstone Lane and Oxton Road arms are overcapacity. This 
means the arms at borderline / over capacity will experience congestion and queueing, reducing the 
junction performance. The current Linsing model is based on estimated signal timing, the model will 
need to be refreshed at the next Riba Stage to reflect baseline updates and actual signal timing.

2.13   Junction Modelling – Charing Cross

Stage01&02 Report

PCU: passenger car unit. PCS is a measure used to assess highway capacity, for modelling 
purposes. Different vehicles are assigned different values, according to the space they take up. A 
car has a value of 1; smaller vehicles will have lower values, and larger vehicles will have higher 
values. 

PRC: practical reserve capacity. PRC is a measure of how much additional traffic could pass 
through a junction whilst maintaining a maximum degree of saturation of 90% on all Links. Negative 
PRCs show that the junction is congested and queues will form.

25

Figure 23 – Linsig Model Output –
Junction Performance PM Period

Figure 2.22 – Linsig Model Output –
Junction Performance AM Period

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead

P
age 89



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

2.14   Utilities (C2)

This chapter provides an initial briefing on the C2 Stat searches undertaken to identify early 
risks and potential clashes. This will support the following costing exercise. A C2 search is 
the most comprehensive search available covering all the main utilities as e.g. cable, 
independent utilities and highways specific searches.

Full detailed plans are provided in the report appendix.

Figure 2.24 on the right showcases the approximate depth of the utilities apparatus at 
Charing Cross:

Approximate Depths

Shallow (350mm max)
• Cable TV / Communications
 Telecommunications

(350 – 750mm deep)
 Low voltage Electricity
 Gas

Deep (750mm min)
 Water
 High voltage Electricity (varies between 450mm – 1200mm)

Utilities Present in Grange Road

- Cadent Gas
- BT Broadband
- Scottish Power
- United Utilities
- Virgin Media
- Vodafone

26Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Figure 2.24 – Approximate Utilities Depths Source - National Joint Utilities Group (NJUG)

P
age 90



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Cable TV & Telecommunications (Shallow)

- BT Broadband

- Virgin Media

- Vodafone

Cable TV & Telecommunications are the most 
likely utilities to be found underground as they 
have depths that range between 200mm to 
350mm deep. However, the gradient along 
Grange Road varies in some sections and 
therefore some of the utilities will potentially be 
deeper than usual.

Virgin Media and BT are typically the shallowest 
telecommunications however, they can also be 
very expensive to relocate due to their large 
number of manholes and chambers. These can 
be found on the footway level. The stats plans 
produced show that both Virgin Media and BT 
have utilities within the red line boundary 
underneath Grange Road.

Vodafone utilities are located underneath 
Charing Cross junction only - therefore it is very 
unlikely that they will have an affect on the 
proposed designs.

Clash Checks:

 Only affect tree locations

 Avoid BT & Virgin Media where possible 
to reduce cost

Figure 2.25 – Stats Location Plan – BT Broadband

27Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 91



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Scottish Power (450mm – 1200mmDeep)

- Low Voltage

- High Voltage

- 33 kV

- 132kV

Low voltage electricity cables are typically  the 
shallowest electricity utilities, They are just 
450mm deep and therefore likely to affect tree 
locations. Figure 18 shows that there is a large 
amount of low voltage cables situated beneath 
both the north and south side of Grange Road. 
However, they are not as expensive to relocate 
as BT and Virgin Media.

High voltage and 33kV cables can also be as 
shallow as low voltage as they contain depths 
between 450mm to 1200mm and may also 
affect tree locations. There is a live high voltage 
cable that is situated on the eastern side of St 
John’s Street so it is important that we do not 
plant any trees here to help reduce costs. In 
contrast, the 33kV cables can also be just as 
shallow as 450mm however, they are only 
situated beneath the Charing Cross junction 
and not in location of proposed trees.

The 132kV cables are likely to be the deepest 
but also the most expensive. Fortunately, it is 
unlikely that these cables will affect the 
proposed designs. 

Clash Checks:

 Only affect tree locations – Remove 
those proposed if there are too many 
clashes with other utilities

 Avoid all High Voltage cables where 
possible 

Figure 2.26 – Stats Location Plan – Cadent Gas

28Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 92



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Cadent Gas (600mm Deep)

- Low Pressure

Gas pipes are not as shallow as cable tv or 
telecommunication utilities since they have 
depths of approximately 600mm. However, this 
still needs to be taken into consideration when 
allocating trees planting – as large depth 
required for trees to be put in place.

Figure 19 shows that there are no high 
pressure gas pipes within the red line boundary. 
However, there is a low pressure gas pipe that 
is situated along the southern side of Grange 
Road.

Clash Checks:

 Only affect tree locations – Remove 
those proposed if there are too many 
clashes with other utilities

United Utilities (750mm Deep)

- Clean Water

- Waste Water

All water pipes are typically the deepest 
utilities in the ground and therefore deeper than 
most high voltage electricity cables. They are 
approximately 750mm deep.

Both clean and waste water pipes will contain 
similar depths to one another. Despite the large 
amount of utilities present, it is highly unlikely 
that United Utilities infrastructure will affect any 
of the proposed designs

Figure 2.27 – Stats Location Plan – Cadent Gas

29Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 93



3    Concept Schemes

P
age 94



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

The proposed scheme includes:

- Full replacement of public realm materials 
within the pedestrianised area to improve the 
look and feel of the street;

- Introduction of new planting to complement 
the existing street trees;

- New street furniture including benches, cycle 
stands and waste bins;

- Implementation of Hostile Vehicle Mitigation 
measures at the junction of Grange Road & 
Charing Cross;

- Revision of the Traffic Regulation Order.

Through the design development phases, the 
potential for improvements on Salisbury Street 
has also emerged. This, together with a full 
street light condition survey covering Grange 
Road – should be implemented at next Riba
Stage 3.

3.1  Scheme 1 - Grange Road

Figure 3.1 – Scheme 1 Diagram: Grange Road

31Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 95



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Scheme 1 – Grange Road

Figure 3.2 – Grange Road – Existing Figure 3.3 – Grange Road – Proposed

32Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 96



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Benchmark - Shaws Road, Altrincham

- Altrincham labelled as a ghost town - 30% of stores were empty.

- £3m invested in public realm improvements, including at Shaws Road.

- Street trees have been introduced throughout the scheme, alongside contemporary-style wooden 
benches, new bins and bike-racks.

- Footfall across Altrincham town centre has increased more than 5% since 2016, following the 
regeneration schemes.

Segmental ArchInscription on tree grills

Shaws Road (After)Shaws Road (Before)

Source/all image credits: Trafford Council Consultation, Altrincham News, Altrincham & Bowdon Civic Society

33Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 97



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
34Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Grange Road - Existing Grange Road - Proposed

P
age 98



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

The proposed scheme includes implementation 
of Scheme 1, plus the below works at Charing 
Cross:

- Removal of all existing guardrail;

- Removal of existing refuges and islands;

- Introduction of direct single stage crossings 
on all junction arms;

- Introduction of advanced stop lines (ASL) on 
all arms to improve cyclists safety.

Figure 3.4 – Scheme 2 Diagram : Grange Road & Charing Cross

3.2  Scheme 2 – Grange Road & Charing Cross

35Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 99



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Scheme 2 – Grange Road & Charing Cross

Figure 3.5 – Exmouth Street Pedestrian Crossing – Existing Figure 3.6 – Exmouth Street Pedestrian Crossing – Proposed

36Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 100



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Benchmark - Clapham Junction remodelling

- All dog-leg pedestrian crossings were removed and replaced with single-stage straight ahead 
crossings.

- Unnecessary street clutter like guardrailing and phone boxes were removed to make walking 
through the town centre easier and less congested.

A TfL study of all junctions across Greater London where guardrail and dog-leg crossings 
had been removed demonstrated a reduction in KSI collisions of 56%.

Clapham Junction (Before) Clapham Junction (After)

Dog-leg crossing removedDiagonal crossing

Source: Cyril Richert

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report37

P
age 101



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
38Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Charing Cross - Proposed

P
age 102



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

The proposed scheme includes implementation of 
Option 1 & 2, plus the below works at Grange 
Road West:

- Trial pedestrianisation of Grange Road West 
between Charing Cross junction and Clayton 
Street. Further details around pedestrianisation 
timing and retained cycle access to be define 
at next Riba Stage.

- Introduction of bollards at either end of the 
pedestrianised area – barriers to be a 
combination of permanent and removable 
bollards to allow vehicular access;

- Use of street paint and ‘pop-up’ interventions 
within the pedestrianised area to enhance the 
street environment:

Figure 3.9 – Scheme 3 Diagram : Grange Road & Charing Cross & Grange Road West

3.4  Scheme 3 - Grange Road, Charing Cross & Grange Road West

39Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Figure 3.7 
Example of Street 
Paint by Sound 
Mind Creative –
Photo Source: 
Justin Mitchell

Figure 3.8 
Example of 
Pop-Up Street 
Furniture by 
Meristem

P
age 103



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Scheme 3 – Grange Road West

Figure 3.10 – Grange Road West – Existing Figure 3.11 – Grange Road West – Proposed

40Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 104



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Wooden seating made from local recycled 
material

Floorspace artwork by artist Bryony 
Benge-Abbott  

Broad Street Meadow (After)Broad Street (Before)

Benchmark - Broad Street to Broad Meadow, Oxford

- The western half of Broad Street has been temporarily pedestrianised, turning it into Broad Meadow

- Two-way cycle street remains open throughout Broad Street

- The space has made use of recycled materials to build planters and seating, including pallets used 
to transport vaccines and protective equipment during the pandemic.

- The scheme is designed to support the city’s post-pandemic recovery, and to inform long-term 
options for creating better quality, car-free public spaces across Oxford city centre.

Source: The Oxford Magazine, BBC, Experience Oxfordshire, Jon Lewis for Oxford Mail

41Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 105



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Broad Street - Before

Benchmark - Cotham Hill, Bristol

- Bristol City Council temporarily closed off Cotham Hill to motorists to support businesses during the 
pandemic

- Planters and signage replaced red and white plastic barriers 

- Many café’s were able to offer outdoor seating, meaning people spent more time in the area

Cotham Hill - AfterCotham Hill - Before

Source: Bristol Live
Planters on Cotham HIllOutdoor seating area installed

42Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 106



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
43Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

3.5  Concept Masterplan

Figure 3.12 – Concept Masterplan

Figure 3.12 below shows the totality of the proposals across Grange Road, Charing Cross and Grange 
Road West. This to show the integration of scheme 1, 2 and 3 if all fully implemented.

P
age 107



4    Grange Road Access Options

P
age 108



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Table 4.1 (right & overleaf) provides a range of options for 
the implementation of a new permanent Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO).

‘Type A’ shows Pedestrian Zone. Both Options 1 & 2 
would provide the appropriate means for Wirral Council to 
enforce against parking contraventions, whilst maintaining 
the same operation of the current TRO.

Option 1 would however would prohibit cycles, adapted 
cycles and mobility scooters. This is not in line with the 
Equalities Act 2010. 

Option 2 permits cycles, adapted cycles and mobility 
scooters. Whilst recognising the concerns identified 
around Access Sharing Benefit (ASB) and nuisance 
cycling, this should be dealt with as a police matter and it 
should not be attempted to enforce through the TRO. 
New cycle parking is proposed on Grange Road to 
encourage users to dismount at appropriate locations 
while accessing shops and services.

‘Type B’ (overleaf) shows a Restricted Parking Zone. This 
would allow enforcement of parking on the street only, 
and therefore would permit use of the street for vehicles. 
Loading would also not be permitted on the street.

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Type Details Benefits Issues/Risks

A. Pedestrian Zone

Opt 1

Opt 2

*Times & days shown 
are for illustrative 
purposes only.

Pedestrian zones are generally areas such as shopping 
streets where pedestrians will normally predominate and 
have full use of the width of the road, either at all times 
or at certain times of day. The roads may be fully paved 
for pedestrians or comprise a carriageway with separate 
footways.

Where alternative access to premises is available, it 
might be possible to prohibit all vehicles from a 
pedestrian zone without any exceptions. However, in 
most cases some form of access will be required. This 
might be for deliveries, disabled badge holders, buses 
etc.

Depending on the access requirements, a pedestrian 
zone might or might not need parking controls. It might 
be desirable to impose a prohibition of waiting and, 
possibly, loading during the hours when entry into the 
zone is prohibited. This would provide a means of 
enforcement where a vehicle has legally entered the 
zone and parked there but does not leave when the 
zone becomes operational.

Emergency vehicles, security cash delivery vehicles, 
road works vehicles, statutory undertakers’ vehicles, 
domestic removals, funerals etc. are not usually signed 
as exceptions as it is common for them to be exempted 
from the requirements of the traffic regulation order.

There are two types of entry sign depending on whether 
ridden pedal cycles are permitted within the zone. Opt.1 
includes the “no vehicles” roundel and should be used 
where ridden pedal cycles are prohibited.

Opt.2 includes the “no motor vehicles” roundel and 
should be used where ridden pedal cycles are 
permitted.

The yellow “no waiting” panel is intended mainly for 
pedestrian zones that have waiting restrictions but no 
yellow lines.

• Reduces the 
dominance of vehicles 
and restores public 
space.

• Vehicular / pedestrian 
conflict reduced.

• Provides a more 
attractive environment.

• Traffic sign is 
prescribed within the 
Traffic Signs 
Regulations and 
General Directions 
(TSRGD), no special 
authorisation from 
Department for 
Transports (DfT) 
required.

• Loading available 
outside operational 
times.

• Parking contraventions 
can be enforced by the 
Council’s Civil 
Enforcement Officers.

• Without physical 
measures in the 
form of rising 
bollards/barrier 
control to support 
TRO / control 
vehicle movements 
this will lead to an 
increase in 
vehicular/pedestrian 
conflict and rely on 
frequent police 
enforcement.

• Likely to receive 
objections from 
cycling groups 
should pedal cycles 
be restricted.

• Significant costs 
(statutory 
processes, detailed 
design, 
infrastructure, future 
maintenance).

45

4.1   Traffic Regulation Order Options

Table 4.1 (a)– TRO Option Comparison

P
age 109



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
46

B. Restricted Parking 
Zone

*Times & days shown 
are for illustrative 
purposes only.

Restricted parking zones were originally developed for 
historic areas or where very narrow roads resulted in 
conventional yellow lines being visually intrusive. Zones are 
now also used in urban areas and town centres where it is 
desired to enhance the environment, for example by 
improved road surface treatment. They might also be 
considered where the road surface, such as cobble stones, is 
not conducive to the application of yellow lines. 

Restricted parking zones are therefore suitable only for single 
streets or clearly defined small areas. They are not suitable 
for through routes with heavy traffic or facilities which create 
a demand for parking greater than can be accommodated in 
on-street bays and any convenient off-street parking. Unlike a 
pedestrian zone, there is no restriction on entry into a 
restricted parking zone.

Waiting and loading restrictions, which must be uniform 
throughout the zone, are indicated by zone entry signs and 
time plates within the zone, but without yellow lines or kerb 
marks.

• Traffic sign is 
prescribed within 
TSRGD, no 
special 
authorisation from 
DfT required.

• Loading available 
outside 
operational times.

• Enforcement can 
be undertaken by 
the Council’s Civil 
Enforcement 
Officers.

• No restriction on 
vehicular access.

• Potential increase 
in vehicular / 
pedestrian conflicts.

• No Loading 
permitted could 
lead to possible 
objections from 
businesses.

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Recommendations

 We recommend that Type A, Option 2 are taken 
forward. This would allow better enforcement of 
parking issues occurring on the street, and also 
continue to permit loading. 

 Option 2 is preferred as it would continue to permit use 
by cycles, adapted cycles and mobility scooters. The 
exclusion of these modes under Option 1 is likely to 
contravene the Equalities Act 2010 and could 
ultimately lead to legal challenge. 

 Anti-Social Behaviour should be raised with the 
community policing team.

 Type A, Option 2 should be supplemented with Hostile 
Vehicle Mitigation Measures – explored further 
overleaf.

Table 4.1 (b) – TRO Option Comparison

P
age 110



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

‘Hard Measures’

‘Hard Measures’ are intended to stop vehicular access to the street, supporting both the need for HVM 
and better TRO enforcement.

Hard measures include physical barriers, permanent or time scheduled, blocking vehicles access on 
the street. Table 4.2 highlights the advantages and disadvantages of removable lockable bollards and 
hydraulic bollards.

In response to the 2018’s terror attacks across Britain and Europe, many town and cities introduced 
safety measures to induce lower speeds or close access to vehicles through public spaces. Liverpool 
introduced new lower speed limits and a number of hydraulic bollards. The bollard system in place 
was designed for traffic management and its function in terms of preventing terror attacks mainly 
relied on being a visual deterrent.

Use of a gate across the street is not recommended as a permanent solution, due to the implications 
for pedestrian movement and visual impact.

4.2   Hostile Vehicle Mitigation Options

Church Street, Liverpool – Hydraulic bollards

Giant flower pots used as traffic calming feature

Lockable bollards Hydraulic bollards

Advantages Disadvantages Advantages Disadvantages

Increase pedestrian 
safety and prevent 
accidents

Increase pedestrian 
safety and prevent 
accidents

Low temperatures can 
be a problem for 
hydraulic power units 
as the oil can become 
thick. And this could 
lead to the bollard not 
working properly.

Regulate vehicular 
access while allowing 
pedestrian flow

Requires twice daily 
physical visit to put 
up/down

Regulate vehicular 
access while allowing 
pedestrian flow

Higher price than 
fixed or removable 
bollards – as per 
purchase price and 
ongoing maintenance 
costs

Preserve clear lines 
and the spaciousness 
of open areas

Could have issues 
with lost or stolen 
keys

Preserve clear lines 
and the spaciousness 
of open areas

Bollards can jam in 
the upright or lowered 
position, causing loss 
of access for 
businesses

Decorative bollards 
offer the additional 
option of bolting onto 
existing concrete.

Remains permeable 
to mopeds

Can be controlled 
remotely by any 
access control 
system

Vehicles can become 
caught on rising 
bollards

Light enough to 
unlock and remove 
several times a day

Less durable Extremely vandal 
resistant as they are 
designed to withstand 
vehicle impact

Remains permeable 
to mopeds

Easy to manually 
remove in case of 
emergency

Can be lowered and 
raised quickly with no 
physical effort

Low maintenance and 
can withstand 
extreme 
environmental 
conditions

Fold-down shallow mount bollards

Table 4.2 – HVM Option Comparison

47Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 111



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

‘Soft Measures’

‘Soft Measures’ are intended to slow vehicular access to the street, principally supporting the need for 
HVM but not physically enforcing a TRO.

HVM can be designed in a range of ways, including ‘hidden’ within the public realm like the lettering in 
front of the Emirates Stadium in North London. This is a permanent barrier designed to stop or deter 
threats.

On Grange Road, this could include fixing discreet but obstructive street furniture to create a chicane 
movement. Obstacles can include trees, planters, benches or compact boulders.

Figure 4.3 – Example Outcome of a ‘Soft Measures’ Approach

Giant Planter

Emirates Stadium, London

Giant Planter

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report48

P
age 112



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
49Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

Figure 4.4 – Hostile Vehicle Mitigation Preferred Approach

HVM Preferred Approach 

Figure 4.4 shows the HVM preferred approach. A combination of permanent and rising bollards is 
proposed at Charing Cross, Catherine Street and St John Street approaches on Grange Road – to 
allow vehicles access for deliveries and emergency services. 

P
age 113



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

4.3   Grange Road West – Access Requirements

Figure 4.5 shows the detailed land uses 
currently present on Grange Road West.

Access to the north side of Grange Road 
West is from Back Menai Street. This offers 
loading access for some uses from the back 
of the property. Back Menai Street also 
appears to have a loading bay at the back of 
the NatWest Bank. Back Menai Street is 
narrow and used by residents for waste. The 
street has been gated as a result of 
antisocial behaviour issues.

Access to the south side of the street is via 
Clayton Place, with some permit space 
parking and storage facilities.

At the next Riba Stage, further work is 
required to understand the detailed access 
requirements for Grange Road West, though 
at this point it is likely that the NatWest Bank 
will require access for cash in transit 
security vehicles. This would require a 
solution that retains the ability for vehicular 
access at particular times of the day.

Figure 4.5 – Grange Road West

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report50

P
age 114



5    Cost Plan

P
age 115



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

5.1 Cost Plan

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report52

Cost estimates have been produced for each of the three proposed schemes as shown in Table 5.1. 
Cost estimate is high-level and should be used as indicative only at this early stage.

Exclusions from high-level budget cost estimate are as follows:

• Traffic Management

• Utilities works

• Abnormal ground conditions or remediation

No allowance made for replacement of street lighting at this stage. 
A street lighting condition survey is recommended at next Riba Stage.

Scheme 1 – Grange Road Scheme 2 – Charing Cross Scheme 3 – Grange Road West 

Material & Item Costs Subtotal £1,863,902.87 £276,415.00 £107,900.00

Main contractor preliminaries – 20% £372,780.57 £55,283.00 £21,580.00

Construction Sub-Total £2,236,683.44 £331,698.00 £129,480.00

Project / design team fees (inc supervision) – 15% £335,502.52 £49,754.70 £19,422.00

Optimism Bias (DfT TAG Unit A1.2 - Stage 1) – 21% £469,703.52 £69,656.58 £27,190.80

Inflation - 5% £111,834.17 £16,584.90 £6,474.00

Project Sub-Total £3,153,723.66 £467,694.18 £182,566.80

Combined Schemes (1) + (2) Cost £3,621,417.84

Combined Schemes (1) + (2) + (3) Cost £3,803,984.64

Table 5.1 – Cost Estimates

P
age 116



6    Business Engagement

P
age 117



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

6.1   Business Engagement Method

Business engagement has been a key part of the Charing Cross & Grange Road design development 
– to collect local feedback and ensure full transparency of the project progress. Wider public 
engagement will be undertaken in summer 2022.

The consultation was addressed towards businesses along Grange Road, Charing Cross and 
Grange Road West, and it did include:

• One letter drop 
• One door-to-door visit
• One online survey 

The letter drop was addressed to over 60 businesses within the study area shown in Figure 6.1, and 
delivered on the 8 of March 2022 - to introduce the proposed schemes and provide links to the online 
survey. The consultation letters comprised three consultation boards – as shown in Figure 6.3 on the 
next page – showcasing a rendered plan, before/after cross-sections and a visual of the proposal for 
each scheme. 

Following the letter drop, a door-to-door visit was undertaken by a Wirral Council engagement 
officer. This was to encourage survey responses and ensure all active venues within the study area 
received the consultation pack and were aware of the ongoing project.

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report54

Figure 6.1 –Business Consultation Area

The online survey ran between Tuesday 8 March and Thursday 31 March 2022. All surveys 
present some limitations in terms of accessibility and accuracy, however alternative options to 
make the consultation inclusive were offered where possible e.g. paper copies of the survey were 
available on request and were also offered as an alternative during the door-to-door visit.

The online survey interface on mobile phones is show in Figure 6.2 below:

Figure 6.2 – Business Consultation Online Survey

P
age 118



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
55Market Street & Coucill Square - Farnworth - Stage 1 & 2 Report Stage01&02 Report

Figure 6.3 – Business Consultation Board – Scheme 1 – Grange Road

P
age 119



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
56Market Street & Coucill Square - Farnworth - Stage 1 & 2 Report Stage01&02 Report

Figure 6.4 – Business Consultation Board – Scheme 2 – Charing Cross

P
age 120



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021
57Market Street & Coucill Square - Farnworth - Stage 1 & 2 Report Stage01&02 Report

Figure 6.5 – Business Consultation Board – Scheme 3 – Grange Road West

P
age 121



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

6.2   Door-to-Door Engagement

A door-to-door visit was undertaken by a member of the WBC engagement team, on Thursday 24 
March. The engagement officer was able to dialogue with 62 business/shop owners out of 65 open 
venues to explain the proposed schemes and consultation process – while handing out the 
consultation pack including the full schemes’ boards and introductory letter. 

Table 6.1 to 6.4 showcase the list of local businesses and shop visited during the in-person 
consultation – highlighting 24 venues that are currently closed/permanently shut. 

Overall, the predominant feedback from the in-person consultation has been in favour of all the 
schemes. The key concerns raised from the business owners have been about:

• The risk that new/additional street furniture could attract anti-social behaviours (e.g. day drinking).

• The need of clarity on how the timing for closure to vehicles would work on Grange Road West –
while maintaining access for shops deliveries and a safe level of accessibility for visitors and 
business owners.

• How to reinforce the parking restrictions on Grange Road effectively, as despite the existing 
bollards cars are parked at the top of Grange Road outside the shops all day – usually coming up 
Vincent Street and then parking on Grange Road for the rest of the day.

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report58

Grange Road

Business Engaged with 
owner/staff

Closed/permanently 
shut

Responded to 
Online Survey

1 Riveria Bar and Grill - Yes -

2 Friendly Discount 
Store Yes - -

3 Ladbrooks Yes - -

4 Casino Yes - -

5 Pound Bakery Yes - -

6 Independent Jewellers Yes - -

7 Brighthouse - Yes -

8 London Nails Yes - -

9 Barbers No 1 Yes - -

10 Biga Byte Yes - -

11 Iceland Yes - -

12 Boots Yes - -

13 Shush Yes -

14 Superdrug Yes - -

15 Pyramid Cut Cutting Yes - -

16 YMCA Yes - -

17 JD Sports Yes - -

18 HSBC Yes - -

19 Santander Yes - -

20 TK Maxx Yes - -

21 Fitness 4 Less Yes - -

22 Polka Dot Travel Yes -

23 Barclays Yes - -

24 Waterstones Yes - -

25 Hays Travel Yes - -

26 Halifax Yes - -

27 Primark Yes - -

28 Asda Yes - -

29 Bonmarch Yes - -

30 Casino Yes - -

Table 6.1 – Grange Road Door-to-Door Engagement

P
age 122



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report59

Charing Cross / Grange Road West

Business Engaged with 
owner/staff

Closed/permanently 
shut

Responded to 
Online Survey

31 Top Nails Yes - -

32 Lee Marvins - Yes -

33 Boots Hearing - Yes -

34 Northwest Barbers - Yes -

35 Christopher Boyton Salon Yes Yes

36 Charing Cross Cosmetics Yes -

37 Katie Nails Yes - -

38 Charing Cross Hotel Yes - -

39 Natwest Bank Yes - Yes

40 Abi Express yes Yes - Yes

41 Book Store - Yes -

42 Gekostar Yes -

43 Sun Ying - Yes -

44 Balti House - Yes -

45 Robert Boys Accountants Yes - -

46 West 32 Yes - Yes

47 Hursts Bakery Yes - -

48 Wirral Furniture - Yes -

49 Grange News Yes - -

50 Glamour Clinic - Yes -

51 Caribbean Spice - Yes -

52 Little Troon - Yes -

53 News Booze Yes - -

54 Bollywood - Yes -

55 Stonemakers Properties Yes - -

56 Mr Waffle - Yes -

57 Mini Market Yes - -

58 Mission Centre - Yes -

59 St Vincents Mission Yes - Yes

60 Grange West Lighting Yes - Yes

61 Belissa Nails Yes - -

62 Moneyline - Yes -

63 Wirral Taxis - Yes -

Table 6.2 – Charing Cross & Grange Road West Door-to-Door Engagement

Charing Cross / Grange Road West

Business Engaged with 
owner/staff

Closed/permanently 
shut

Responded to 
Online Survey

64 Little Theatre - - Yes

65 Turkish Floor Centre Yes - -

66 Edenville Play Centre Yes - -

67 Moneyshop - Yes -

68 Mollys Ice cream Yes - -

69 Makas Barbers Yes - -

70 My Shop Yes - -

71 Fishbowl pets Yes - -

72 Heliya Cafe Yes - -

73 Salvation Army Yes - -

74 Polski Food Shop Yes - -

75 Girl Code Gym Yes - -

76 Meeting Place Yes - Yes

77 Regal Nails Yes - -

78 Oxton Rd General Store Yes - -

79 Mersey Mobile - Yes -

80 Hair Caribbean Yes - -

81 Papa Pizza - Yes -

82 Numinous Tattoo and 
Piercing Studio - - Yes

83 Handmade by Maria - - Yes

Table 6.3 – Charing Cross & Grange Road West Door-to-Door Engagement

Whetstone Lane

Business Engaged with 
owner/staff

Closed/permanently 
shut

Responded to 
Online Survey

84 Not Just Coffee Yes - -

85 Alex taylor Funeral Yes - -

86 Moscroft Estates Yes - -

87 Higgins Solicitors Yes - -

88 Brook Yes - -

89 Pram Store - Yes -

Table 6.4 – Whetstone Lane Door-to-Door Engagement

P
age 123



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Once the online survey was closed on Thursday 31st March – 10 completed surveys were collected. 
This accounts for 15% of all the open business venues. The breakdown of the recorded feedback for 
scheme 1 is shown in Figure 6.6 and 6.7. Overall the Grange Road scheme scored 100% positive 
support.

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report60

Level of support towards 
Scheme 1 – Grange Road

Strongly Support

Somewhat Support

Not Sure

Somewhat Oppose

Strongly Oppose

Figure 6.6 – Online Survey Q1 - Which of the below best describes your 
support for the proposed schemes (select one) - (Scheme 1 – Grange Rd)?

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

Improves
accessibility,

particularly for
disable and elderly

people

More people visiting
and enjoying
Grange Road

Supports
businesses and

town centre
regeneration

No benefits

What do you think would be the 
benefit of Scheme 1 – Grange Road? 

Figure 6.7 – Online Survey Q2 - What do you think would be the benefit of the 
proposed schemes? (select all that apply) - (Scheme 1 – Grange Rd)?

8 responses

The recorded open comments can be summarised as per points below:

• Suggest maintain access for deliveries and goods collections
• Suggest introducing wayfinding/signposting to showcase businesses along Grange Road
• Suggest reinforcing CCTV/surveillance to tackle anti-social drinking and drug dealing behaviours
• Suggest widening Clayton St due to poor visibility risks
• Suggest introducing better options for local business parking

2 responses

6.3   Online Survey Outputs

P
age 124



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

The breakdown of the collected feedback for scheme 2 is shown in Figure 6.8 and 6.9. Overall the 
Charing Cross scheme scored 100% positive support.

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report61

Level of support towards 
Scheme 2 – Charing Cross

Strongly Support

Somewhat Support

Not Sure

Somewhat Oppose

Strongly Oppose

Figure 6.8 – Online Survey Q4 - Which of the below best describes your 
support for the proposed schemes (select one) - (Scheme 2 – Charing 
Cross)?

Figure 6.9 – Online Survey Q5 - What do you think would be the benefit of the 
proposed schemes? (select all that apply) -(Scheme 2 – Charing Cross)?

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

Improves Road
Safety

More people
visiting and

enjoying Grange
Road

More people
visiting and

enjoying Grange
Road West

Supports
businesses and

town centre
regeneration

No benefits

What do you think would be the 
benefit of Scheme 2 – Charing Cross? 

Summary of recorded open comments as follow:

• Confirmed that the current layout of Charing Cross junction stops a lot of people going from 
Grange Road further west towards Grange Road West and Oxton road

• Suggest to remove street furniture to avoid encouraging anti social behaviours

7 responses

3 responses

P
age 125



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

The breakdown of the collected feedback for scheme 3 is shown in Figure 6.10 and 6.11. Overall, 
Grange Road West scored 70% positive support, 10% unsure and 20% opposition. As part of the 
online survey it was also asked to the businesses if they required street access: general feedback 
confirmed local businesses do require access during day-time, not only for deliveries but to support 
customers’ safe accessibility.

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report62

Level of support towards 
Scheme 3 – Grange Road West

Strongly Support

Somewhat Support

Not Sure

Somewhat Oppose

Strongly Oppose

Figure 6.10 – Online Survey Q7 - Which of the below best describes your 
support for the proposed schemes (select one) - (Scheme 3 – Grange Road 
West)?

Figure 6.11 – Online Survey Q8 - What do you think would be the benefit of 
the proposed schemes? (select all that apply) - (Scheme 3 – Grange Road 
West)?

0
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10

Improve accessibility,
particularly for disable

and elderly people

More people visiting
and enjoying Grange

Road West

Supports businesses
and town centre

regeneration

No benefits

What do you think would be the 
benefit of Scheme 3 – Grange Road West? 

Summary of recorded open comments as follow:

• Expressed opposition due to elderly and disable customers currently accessing the street by car 
• Expressed support as existing customers are concerned about safety in the area and under the 

proposed scheme the street would feel more welcoming
• Suggest extending the pedestrianised area up to Clayton Street, closing off Charing Cross
• Suggest to remove street furniture to avoid encouraging anti social behaviours
• Expressed concerns for anti social behaviours brought by more people dwelling in the street
• Suggest improving the car-park at the rear of the street for better accessibility (e.g. better light)
• Suggest addressing the currently empty shops to get them back into use

5 responses

2 responses

1 response

2 responses

P
age 126



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report63

Figure 6.12 breaks down the expressed level of support towards the proposed schemes by responders’ 
location. It is relevant to note all of the online survey’s responders are based on Grange Road West and 
Oxton Road. 

Scheme 1 – Grange Road Scheme 2 – Charing Cross Scheme 3 – Grange Road West

Figure 6.12 – Business Consultation – Summary of Feedback

Strongly Support Somewhat Support Not Sure Strongly Oppose

Natwest Bank

ABI Express

The Little Theatre

P
age 127



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report64

Figure 6.13 – Business Consultation Feedback – Key Words

Figure 6.13 illustrates the most recurrent key words from the businesses consultation feedback – showing 
customers, accessibility, street environment, car access and parking as main themes.  

P
age 128



7   Summary

P
age 129



Mott MacDonald 12 March 2021

The Stage 01&02 report has set the context for future change on Grange Road, Charing 
Cross and Grange Road West. It has provided a summary of key issues and 
opportunities and a set of concept designs to provide inspiration and high level 
budgeting for a reimagined streetscape.

Stage 03 will need to address further design considerations including:

• Review of Existing Lighting & Electrical Design Information

• Hardworks Plan

• Softworks Plan & Planting Schedule

• Furniture Plan

• Strategic Levels Plan

• Road Safety Audit

• Equality Impact Assessment 

At present, whilst there has been extensive business engagement, there has been no 
public engagement. This is scheduled to be undertaken in summer 2022, to ensure 
public input to the design process is fully considered – and the process is robust and 
transparent. 

7.1  Next Steps

66

Grange Road - 2022

Mott MacDonald – Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead Stage01&02 Report

P
age 130



P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

     

ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND TRANSPORT 
COMMITTEE  
 

20 OCTOBER 2022  
 

REPORT TITLE ACTIVE TRAVEL FUND TRANCHE 2:  

A554 BAYSWATER ROAD/HARRISON DRIVE, 
WALLASEY – PROPOSED MANDATORY 
CYCLE LANE  
AND  
LEASOWE ROAD – REMOVAL OF SCHEME 
FROM PROGRAMME  
 

REPORT OF DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE 

 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
This report considers the objections and expressions of support received following 
consultation regarding the proposed mandatory cycle link along A554 Bayswater 
Road/Harrison Drive, Wallasey Ward. This scheme has been developed as part of 
Tranche 2 of the Department for Transport’s (DfT) Active Travel Fund. In accordance 
with the Council’s constitution consideration of the approval of the implementation of 
the scheme is a matter for this Committee given that in excess of 14 objections have 
been received in response to the public consultation on the scheme.  
 
The scheme also seeks approval for the removal of the Leasowe Road scheme in 
the Leasowe and Moreton East ward, and the Moreton West and Saughall Massie 
ward from the Tranche 2 programme. 
 
The Wirral Plan 2021-2026 sets out the Councils vision to secure the best possible 
future for our residents, defined by the community prosperity we create and 
supported by our excellent people and services. This proposal directly supports the 
following key themes within that plan: 

 A cleaner, greener borough which celebrates, protects and improves our 
environment and urgently tackles the environmental emergency;  

 A prosperous inclusive economy where local people can get good jobs and 
achieve their aspirations; and 

 Safe, vibrant communities where people want to live and raise their families. 
 
The purpose of this scheme is to create an environment that is safe for both 
pedestrians and cyclists and to help embed walking and cycling as part of new long-
term commuting habits. 
 
This matter affects Wallasey Ward, the Leasowe and Moreton East ward and the 
Moreton West and Saughall Massie ward. This matter is a Key Decision. 

Page 133

Agenda Item 8



 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Environment Climate Emergency and Transport Committee is requested to: 
 

(1) Approve the implementation of a mandatory cycle link along the A554 
Bayswater Road/Harrison Drive, Wallasey, as set out in Appendix 1 of this 
report; and 
 

(2) Authorise the Director of Regeneration and Place to: 
 

(a) Submit a change control request to the Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority to withdraw the Leasowe Road scheme from the Active Travel 
Tranche 2 programme; 
 

(b) Submit a change control request to the Liverpool City Region Combined 
Authority to enable £111,000 of budget previously allocated to the 
Leasowe Road scheme to be allocated to the A554 Bayswater 
Road/Harrison Drive scheme; and 
 

(c) Effect an associated virement so that the budget for the proposed 
mandatory cycle link along Bayswater Road/Harrison Drive is increased 
from £70,000 to £181,000.  

 
 

Page 134



 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

1.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

1.1 The proposed mandatory cycle link along A554 Bayswater Road/Harrison 
Drive, Wallasey Ward is designed in accordance with the latest cycling design 
guidance (LTN1/20 - Cycle Infrastructure Design) to create an environment 
that is safe for both walking and cycling and to help embed walking and 
cycling as part of new long-term commuting habits.   

1.2 The scheme is funded via the Department for Transport’s (DfT) Active Travel 
Fund   and the funding cannot be used for any other purpose.  

1.3 The objections and expressions of support received during the consultation 
period have been considered and have been given comprehensive 
responses.  It is considered that the scheme proposal should be progressed 
as it is in line with the latest DfT design guidance for cycle schemes and the 
objectives of the Active Travel Fund. 

 
1.4  Due to the current macro-economic climate there has been a significant 

increase in costs which has impacted on the Tranche 2 programme.   It is 
therefore considered appropriate with withdraw the Leasowe Road scheme 
from the programme and consider this for future funding opportunities.  This 
scheme has not yet been consulted on and therefore not as advanced as 
other schemes in the programme.  

 
2.0  OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

 
2.1. Allocate the funding to a different scheme in the Borough. This is not 

considered appropriate as the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority 
(“LCRCA”) has advised that the funds could only be spent on schemes within 
the current programme and could not be spent on a new scheme in the 
borough. 

2.2 Remove the A554 Bayswater Road/Harrison Drive Scheme from the Active 
Travel Fund Tranche 2 programme and return the £70,000 of funding to the 
LCRCA. This is not considered an appropriate option as failure to deliver the 
scheme could result in reputational issues for the Council in terms of its 
commitment to active travel. 

2.3 Remove an alternate scheme from the programme rather than Leasowe 
Road.  This is not considered an appropriate option as the Leasowe scheme 
is not as progressed as other schemes in the programme and has not yet 
been the subject of a public consultation.  

 
3. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

3.1 Wirral Council has been awarded £830,000 from the LCRCA Active Travel 
Tranche 2 programme to progress 5 projects to support and enable increased 
levels of walking and cycling in the Borough. The programme, which was 
approved by Policy and Resources Committee on 30 June 2021 is set out in 
Table 1 below.  

Page 135



 

 
Table 1: Wirral Active Travel Fund Tranche 2 Programme  
 

Scheme  Budget 

Arrowe Park Road (Pensby and 
Thingwall Ward) 

£70,000 

Duke Street (Bidston & St James Ward 
and Claughton Ward) 

£110,000 

Bayswater Road/Harrison Drive 
(Wallasey Ward) 

£70,000 

Leasowe Road (Leasowe and Moreton 
East Ward and Moreton West and 
Saughall Massie Ward) 

£430,000 

School Streets (Various Wards) £90,000 

The Crescent (Hoylake and Meols 
Ward) REMOVED FROM 
PROGRAMME 

£60,000 

Total  £830,000 
 

The budget for the Leasowe Scheme was increased to £1,020,000 following 
an Officer Decision Notice 17 February 2022. 

 
3.2 The A554 Bayswater Road/Harrison Drive scheme proposals extend from the 

junction with Newport Avenue to the junction with Coastal Drive. The proposal 
includes the conversion of the existing advisory cycle lane to a mandatory 
cycle lane with light segregation. An advisory cycle lane is marked with a 
white dashed line and motorists are advised not to drive or park in it, but it is 
not an offence to do so. A mandatory cycle lane is marked with a solid white 
line and it is an offence for motorists to drive or park in the lane.    
 

3.3 Bayswater Road has a 30mph speed limit and the segregation units required 
for this project will subsequently be substantial in nature and quality. Appendix 
1 of this report includes a photograph of the type of wand orca segregation 
unit to be used. Additional road markings, highway signs and coloured 
surfacing will supplement the segregation units. 

 
3.4 The objective of the Active Travel Fund Programme is to implement walking 

and cycling schemes to reduce the dependency on car-based journeys and 
through segregation provide increased confidence for users of active travel 
modes. 

 
3.5 On 30 June 2021 the Policy and Resources Committee resolved to accept 

various recommendations from the Economy Regeneration and Development 
Committee and resolved (amongst other matters) that: 

 
(1) the Director of Regeneration and Place be authorised to accept the 

grant funding of £1,153,380 allocated to Wirral Council by Liverpool 
City Region Combined Authority for the Active Travel Fund Tranche 1 
and 2 Programmes and accept the Local Authority Active Travel 
Capability Fund Programme indicative allocation of £286,000;  

Page 136



 

 
(2) the proposed Active Travel Fund Tranche 1 and 2 Programmes and the 

Active Travel Capability Fund Programme (“the Programmes”) as set 
out in Appendices 1, 2 and 3 of the report, be approved; 

 
(3) the Director of Regeneration and Place, in consultation with the 

Liverpool City Region Combined Authority and the Chairs and 
Spokespersons of the Economy, Regeneration and Development and 
the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committees, be 
authorised to amend the Programmes if required having due regard to 
any issues that may arise during design or consultation stages of 
projects; 

 
(4) Committee notes that the above authority and approvals are subject to 

the schemes at the Crescent, and proposed cycle way through 
Wallasey and New Brighton, being deferred until a consultation process 
has taken place; 

 
(5) Committee notes the significant overlap between the terms of reference 

of the Economy Regeneration and Development Committee and the 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee and 
requests that these committees work jointly with Economy 
Regeneration and Development Committee leading on active travel 
issues which affect major regeneration master plan projects and the 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee to lead on 
all other transport, active travel and road safety strategy and schemes. 
Officers are asked to liaise with the Chairs of both committees on all 
transport planning to ensure that the work programmes are always 
agreed. 

 
3.6  Following Committee approval of the programme, design work for the A554 

Bayswater Road/Harrison Drive scheme and the Leasowe Road scheme was 
progressed. 

 
Bayswater Road/Harrison Drive Scheme 
 

3.7  In February 2021, officers consulted with Ward Councillors (Wallasey Ward), 
Stakeholders, and Chairs and Spokespersons of Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Transport Committee. One Councillor enquired regarding the 
rationale behind the proposals, the cost of the proposals, how the mandatory 
cycle lane would be enforced, and why this route was chosen. The Councillor 
was informed that the existing link had been identified as one that would 
benefit from being brought in line with current standards and that the 
extension of the existing route would help protect cyclists and therefore 
encourage more cycling. They were also told that there was funding available 
from DfT’s Active Travel Fund and that the use of light segregation devices 
(Wand Orca’s) would make the route self-enforceable. The Councillor raised 
concerns regarding the maintenance of the cycle lane when light segregation 
units are installed and refuse vehicles are unable to sweep down such narrow 
lanes. These concerns, all objections and expressions of support received 

Page 137



 

during the public consultation and an officer response to each are 
summarised in Appendix 2 of this report. 

 
3.8 In March 2021 public consultation was undertaken with local residents,    

landowners, and businesses. Consultation has also been undertaken with the 
Emergency Services, Freight Transport Association, Road Haulage 
Association, Merseytravel and Wirral’s Active Travel Forum including the 
Royal National Institute of Blind People. Letters with plans were delivered to 
residents and businesses found within the vicinity of the scheme, informing 
them of the proposals. 

 
3.9  Following the establishment of the Active Travel Members Working Group in 

March 2021 it was considered appropriate that the Chairs and Spokespersons 
of both the Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee and the 
Environment, Transport and Climate Change Committee should be consulted 
on any proposed Active Travel schemes. Further design development was 
also undertaken on the scheme in order that the proposals could be improved 
to include bus-boarder type facilities and traffic regulation orders (double 
yellow lines). As a result of these changes it was consider appropriate to 
undertake a further consultation exercise.   All objections and expressions of 
support received during this consultation were recorded and are included, 
along with an officer’s response, within Appendix 2 of this report. 

 
3.10 In September 2021, officers re-consulted with Ward Councillors (Wallasey 

Ward), Stakeholders, Chairs and Spokespersons of Environment, Climate 
Emergency & Transport Committee and also Chairs and Spokespersons of 
the Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee. One Councillor 
stated that their comments were as per the first consultation (see paragraph 
3.7 of this report) in that the route does not connect to the existing network.  

 
3.11 In December 2021 a further public consultation exercise was undertaken with 

local residents,  landowners, and businesses. Further consultation has also 
been undertaken with the Emergency Services, Freight Transport Association, 
Road Haulage Association, Merseytravel and Wirral’s Active Travel Forum 
including the Royal National Institute of Blind People. Letters with plans were 
delivered to residents and businesses found within the vicinity of the scheme, 
informing them of the proposals. 

 
3.12 In total, during both public consultation periods (1 March 2021 to 19 March 

2021 and 8 December 2021 to 5 January 2022), 16 objections and 10 
expressions of support were received. The objections and officer response 
are summarised in Appendix 2 of this report.  

 
3.13  The feedback from the consultation has been discussed with the Chairs and 

Spokespersons of the Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee 
and the Chairs and Spokespersons of the Environment, Climate Emergency 
and Transport Committee, and with members of the Active Travel Working 
Group at its meeting of 6 October 2022.  

 
 

Page 138



 

Leasowe Road Scheme  
 

3.14 The Leasowe Road scheme has not been the subject of any ward member or 
public engagement.  
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 £70,000 has been approved to deliver the A554 Bayswater Road/Harrison 

Drive Road Scheme. This is funded by DfT’s Active Travel Fund Tranche 2 
programme and was approved by Policy and Resources Committee on 30 
June 2021 

4.2 Due to the current macro-economic situation, there is a significant national 
increase in costs which has impacted on the Active Travel Tranche 2 
Programme.  The current cost for the scheme is estimated to be £181,000.  

4.3 The Leasowe Road scheme currently has an allocated budget of £1,020,000 
with £489,000 of that funding being from the Active Travel Fund Tranche 2 
programme. 

4.4 Discussions are ongoing with the LCRCA regarding the scaling down of the 
overall Active Travel Fund Tranche 2 programme to ensure that total 
programme cost does not exceed the grant available.  It is proposed,  given 
that the current programme exceeds the Tranche 2 budget, that the Leasowe 
Road Project is withdrawn from the Tranche 2 programme.  A further 
opportunity to secure funding for active travel, including potentially for the 
Leasowe Road, is due to be announced by Active Travel England in October 
2022 via Tranche 4, and this will be considered at future meeting of the Active 
Travel Members Working Group . Active Travel England and the LCRCA  has 
also been approached with regard to slipping any unspent Tranche 2 monies 
into the future programme.  

4.5 The ongoing maintenance costs would be included within the existing highway 
maintenance programme.  Discussions are currently taking place with the 
LCRCA regarding future highway maintenance funding allocations from the 
City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement.  
 

5.0     LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 The Council has statutory duties as defined by the Highways Act 1980, Road 

Traffic Regulations Act 1984, Road Traffic Act 1988, Local Government Act 
1972 and the Traffic Management Act 2004. 

 
5.2 As per the decision of the Policy and Resources committee on the 30 June 

2021, the Director of Regeneration and Place, in consultation with the LCRCA  
and the Chairs and Spokespersons of the Economy, Regeneration and 
Development and the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committees, is authorised to amend the Programmes if required having due 
regard to any issues that may arise during design or consultation stages of 
projects.    

 

Page 139



 

5.3 Under the Council’s scheme of delegation this matter could have been dealt 
with as an officer decision if there had been 14 or less objections. However for 
the implementation of this type of planned highways and infrastructure 
schemes, where budget provision exists and in excess of 14 objections have 
been   submitted, it is a requirement for this Committee to consider the 
objections and make a decision on whether or not to implement this scheme.  

 
6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: ICT, STAFFING AND ASSETS 

 
6.1 All capital schemes funded from Active Travel Fund allocations have been 

added to the Council’s Capital Programme. Existing staff resources has been 
used for development of scheme included in the programme, supplemented 
where required with external design resources. 

 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
7.1     Failure to deliver an active travel scheme that is designed in accordance with 

the latest cycle design guidance would be viewed negatively by the DfT and 
would impact future funding allocations to the LCRCA from the DfT and in turn 
to Wirral. 

 
7.2 The original deadline for spending the funding was the end of March 2022 

however unavoidable delays in the wider programme as a result of a national 
shortage of segregation units this deadline has been extended to March 2023.   

 
8.0   ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  
 
8.1 Wirral Council has a statutory consultation process that is required for the 

undertaking of work on the adopted highway which require public consultation, 
objections to which would are considered under the Scheme of Delegation in 
the Council’s Constitution.  

 8.2 Further consultation was undertaken with the Emergency Services, Freight 
Transport Association, Road Haulage Association, Merseytravel & Wirral’s 
Active Travel Forum. Letters/plans were delivered to residents living within the 
vicinity of the scheme, informing them of the proposals and giving them the 
opportunity to provide comments/support/concerns/objections. This report 
provides details of objections and comments received.  

8.3 The Wirral Active Travel Forum is a formally constituted group which meets 
quarterly with interested public and private organisations and individuals, to 
support active travel as a simple, low cost and effective way for people to 
access life opportunities whilst increasing levels of physical activity in their 
day-to-day life. Membership of this group is open to all and the forum will 
continue to be engaged as these programmes develop.  

8.4 On 4 March 2021, the Economy Regeneration and Development Committee 
resolved to establish a Members Active Travel Working Group to support the 
work of Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee and the 
Environment. Climate Emergency and Transport Committee. The first meeting 
of this working group took place on 19 January 2022 and members of that 

Page 140



 

group were updated on the Active Travel Fund programme.  The responses to 
the consultation for the scheme were considered at a further meeting on  6 
October 2022 and the views of the group were taken into account in finalising 
this report.  

 
9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

  
9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 

carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to 
ensure equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, 
decision or activity. 

9.2  The Council has an obligation under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 to 
show due regard to the public sector equality duty and  mitigate any negative 
impacts that may affect people with protected characteristics..  

9.3 Whilst there are no equality implications arising from this report, the 
associated actions arising from the delivery may further need to assess any 
equality issues and mitigate any negative impact that may emerge.  

9.4 An Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and this is published at  
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-
assessments10.0  ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE 
IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1 Delivery of active travel projects will enable increased numbers of journeys to 

be undertaken by sustainable modes, especially for local journeys, therefore 
reducing residents’ reliance on the private car and reducing carbon emissions.  
Increasing cycling and walking will help combat climate change.  By 
encouraging and enabling people to travel more on foot and by cycle instead 
of private car harmful emissions will be reduced.  Promoting active travel can 
result in reduced emissions of Nitrogen Dioxide, particulate matter and 
Carbon Dioxide helping to tackle climate change and improve air quality. 

 
10.2 Gear Change Cycling Strategy produced by Government in Summer 2020 

identifies that mode shift to active transport is one of the most cost-effective 
ways of reducing transport emissions and that meeting the targets to double 
cycling and increasing walking would lead to savings of £567million annually 
from air quality alone and prevent 8,300 premature deaths each year in 
England and provide opportunity to improve green spaces and biodiversity. 

 
11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS 

 
11.1 Sustainable travel is at the heart of the Birkenhead 2040 Framework and 

emerging Local Plan.  In this context that this scheme it is part of a wider 
programme to deliver a prosperous, inclusive economy to benefit local 
residents. The proposed improvements to A554 Bayswater Road/Harrison 
Drive will have a positive impact on removing barriers to active travel and 
encouraging a switch from motorised for short journeys. 

Page 141

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments


 

11.2 The project supports the reduction in energy consumption as it will support the 
Cool 2 target of ‘a complete transition to fossil fuel free local travel by around 
2030’.  

 
11.3 Gear Change, the Governments Cycling Strategy, identifies that mode shift to 

active transport is one of the most cost-effective ways of reducing transport 
emissions and that meeting the targets to double cycling and increasing 
walking would lead to savings of £567million annually from air quality alone 
and prevent 8,300 premature deaths each year and provide opportunities to 
improve green spaces and biodiversity. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Julie Barnes 

  (Strategic Transport Infrastructure - Lead Commissioner - 
Transport and Tech) 

  telephone:  0151 606 2365 
  email:  juliebarnes@wirral.gov.uk 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1:   Scheme Drawings Ref Nos.  

   DC/0676/100 

   DC/0692/100 

Appendix 2:  Objections and Expressions of Support including Officer 
Responses.  

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Gear Change Plan for Cycling and Walking – Department for Transport July 2020 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-plan-for-england 

Gear Change Plan One Year One– Department for Transport July 2021 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attach
ment_data/file/1007815/gear-change-one-year-on.pdf 

Cycling Infrastructure Design Local Transport Note 1/20 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-120 

Sustrans Bike Life Report Liverpool City Region  

https://www.sustrans.org.uk/bike-life/bike-life-liverpool-city-region/ 

 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Officer Decision Notice Leasowe Road  

Active Travel Cross Party Member Working Group  

Economy Regeneration and Development 

17 February 2022 

4 March 2021  

 

Page 142

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-plan-for-england
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1007815/gear-change-one-year-on.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1007815/gear-change-one-year-on.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycle-infrastructure-design-ltn-120
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/bike-life/bike-life-liverpool-city-region/


 

Committee Item 33 

Active Travel Funding  

Economy Regeneration and Development 
Committee Item 6 

Active Travel Funding  

Policy and Resources Committee Item 11a  

 

 

8 June 2021  

 

30 June 2021 

 
 

Page 143



This page is intentionally left blank



3
.0m

O
N

E
-W

A
Y

C
Y

C
LE

LA
N

E

T
R

A
FFIC

LA
N

E

P
E

D
E

S
T

R
IA

N
FO

O
T

W
A

Y
P

E
D

E
S

T
R

IA
N

FO
O

T
W

A
Y

T
R

A
FFIC

LA
N

E

1.5m
 m

in.

O
N

E
-W

A
Y

C
Y

C
LE

LA
N

E

1.5m
 m

in.

N
O

T
E

S
W

R
IT

T
E

N
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 T

O
 B

E
 P

R
E

F
E

R
R

E
D

 T
O

 S
C

A
LE

D
.

T
his M

a
p is R

ep
ro

du
ce

d from
 O

rd
na

nce S
u

rvey M
ateria

l w
ith the

P
erm

issio
n of O

rd
na

nce S
u

rvey o
n B

e
ha

lf o
f T

h
e C

o
ntro

ller of H
er

M
ajesty's S

ta
tion

ery O
ffice

.   ©
 C

row
n C

opyright.
U

na
utho

rise
d R

e
prod

uction
 Infring

es C
ro

w
n

 C
op

yrig
ht a

nd
 M

ay L
ead to

P
ro

se
cu

tion
 o

r C
ivil P

rocee
dings.

L
icen

ce
 N

um
be

r 10
00

19
80

3. P
ub

lish
ed

 2014

P
rin

te
d

 @
 A

3

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 S

e
rvic

es

P
O

 B
o

x 290
B

rig
h

to
n

 S
treet

W
a

lla
sey

W
irra

l. C
H

27 9F
Q

w
w

w
.w

irra
l.gov.uk

H
ig

h
w

ay
s &

 In
fras

tru
c

tu
re

H
arriso

n D
rive/B

a
ysw

a
te

r R
oad

W
a

lla
se

y W
ard

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
a

n
d

a
tory C

ycle Lane

C
on

su
ltatio

n D
raw

ing

D
C

/0
692

/100
W

C
L

B
L

B

W
an

d O
rca

W
a

n
d

 O
rca

s S
pacing

TH
IS D

RAW
IN

G
 IS IN

TEN
D

ED
 FO

R CO
N

SU
LTATIO

N
PU

RPO
SES O

N
LY, W

ITH
 D

ETAILS PRESEN
TED

SU
BJECT TO

 REFIN
EM

EN
T AN

D
/O

R VALID
ATIO

N
AT D

ETAILED
 D

ESIG
N

 STAG
E.

C
R

O
S

S
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 V

IE
W

P
L

A
N

 V
IE

W

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



C
U

T
 LIN

E

C
U

T
 LIN

E

P
ro

p
o

se
d W

a
nd

 O
rca (R

e
fle

ctive
)

P
ro

p
o

se
d M

a
nd

atory C
ycle La

ne
(1.5m

 w
id

e
 m

inim
um

)

N
o

te
:

A
ssocia

te
d

 C
ycle S

ign
a

g
e to

 b
e

 erecte
d

 at re
g

ular in
te

rva
ls

a
lon

g th
e rou

te.

K
e

y:

P
ro

p
o

se
d B

u
s B

o
a

rde
r F

o
otw

ay
B

uild
-o

ut

P
ro

p
o

se
d E

co G
rip

 S
urfa

ce
 T

re
atm

e
nt

(C
o

lo
ur - 'B

u
ff')

P
ro

p
o

se
d D

o
ub

le
 Y

ello
w

 L
ine

s
(N

o
 W

a
iting

 a
t A

n
y T

im
e

 T
ra

ffic
R

e
g

u
latio

n O
rde

r)

3
.0 m

N
O

T
E

S
W

R
IT

T
E

N
 D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 T

O
 B

E
 P

R
E

F
E

R
R

E
D

 T
O

 S
C

A
LE

D
.

T
his M

a
p is R

ep
ro

du
ce

d from
 O

rd
na

nce S
u

rvey M
ateria

l w
ith the

P
erm

issio
n of O

rd
na

nce S
u

rvey o
n B

e
ha

lf o
f T

h
e C

o
ntro

ller of H
er

M
ajesty's S

ta
tion

ery O
ffice

.   ©
 C

row
n C

opyright.
U

na
utho

rise
d R

e
prod

uction
 Infring

es C
ro

w
n

 C
op

yrig
ht a

nd
 M

ay L
ead to

P
ro

se
cu

tion
 o

r C
ivil P

rocee
dings.

L
icen

ce
 N

um
be

r 10
00

19
80

3. P
ub

lish
ed

 2014

P
rin

te
d

 @
 A

3

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 S

e
rvic

es

P
O

 B
o

x 290
B

rig
h

to
n

 S
treet

W
a

lla
sey

W
irra

l. C
H

27 9F
Q

w
w

w
.w

irra
l.gov.uk

H
ig

h
w

ay
s &

 In
fras

tru
c

tu
re

H
arriso

n D
rive/B

a
ysw

a
te

r R
o

ad
W

alla
se

y W
a

rd
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 M

a
n

d
a

tory C
ycle Lane

C
on

su
ltatio

n D
raw

ing

D
C

/0
6

7
6

/1
0

0
W

C
L

B
G

R W
an

d O
rca

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
Y

C
LE

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
Y

C
LE

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

W
an

d O
rca

s S
p

acing

B
us B

oa
rd

er D
etail

N
ote:

Proposed Bus Boarder footw
ay build-out w

ith
crossing point and Bus Stop access kerbs.

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
O

U
B

LE
Y

E
L

LO
W

 LIN
E

S

TH
IS D

RAW
IN

G
 IS IN

TEN
D

ED
 FO

R CO
N

SU
LTATIO

N
PU

RPO
SES O

N
LY, W

ITH
 D

ETAILS PRESEN
TED

SU
BJECT TO

 REFIN
EM

EN
T AN

D
/O

R VALID
ATIO

N
AT D

ETAILED
 D

ESIG
N

 STAG
E.

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 D
O

U
B

LE
Y

E
L

LO
W

 LIN
E

S

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
Y

C
LE

IN
F

R
A

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

APPENDIX 2  
 
ACTIVE TRAVEL FUND TRANCHE 2 PROGRAMME AMENDMENT:  
A554 BAYSWATER ROAD/HARRISON DRIVE, WALLASEY WARD – 
PROPOSED MANDATORY CYCLE LANE. 
 
OBJECTIONS AND EXPRESSIONS OF SUPPORT  
 
 
OBJECTIONS (16 NO. INDIVIDUAL OBJECTORS) 
 
Objections are detailed below: 
 
1 The objector states that, Harrison Drive is not wide enough for a cycle lane. It 

will cause traffic problems if installed. 
 
In response; An advisory cycle lane already exists between Harrison 
Drive and Coastal Drive. The proposals will enhance the existing cycle 
lane and provide approximately 250 metres of new cycling 
infrastructure. The provision of improved facilities for cycling is likely to 
increase the number of people choosing to travel by cycle, which in 
turn, could be expected to reduce the number of people choosing to 
travel by other, less sustainable means of transport, thereby helping to 
reduce emissions, congestion, and parking issues. The number of lanes 
available to vehicles will not be affected by the proposals. The proposals 
will be monitored, and adjustments made if necessary. 

2 The objector states that, I live on the Mockbeggar estate, the entrance and 
exit from the estate is already hugely busy and treacherous. The provision of 
a buff-coloured access route will simply increase the fact the traffic won’t stop 
to let us get out of or into our homes. What about the lost parking & the knock-
on effect of that parking relocating to our already over parked estate. Parking 
here is already dangerous. Why is the existing coastal route not being 
considered? Also, from your provided map it looks like parking will also be lost 
on Bayswater Road, outside the golf club? The lanes of traffic are extremely 
busy and congested especially in the summer months & this will increase that 
volume. 

  
In response; An advisory cycle lane already exists between Harrison 
Drive and Coastal Drive. The proposals will enhance the existing cycle 
lane and provide approximately 250 metres of new cycling 
infrastructure. The provision of improved facilities for cycling is likely to 
increase the number of people choosing to travel by cycle, which in 
turn, could be expected to reduce the number of people choosing to 
travel by other, less sustainable means of transport, thereby helping to 
reduce emissions, congestion, and parking issues. The number of 
carriageway lanes available to vehicles will not be affected by the 
proposals. There is no evidence to suggest providing buff coloured 
surfacing across the cycle lane at the junction of Harrison 

Page 149



 

 

Drive/Mockbeggar Drive/Mockbeggar Wharf will cause vehicle drivers to 
block access. Buff coloured surfacing, along with relevant road 
markings and highway signs, will highlight the presence of the cycle 
lane to those wishing to access/egress Mockbeggar Drive/Mockbeggar 
Wharf. Incidents of illegal parking should be reported to Wirral Council, 
whilst incidents of dangerous parking should be reported to Merseyside 
Police who have the power to deal with such matters. This section of 
cycle link was chosen as it is not in line with current national design 
standards and will provide a connection to the existing off-carriageway 
coastal route. The proposals terminate approximately 120 metres before 
the entrance to Wallasey Golf Club, at which, off-street parking is 
available. The proposals will be monitored, and adjustments made if 
necessary. 

3 The objector states that, the proposed bus boarder footway build-out on the 
east side of Harrison Drive between Bayview Drive and Coastal Drive is 
redundant as it is no longer used for buses. It is therefore a pointless 
impediment. I assume the Keep Clear markings on the southbound 
carriageway of Harrison Drive will be retained at the entrance and exit to 
Mockbeggar Drive. I foresee a potential hazard as traffic from New Brighton 
queuing for the roundabout impedes the view of traffic attempting to enter 
Mockbeggar Drive. There is potential for vehicle entering Mockbeggar Drive 
across the traffic giving way on the Keep Clear instruction may impact a 
cyclist racing along the cycle lane. Clear marking/warning should also be on 
the cycle lane. This is not shown on the proposed map, only the road 
carriageway is shown with Keep Clear marking.  

 In response; Consultation undertaken with Merseytravel confirmed that 
the bus stop between Bayview Drive and Coastal Drive is still used for 
alighting purposes only and that it should therefore remain in place. 
‘KEEP CLEAR’ and all relevant road markings at the Harrison 
Drive/Mockbeggar Drive junction will be retained and remarked where 
faded. Such a hazard as the one described above (vehicle turning in to 
Mockbeggar Drive colliding with cyclist) already exists. The proposed 
buff coloured surfacing across the cycle lane at this junction, along with 
relevant highway signs and road markings, will improve road user 
awareness of the cycle lane and therefore reduce such a risk/hazard. All 
road users are expected to drive/ride/cycle with due care and attention, 
adapting their driving to the surrounding conditions and environment. 

4 The objector states that, going Northbound on Bayswater Road there is 
currently an existing cycling Infrastructure which guides cyclists on to a clearly 
marked lane on the paved area bypassing the roundabout at the junction with 
Harrison Drive. May I suggest that the proposed mandatory cycle lane in this 
scheme compels cyclists to take this infrastructure to avoid conflict with motor 
vehicles at the roundabout (cyclists not being noticed by vehicles travelling 
round the roundabout from Grove Road direction). 

Page 150



 

 

 In response; As suggested above it is proposed for the existing cycling 
infrastructure, at the Harrison Drive Roundabout, to remain.  

5 The objector states that, the Bus Stop shown on the map north of Bayview 
Drive has not been used for some years. The only buses serving (loose 
description of a 90-minute frequency) the area, travel past that stop, loop 
round the roundabout at Coastal Drive, and stop at the Bus Stop shown on 
the North side of Mockbeggar Drive. Hence the Bayview Bus Stop should be 
eliminated, and the proposed mandatory cycle lane continue to the Coastal 
Drive Roundabout. 

 In response; Consultation undertaken with Merseytravel confirmed that 
the bus stop between Bayview Drive and Coastal Drive is still used for 
alighting purposes only and that it should therefore remain in place. 

6 The objector states that, traffic travelling Northbound on Harrison Drive 
wishing to turn right in to Mockbeggar Drive are currently aided by “Keep 
Clear” painted on the Southbound carriageway as marked on the map. This is 
excellent as does enable traffic for Mockbeggar Drive to cross Southbound 
traffic queuing for the Harrison Drive/Bayswater Rd roundabout, I foresee an 
accident waiting to happen. When traffic is queuing for the roundabout, it will 
obstruct the view of any cyclist for drivers turning right across the queuing 
traffic. May I suggest that some signage such as “Give Way” be erected to 
prevent cyclists, who might otherwise have an uninterrupted route on their 
cycleway, from suddenly appearing in front of a vehicle whose driver thinks 
Southbound traffic is giving way. This is not a problem for drivers exiting 
Mockbeggar Drive as their drivers will have an uninterrupted view of the 
mandatory cycle lane past the entrance island. 

 In response; ‘KEEP CLEAR’ and all relevant road markings at the 
Harrison Drive/Mockbeggar Drive junction will be retained and remarked 
where faded. Such a hazard as the one described above (vehicle turning 
in to Mockbeggar Drive colliding with cyclist) already exists. The 
proposed buff coloured surfacing across the cycle lane at this junction, 
along with relevant highway signs and road markings, will improve road 
user awareness of the cycle lane and therefore reduce such a 
risk/hazard. The proposal will be signed/road marked in accordance with 
national design standards. All road users are expected to 
drive/ride/cycle with due care and attention, adapting their driving to the 
surrounding conditions and environment. 

7 The objector states that, a similar situation to my first suggestion exists for 
Southbound cyclists at the Harrison Drive/Bayswater Road roundabout. There 
is again a cycle path clearly marked on the paved area and the same 
suggestion applies – cyclists compelled to use the existing cycle path. 

 In response; As suggested above it is proposed for the existing cycling 
infrastructure, at the Harrison Drive Roundabout, to remain.  

Page 151



 

 

8 The objector states that, my comments relate to the section of Bayswater 
Road from the roundabout at Harrison Drive to Wallasey Golf Club as shown 
on the above drawing. I live in Bayswater Gardens and from my observations 
the amount of cycle traffic in the proposed locations on Bayswater Road is 
minimal, almost non-existent and does not warrant mandatory cycle lanes. 
Not only do I think the end result will look unsightly, it will considerably reduce 
the width of Bayswater Road. Presently when turning right into Bayswater 
Gardens from Bayswater Road there is a safe turn-in area in the centre of the 
road which allows through traffic to pass by unrestricted. Under the proposal 
this turn-in area would be lost and traffic would have to queue behind anyone 
turning into Bayswater Gardens until there is a break in the oncoming traffic. 
This proposal would also deprive people visiting St Nichols Church for 
funerals, weddings and general services places to park their vehicles as well 
as visitors to Wallasey Golf Club who when their car park is full park on 
Bayswater Road. 

  
 In response; Funding received from the DfT’s Active Travel Fund is to be 

used solely on Active Travel related projects. The Active Travel Fund’s 
objectives include creating an environment that is safe for cycling. The 
proposals provide a safe space for cycling in line with current national 
design standards and therefore encourage active travel along this route. 
The number of carriageway lanes available to vehicles will not be 
affected by the proposals and the width of the existing carriageway 
lanes will remain within acceptable UK standards for a 30mph road. 
Wide carriageway lane widths can often lead to an increase in vehicle 
speeds whilst a narrower lane can help reduce vehicle speeds and 
improve general road safety. The right turn filter in to Bayswater 
Gardens will be removed as part of the proposals to accommodate the 
cycle lane, however, Bayswater Gardens is a small cul-de-sac and it is 
not anticipated that the frequency and volume of traffic turning into 
Bayswater Gardens will cause any significant delays along Bayswater 
Road. 

 
9 The objector states, this road has become extremely busy due to the changes 

made in New Brighton and it is almost impossible to cross or pull out into 
traffic at times. The addition of the wand orcas will be a trip hazard. The 
current cycle lane is very rarely used and in the current situation re covid 19 
and the financial implications of it money would be better spent on something 
more essential and this statement forms part of my objection! Environmentally 
the air quality will be poor as traffic forms large queues in the road and in my 
opinion cycle lanes reduce width of roads and create havoc. If cycle lanes 
were used I would not object but many cycle lanes remain empty such as the 
one already in this road.  

 
 In response; Formalised uncontrolled pedestrian crossing points are 

provided at eight pedestrian refuge/splitter islands between Newport 

Page 152



 

 

Avenue and Coastal Drive. The Wand Orca’s will be installed as per 
national design advice and manufacturer’s instructions. The one-metre-
high bollard element of the unit includes a large reflective strip whilst 
white reflective paint is embedded into the base unit. Such products 
have been used widely across the country. The proposal will be 
monitored, and adjustments made if necessary. Funding received from 
the DfT’s Active Travel Fund is to be used solely on Active Travel related 
projects. The Active Travel Fund’s objectives include creating an 
environment that is safe for cycling. There is already an existing 
advisory cycle lane in place. The provision of improved facilities for 
cycling is likely to increase the number of people choosing to travel by 
cycle, which in turn, could be expected to reduce the number of people 
choosing to travel by other, less sustainable means of transport, 
thereby helping to reduce emissions, congestion, and parking issues. 
The number of carriageway lanes available to vehicles will not be 
affected by the proposals and the width of the existing carriageway 
lanes will remain within acceptable national standards for a 30mph road. 

 
10 The objector states, there is already a cycle lane on Harrison Drive which 

seems perfectly adequate. This scheme will waste funds - I view Harrison 
Drive from my house and there have been extremely few occasions in the last 
20 months when vehicles have parked for more than 5 minutes - presumably 
for a phone call or to check directions.  I think it was a mistake to remove the 
parking available along the central reservation along Kings Parade. In a 
normal summer this will push visitors to park in the Mockbeggar Drive estate, 
which is already heavily congested. To add more parking restrictions will add 
to the problem. 

 
 In response; Funding received from the DfT’s Active Travel Fund is to be 

used solely on Active Travel related projects. The Active Travel Fund’s 
objectives include creating an environment that is safe for cycling. The 
provision of improved facilities for cycling is likely to increase the 
number of people choosing to travel by cycle, which in turn, could be 
expected to reduce the number of people choosing to travel by other, 
less sustainable means of transport, thereby helping to reduce 
emissions and congestion. The provision of existing and proposed 
traffic regulation orders (double yellow lines) will help prevent vehicle 
parking along this section of Harrison Drive. Vehicles parking illegally 
within the Mockbeggar Estate should be reported to Wirral Council and 
vehicles parking dangerously should be reported to Merseyside Police 
who have the powers to deal with such matters. Parking along the 
central reservation of Kings Parade was a road safety issue that reduced 
both road-user and pedestrian visibility. 

 
11 The objector states, I am vehemently opposed to this scheme.  I limit my 

thoughts to the particular area from Harrison Drive to St Nicholas’ Church. 

Page 153



 

 

The proposed cycle lanes would reduce the width of the roadway for vehicular 
traffic by approximately 2 meters, and the consequent removal of the current 
reservation ‘hatchlings’ as a safe haven for traffic turning RIGHT into 
Bayswater Gardens where I live.  This is a big concern. At times traffic to and 
from New Brighton to Wallasey Village and the motorway can be very heavy, 
especially at commuting times and when there are shows at Floral Pavilion or 
big events being held on the waterfront.  At times it is non-stop and it 
becomes impossible to exit Bayswater Gardens in the direction you wish to 
travel, causing a diversion in travel direction or the decision to stay at home. 
As you will be aware, the attractions at the north end of Bayswater Road are 
the promenade and beach, Floral Pavilion and cinema, Morrison’s and the 
dips etc.  At the southern end, access to the motorway and the retail park at 
Bidston Moss.  Two pots of gold at each end of a rainbow. A further cause for 
concern is access along this route for emergency vehicles.  An almost daily 
occurrence.  If the ‘wand orcas’ are installed, will traffic be able to take 
evasive action?  Add to this the fact that the route is used all the time by 
heavy goods vehicles and an hourly bus route. Compared to motor traffic, the 
amount of cycle traffic is minuscule, and the proposed plan is, in my opinion, 
preposterous. I feel that Bayswater Road is absorbing all the pressure it can 
at present, and suggest that it could do with a little more width instead of the 
narrowing of it. Is the intention for the proposed cycle lanes to run the whole 
length of the road and then onto Greenleas Road, or possibly the North Wirral 
Approach Road?  

In response; The removal of the hatched right turn (on Bayswater Road 
turning into Bayswater Gardens) will not make it more difficult to access 
or egress Bayswater Gardens. It could be reasonably assumed that by 
removing the ability of vehicles to undertake right-turning vehicles, the 
referenced manoeuvres are made easier and safer. The narrowing of 
carriageway lane widths can also cause drivers to drive with more 
caution and care, reducing their speed, leading to easier and safer 
manoeuvres. The provision of improved facilities for cycling is likely to 
increase the number of people choosing to travel by cycle, which in 
turn, could be expected to reduce the number of people choosing to 
travel by other, less sustainable means of transport, thereby helping to 
reduce emissions and congestion. The Emergency Services, 
Merseytravel and haulage associations were consulted on the proposals 
and no objections or concerns were raised. The proposed cycle lane will 
terminate approximately 55m south of Bayswater Gardens, prior to St. 
Nicholas’ Church and does not extend to Greenleas Road or North 
Wirral Approach Road. 

12 The objector states, I wish to object to this scheme as it is a complete waste 
of money owing to the fact that the cycling facilities already provided are more 
than ample within the vicinity. The roads on Coastal Drive are in dire need of 
attention, yet the council are obsessed with spending scarce resources on 
cycle lanes. Stop deliberately trying to force motorists off the road. If this is the 

Page 154



 

 

end game - and it clearly is - then state that fact, be transparent, and stop 
doing it via stealth and in an insidious fashion. As this is yet another 
environmental committee driven agenda, and driven by the Chair, the 
councillor for Bidston. I trust this will not be a fait accompli and resident's 
views will actually be listened to, rather than trying to manage their 
dissatisfaction which seems to be the council MO 

 
 In response; The proposals will be funded via The DfT’s Active Travel 

Fund, to be used solely on Active Travel related projects. It is not funded 
via Wirral Council Tax or other such revenue sources. The proposals 
bring the existing advisory cycle lane in line with current national design 
standards. Any minor carriageway defects found to need repair, within 
the limits of the proposal, will be addressed or referred to Wirral 
Council’s Highway’s Team (if more substantial resurfacing works are 
required). Carriageway improvements work have been undertaken along 
Coastal Drive in 2021. The number of carriageway lanes available to 
vehicles will not be affected by the proposals and as such no motorist 
will be forced off the road. The Chair (& Ward Councillor for Bidston & 
St. James) of the Environment, Climate Change and Transport 
Committee was not involved in establishing this proposal. The Active 
Travel Fund was set up by Central Government’s Department for 
Transport with the specific aim of creating environments that are safe 
for (and therefore encourage) active travel. All objections, comments, 
and comments of support received as part of the public consultation, 
along with an Officer’s response, are listed within this document 
(Appendix 2). 

 
13 The objector states that, following the creation of the segregated cycle lane in 

New Ferry, so called ‘orcas’ were installed to prevent vehicles driving into the 
cycle lanes. The orcas, as you will by now be aware, are low level plastic 
‘bumps’. As well as preventing cars and vans, they also prevent the 
mechanised Biffa road sweepers. The low level axles on these vehicles and 
the brackets for the brushes, make mechanised road sweeping of the cycle 
lanes impossible. The same issue occurs with the ‘wands’. As a result, the 
only way to remove accumulated litter and debris, including broken glass, is 
with a manual sweep. I cannot find any reference to this additional cost in the 
recent budget and can therefore only assume that Biffa either absorb this cost 
(unlikely) or the areas are not swept (more likely).  

In response; The issue referenced relates to certain street cleansing 
vehicles struggling to access a cycle lane when the width is 1.5m. At 
New Chester Road, New Ferry, cleansing of the cycle lane is undertaken 
using small mechanical sweepers and manual sweeping teams. At 
Bayswater Road/Harrison Drive, the proposed cycle lane width will be in 
excess of 1.5 metres and as such access for maintenance and cleansing 
will not present the same issue. 

Page 155



 

 

14 The objector states, the route does not connect to the existing network. I 
would have thought connecting with Kings Parade cycle lane would have 
made more impact and the stretch from Bayswater Gardens to almost 
Newport Avenue again makes no connection to any other cycle lane.  

In response; At the northerly end, nearest to Coastal Drive, the 
proposals will connect to existing on-footway cycling infrastructure, that 
then lead to Kings Parade. At the Harrison Drive Roundabout, Bayswater 
Road leg, the footways have cycling infrastructure in the form of signs, 
footway markings and an entry (towards Kings Parade) and exit (on to 
Bayswater Rd) dropped kerb. However, beyond those points there is 
little (other than the short section of advisory white road lining) to 
assist, enable or encourage cycling. By extending the cycle link here, 
users will be able to cycle along said stretch (to and from these points) 
in a much safer environment than they can at present. 

15 The objector states, I wish to object to the proposed inclusion of unrestricted 
multi-user bus boarder strips without markings on cycleway to require cyclists 
to come to a full stop before proceeding across the bus boarder strip. My 
reason for this objection is that it takes time for a bus driver to deploy a ramp 
and for wheelchair-users, visually impaired people and other people with 
limited mobility to embark and disembark. Trying to perform these operations 
while cyclists are whizzing by at 30mph would not be safe. Also, people with 
learning difficulties may be confused or upset by what they consider to be 
unusual and/or threatening road conditions. All cyclists should be required to 
come to a full stop to allow them to assess whether it is safe to proceed 
across the bus boarder strip when a bus is about to arrive and/or depart. 

 In response; The drawings are intended for consultation purposes only 
with details presented subject to refinement or validation at detailed 
design stage. The bus boarders will be of raised/angled ramp form (like 
a speed cushion) to slow cyclists, with appropriate road markings in-line 
with current national design standards to indicate pedestrian priority. 
Bollards, highway signs, hazard paving and coloured surfacing will be 
used at the bus boarders to further highlight the presence of cyclists 
and pedestrians. All road users are expected to drive/ride/cycle with due 
care and attention, adapting their driving to the surrounding conditions 
and environment. There is good intervisibility along this route, 
minimising the risk of conflict between pedestrians and cyclists. The 
proposals where shared with Merseytravel who stated they had no 
objection (due to low patronage levels at these stops) on the grounds 
that appropriate markings and signs are provided. The proposals will be 
monitored, and adjustments made if necessary.  

16  The objector states, it is at times difficult for pedestrians to cross Harrison 
Drive due to the speed and volume of the existing traffic. Adding a permanent 
cycle way will increase the danger for pedestrians by having to negotiate the 
cycle path and the barrier presented by the Orca bollards, which themselves 

Page 156



 

 

can create a significant trip hazard to people in close proximity to fast moving 
vehicles, especially for the elderly and infirm. The Bus Boarder footway 
outbuild must surely be an accident waiting to happen. It is fair to say that the 
majority of people using the bus service from the stop at the junction of 
Harrison Drive and Mockbeggar Drive are elderly, I am one of them. The 
proposed scheme means that passengers using the bus have to cross the 
cycle lane to board, and step into the cycle lane to alight, which will be a 
potentially dangerous practice. As a cyclist myself, I am very aware that 
people have differing abilities when cycling. Some ride at a leisurely pace 
whilst others ride at what appears to be as fast as they can, if one of the latter 
decides to overtake one of the formers there is not enough room in a lane 1.5 
metres in width to do it safely. This can be extremely dangerous and 
unnerving in the confines of a fixed barrier as I experienced myself when the 
temporary cycle lane was constructed last year on Kings Parade. This 
situation will be further exacerbated with the increased use of e-bikes and 
electric scooters. In the event of a vehicle breakdown, where is the broken-
down vehicle supposed to stop? There will be no easy access to the kerbside 
through the 3-metre gap between the bollards, which could result in the 
vehicle having to stop on the reduced width carriageway, thereby hindering 
the flow of traffic considerably. 

 In response; An advisory cycle lane already exists between Harrison 
Drive and Coastal Drive. The provision of improved facilities for cycling 
is likely to increase the number of people choosing to travel by cycle, 
which in turn, could be expected to reduce the number of people 
choosing to travel by other, less sustainable means of transport, thereby 
helping to reduce emissions and congestion. Wirral Council would 
encourage pedestrians to cross at the formalised uncontrolled 
pedestrian crossing points located within limits of the proposals (there 
are eight pedestrian refuge/splitter island crossing points between 
Newport Avenue and Coastal Drive). No Wand Orca’s will be laid at such 
formalised pedestrian crossing points. Wand Orca installation will be in 
line with national design advice and manufacturer’s instructions. The 
one-metre-high bollard element of the unit includes a large reflective 
strip whilst white reflective paint is embedded into the base unit. Such 
products have been used widely across the country. At the bus boarder 
facility, pedestrians have right of way, and cyclists are expected to 
observe this. The bus boarders will be of raised/angled ramp form (like a 
speed cushion) to slow cyclists, with appropriate road markings in-line 
with current national design guidance to indicate pedestrian priority. 
Bollards, highway signs, hazard paving and coloured surfacing will also 
be used to further highlight the presence of cyclists and pedestrians. 
There is good intervisibility along this route, minimising the risk of 
conflict between pedestrians and cyclists. The proposals where shared 
with Merseytravel who stated they had no objection (due to low 
patronage levels at these stops) on the grounds that appropriate 
markings and signs are provided. The proposals will be monitored, and 

Page 157



 

 

adjustments made if necessary. It is currently illegal to ride electric 
scooters on public highway – incidents of such should be reported to 
Merseyside Police who have the powers to seize such vehicles. In the 
event of vehicle breakdown, motorists should consider the needs of all 
road users when finding a place of temporary relative safety. 

17 The objector states, I feel strongly against the proposed parking restrictions 
on Bayswater Road/ Harrison Drive. My objection is that the restrictions do not 
go far enough taking into account the residents. You should be looking at 
solving a parking problem not creating a bigger one which I feel this you will 
do. After 15 years of raising these issues, I would ask that you once again to 
take into account the constant problems we encounter on a daily basis and 
come up with a solution that with benefits everyone affected. 

 
In response; The proposed traffic regulation orders (double yellow lines) 
are confined to the limits of the cycling infrastructure to enhance its 
functionality. Instances of illegal parking should be reported to Wirral 
Council. Instances of dangerous parking should be reported to 
Merseyside Police who have the powers to deal with such matters. The 
provision of improved facilities for cycling is likely to increase the 
number of people choosing to travel by cycle, which in turn, could be 
expected to reduce the number of people choosing to travel by other, 
less sustainable means of transport, thereby helping to reduce 
emissions, congestion, and parking issues. The issue raised has been 
forwarded to the relevant team for consideration. 

18 We are planning to replace some of our windows later this year. How will 
scaffolding and window contractors be able to offload equipment and 
materials? How will my window cleaner be able to access the rear of my 
property with his vehicle to carry out work? The scheme is funded by the DfT. 
Have your maintenance contractors funded ongoing highway cleaning around 
the proposed new Wand Orca type bollards? Does Wirral BC have the 
additional revenue budget to maintain damaged bollards. 
It is my observation that similar local schemes are not maintained properly 
and therefore become ineffective and an eyesore. This is a major route into 
New Brighton, and I believe the existing cycle route is appropriate and 
requires less revenue budget maintenance. 
 
In response; There are already loading and unloading restrictions in 
place along the easterly side of Harrison Drive, between Mockbeggar 
Wharf and Coastal Drive. Applications can be made to Wirral Council’s 
Parking Services (via Wirral’s website) for dispensation permits during 
such home improvement works. Wand Orca bollards will be spaced at a 
minimum of 4m centres. Cleansing of the highway, regardless of the 
presence or not of cycle lanes, forms part of Wirral Council’s 
maintenance tasks and Harrison Drive/Bayswater Road will continue to 
be maintained and cleansed as such. Although the level of maintenance 
intervention relating to damaged bollards is not expected to be high, 
repair/replacement of any damaged bollards will be funded via a 
combination of any remaining DfT Active Travel Fund budget and 

Page 158



 

 

Wirral’s Highway Maintenance budget. Discussions are ongoing 
between Wirral Council and the LCRCA regarding future highway 
maintenance funding allocations from the City Region Sustainable 
Transport Settlement. 

 
19 The objector states, regarding the installation of 'Orca' wands on the existing 

and newly proposed cycle way at Harrison Drive/Bayswater Road, I wish to 
object most strongly. This method of traffic separation has already been 
denounced by several road safety organisations, and their use has been 
found to be inappropriate and to actually be instrumental in the cause of 
accidents. Statements from the British Motorcycle Group and British 
Motorcyclists Federation: ''evidence from the monitoring of a `Mini-Orca 
scheme in the City of London which, according to MAG and BMF, which 
caused 55 pedestrians to trip in the first 24 hours following installation. The 
statement says the scheme has now been removed.'' In addition, the use of 
light segregation devices, including `Armadillos, `Orcas and `Mini Orcas, on 
our roads raises serious safety concerns in respect to riders of Powered Two 
Wheelers (PTWs). Inadvertent contact with the devices can quickly destabilise 
any two-wheeled vehicle with the potential to throw the rider into the path of 
other road users.'' In addition: These devices are easily damaged and broken 
by heavy vehicles, leaving fixing bolts exposed and protruding from the road 
surface, thus creating a further hazard to riders and pedestrians alike.'' A 
similar scheme in Bolton has been removed, the following was reported: '' 
John Kelly, the boroughs assistant Highways Director, stated: The main 
themes from the consultation are focused on safety, maintenance, pedestrian 
movement and congestion. The main safety issue identified was associated 
with parking in the cycle lane and the requirement for cyclist to move out into 
the vehicle lane or onto the footpath to pass. The maintenance of the cycle 
lane was also a concern, both in terms of its usability and its visual 
appearance from rubbish and debris accumulation. Generally, the scheme 
has been poorly received with 68 per cent dissatisfied with the scheme as 
implemented''. As a pensioner I already have major difficulty in crossing roads 
with cycle lanes safely, especially this very busy road, and do not see how 
these schemes would assist pedestrians in any way, on the contrary I propose 
that they pose an additional trip hazard.  

 
 In response; The statement referenced and issued by MAG and BMF 
refers specifically to a scheme in London where Mini Orcas where 
installed. A Mini Orca is a low-level cycle lane segregation unit. Mini 
Orcas have not been used on Wirral and will not be used at Bayswater 
Road/Harrison Drive. At Bayswater Road/Harrison Drive it is intended for 
Wand Orca’s to be installed. The wand is effectively a 1m high bollard 
that includes a large reflective strip. This is attached to a low level 
100mm high kerb-like orca base unit that has white reflective paint 
embedded. It is installed on the carriageway, intermittently at minimum 
four metre intervals, behind a 150mm wide reflective solid white line that 
runs the full length of the cycle lane. This, along with coloured surfacing 
and highway signs, will indicate to road users the presence of a 
mandatory cycle lane. Vehicle users, including motorcycles, are 

Page 159



 

 

expected to drive with due care and attention, adapting their driving 
accordingly to recognise the presence of other road users on the 
highway. The Wand Orca’s will be fitted as per national and 
manufacturer design advice. The second statement referenced, and 
issued by John Kelly of Bolton Council, states that vehicle parking in the 
Chorley New Road cycle lane was an issue. To prevent such issues at 
Bayswater Road/Harrison Drive, Wand Orca’s at regular intervals (4 
metre centres minimum) will be used, along with existing and proposed 
traffic regulation orders (double yellow lines). The Bolton Council 
statement also references concerns relating to rubbish and debris 
accumulation. Bayswater Road and Harrison Drive will continue to be 
maintained as part of Wirral Council’s Street Cleansing and maintenance 
duties. Although not referenced within the above objection, Mr Kelly of 
Bolton Council, also stated that the results of the consultation survey, 
“provided an indication that cyclists are using the corridor more as well 
as an increased perception of safety for cyclists.” Wirral Council would 
encourage pedestrians to cross at the formalised uncontrolled 
pedestrian crossing points located within limits of the proposals (there 
are eight pedestrian refuge/splitter island crossing points between 
Newport Avenue and Coastal Drive). No Wand Orca’s will be laid at such 
formalised pedestrian crossing points. All Wand Orca’s installed will be 
done so in line with national design advice and manufacturer’s 
instructions. The proposals will be monitored, and adjustments made if 
necessary. 

 

EXPRESSIONS OF SUPPORT (10 NO. INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTERS) 

Expressions of support are detailed below: 

1 The supporter states, I support the scheme. The cycling infrastructure will 
make prospective cyclists feel safer on our roads. If we can encourage more 
cyclists this will be beneficial for those that cycle (health), will be beneficial for 
those that drive (it separates cyclists and cars and means road and parking 
spaces are available for those that have to drive) and beneficial for those that 
live alongside the route with reduced air and noise pollution. 

 
 In response; Noted.  
 
2 The supporter states, I am happy with what you are proposing. Thank you for 

sharing with me. 
 
 In response; Noted.  
 
3 The supporter states, I would like to write in support of this cycle lane, as you 

probably mainly receive complaints. There is plenty of room for this 
development [including off road parking] As traffic often exits the motorway 

Page 160



 

 

too fast, it feels unsafe cycling Bayswater Rd at the moment. Please consider 
clear signage before the clearway starts. Either to Greenleas, Cross Lane or 
via Old Green Lane to the Gun site, both NCN56 cycleway. This year I have 
seen 4 or 5 cyclists on the clearway and witnessed a near accident. Obviously 
the "Clearway" sign just beyond Greenleas is not explanatory enough for 
some, so a NO CYCLING sign may need adding to the post. Keep up the 
good work to make cycling safer for all. 

 
 In response; Noted. 
 
4 The supporter states, am in support of this scheme, as it links two sections of 

existing cycle infrastructure. In addition, the Bayswater Road section should 
improve safety as it moves the access/egress points away from the 
roundabout at its junction with Harrison Drive. This project, and others like it, 
should encourage novice cyclists and parents with young children to cycle due 
to the safety benefits they offer. 

 
 In response; Noted. 
 
5 The supporter states, good to see the proposed upgrade to light segregation, 

and congrats on getting Tower Road completed. I have two queries regarding 
the A554 scheme: 1. Does/Will the lane meet the minimum 1.5m width 
requirement specified in LTN1-20? 2. How does the treatment of the two bus 
stops meet the requirements of LTN1-20? Presumably a bus stop bypass or 
boarder should be implemented rather than chopping the bus stop out of the 
lane? 

 
 In response; The proposed cycle lane will be a minimum of 1.5m wide at 

“pinch points” only if a greater width is unachievable. It is therefore in 
line with DfT’s LTN1/20 Cycle Infrastructure Design guidance. Bus 
Boarders are proposed at all Bus Stops within the limits of the 
proposals. 

 
6 The supporter states, I totally agree with the scheme especially since New 

Brighton regeneration the traffic has increased considerably, and it is 
becoming very dangerous for cyclists. We have a national obesity problem yet 
little provision is made for cyclists. the last proposed cyclist lane along warren 
drive was dismissed. Wirral has hardly any cycle lanes lacking behind many 
other countries. I would also like to propose that you think about introducing 
more cycling lanes as well. Cycling along grove road is a nightmare. 

 
 In response; Noted. 
 
7 The supporter states, Looks good. Big fan of the orcas as a quick fix to 

provide a layer of safety for people on bikes, hand cycles, etc. The bus stops 
stand out to me. I've been hit with a car while passing a bus - is there a way 

Page 161



 

 

we can have the cycle lane continue, with a 'mini zebra crossing' for people 
entering/exiting buses? I think this would make a huge difference to how many 
people use lanes like this. I know the same problem still exists on the New 
Chester Road scheme (this is where I was hit) so would love to see a creative 
solution for the bus stops here. Thanks for your work on this.  

 
 In response; A combination of insufficient road widths and low 

patronage levels at these Bus Stops mean a Bus-Stop Bypass design 
has not been considered. Instead, a Bus Boarder type design is intended 
with relevant road markings and signage as per the latest UK cycle 
infrastructure design guidance (LTN1/20). 

 
8 The supporter states, although in favour of the scheme my concern is in 

regards to local parking issues currently causing problems. I live in 
Mockbeggar Wharf which is a cul-de-sac that is continually being used by 
residents of nearby flats to park, causing obstruction to those living here.  
Residents of the flats also continue to park on the pavements entering 
Mockbeggar Drive / Wharf. These parking issues are exacerbated during 
summer months when visitors to the area also park their vehicles within this 
area and the Harrison Drive approach to the promenade. If the scheme gets 
the 'go ahead' then I would strongly request "resident only" signs be erected 
at the entrance to Mockbeggar Wharf, and that the current 'Mockbeggar 
Wharf' sign be replaced due to it currently being damaged beyond repair. 
 
In response; Parking Restrictions (traffic regulation orders – double yellow 
lines) are already in place along sections of the entrance in to Mockbeggar 
Wharf. Requests for further parking restrictions, and/or Resident Parking 
Schemes, to be considered should be made via Wirral Council’s website. 
Instances of illegal parking should be reported to Wirral Council. Instances of 
dangerous parking should be reported to Merseyside Police who have the 
powers to deal with such matters. General road safety concerns should be 
submitted via Wirral Council’s website. The issues raised have been forwarded 
to the relevant team for consideration. 

 
9 The supporter states, I would like to support this proposal and would like to 

encourage Wirral Council to promote more cycling schemes to encourage 
people to take more exercise and become more healthier. The lesson we 
must learn from this Pandemic and from what the World Health Organisation 
has recently released in a report is that in countries where obesity is over 50% 
(including the UK) 90% of the people that have died from Covid 19 where 
obese. We must take this opportunity and encourage people to change the 
way the live their lives, not only for the current generations but for future 
generations. I have heard all the arguments about congestion and that this will 
lead to greater congestion, the real problem with congestion is that there are 
too many cars on the roads full stop. I think that most of the people who will 
object to this scheme, will on the basis that it may infringe on their own 

Page 162



 

 

personnel lives - how selfish would that be to use as an excuse against an 
opportunity to make changes that could promote a healthier future for all. 

 
In response; Noted. 

 
10 The supporter states, I support the scheme 100% but would ask that you 

consider extending the yellow lines/no parking to the junction of Bayswater 
Road/Newport Avenue which is the junction opposite Wallasey Golf Club. My 
reason for asking is to highlight the increased parking overflow from Wallasey 
Golf Club. The members of the golf club are parking their cars, many of which 
are very large, on the bend which forms the entrance/exit into and out off 
Newport Avenue/Bayswater Road. This makes visibility very poor on what is a 
very busy road. I would ask that you give this some consideration in the 
interests of road and pedestrian safety.  

 
In response; General road safety concerns should be submitted via Wirral 
Council’s website. The issue raised has been forwarded to the relevant team 
for consideration. Instances of illegal parking should be reported to Wirral 
Council. Instances of dangerous parking should be reported to Merseyside 
Police who have the powers to deal with such matters. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
  
 

 
 

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY 20 October 2022 
 

REPORT TITLE: 2022-23 REVENUE & CAPITAL BUDGET 

MONITORING FOR QUARTER ONE (1 APR – 30 JUN) 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF NEIGBOURHOODS 

 
 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
This report sets out the financial monitoring information for the Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Transport Committee as at quarter 1 (1 Apr – 30 Jun) of 2022-23. The 
report provides Members with an overview of budget performance, including progress on 
the delivery of the 2022-23 saving programme and a summary of reserves to enable the 
Committee to take ownership of the budgets and provide robust challenge and scrutiny to 
Officers on the performance of those budgets.  
 
Managing a budget requires difficult decisions to ensure that a balanced position can be 
presented. Regular Member engagement, which this report forms part of, is considered 
essential in delivering effective governance and financial oversight.  
 
At the end of Quarter 1, there is a forecast adverse position of £2.014m on the Committees 
net revenue budget, of  £63.905m. This position is based on activity to date, projected 
trends in income and expenditure and potential mitigation to offset areas of adverse 
variance. 
 
This matter affects all Wards within the Borough and is not a key decision. 
 
The report contributes to the Wirral Plan 2021-2026 in supporting the organisation in 
meeting all Council priorities. 
 
RECOMMENDATION/S 
 
The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport committee is recommended to: 
 

1. Note the forecast revenue position presented at Quarter 1. 
 

2. Note the progress on delivery of the 2022-23 savings programme at Quarter 1. 
 

3. Note the forecast level of reserves at Quarter 1. 
 

4. Note the forecast capital position presented at Quarter 1. 
 

Page 165

Agenda Item 9



 

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

1.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1.1 It is vitally important that the Council has robust processes in place to manage 
and monitor the in-year financial position, to ensure it delivers a balanced position at 
the end of the year 

 
1.2  Regular monitoring and reporting of the revenue budgets and savings achievements 

enables decisions to be taken in a timely manner, which may produce revenue 
benefits and will improve financial control of Wirral Council. 

 
1.3  This report presents timely information on the Quarter 1 financial position for 

2022/23. 
 
 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
2.1 The Policy & Resources Committee has previously determined the budget 

monitoring process to follow and this report details the agreed course of action. 
 
2.2 In striving to manage budgets, available options have been evaluated to maintain a 

balance between service delivery and a balanced budget. 
  
 
3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
3.1 As at the end of June 22 (Quarter 1), the financial forecast year end position for 

Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee is an adverse position of 
£2.014m on the Committees net revenue budget, of £63.905m.   

 
3.2 The Directorate continues to recover from the impact of COVID-19 and all services 

that were operating in a limited capacity in 2021/22 have now reopened. However, 
income generation has not yet returned to pre pandemic levels in Quarter 1 due to 
footfall and usage in some areas being less than it was in 2019/20.  In addition, the 
ongoing cost of living pressures have adversely impacted income generation and 
energy costs. 

 
3.3 The 2022/23 Committee budget consists of £1.734m relating to savings. Work 

commenced to achieve these savings following agreement at Budget Council in 
February.  However, there are risks and pressures associated with some of these 
areas as income generation could be impacted by the cost of living pressures.   

 

Page 166



 

 

TABLE 1 2022/23 Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee – 
Service Budget & Forecast Outturn 

  Budget Forecast Variance 
Adverse/ 

Favourable 

    
 

(+ Fav / - Adv)   

  £000 £000 £000 %   

    

  

    

Environment (including Parks and 
Open Spaces) 

7,607 7,645 -38 0% Adverse 

Highways Management and 
Infrastructure 

5,211 6,346 -1,135 -22% Adverse 

Recycling and Waste 28,500 29,464 -964 -3% Adverse 

Transport Levy 22,587 22,464 123 1% Favourable 

    
  

    

    

  

    

Total Surplus/ (Deficit) 63,905 65,919 -2,014 -3% Adverse 

            

 
 
3.4 Highways and Infrastructure: An adverse variance of £1.135m is forecast for 

2022/23.  This is made up of the following adverse variances: 

 £0.571m relates to a shortfall in car parking income as ticket sales are 
approximately 75% of pre pandemic levels due to an increase in hybrid 
working and changes in customer behaviour. 

 £0.5m shortfall relates to Car Parking charges at new sites which has not yet 
been implemented and is on hold at the request of the Policy and Resources 
Committee. 

 Street Lighting adverse variance of £0.064m due to increases in energy costs. 
However, if the Authority had not invested in LED street lighting, then it is 
estimated energy bills would have been approximately 60% higher.  

 
 
3.5 To mitigate this variance, several remedial actions have been identified and are 

being actioned. These are included in the Table 2, section 3.10 of the report above 
and in summary are: 

 £0.572m use of the carried forward Covid tranche funding planned for the 
expected continuing reduction in car parking income due to lower than pre-
pandemic levels of footfall.  As this is one-off funding, plans are in 
development to fully mitigate any recurrent shortfall in 23/24 and will be 
brought forward in that year  

 There are mitigations of £0.05m relating to employee buy back of annual 
leave, with opportunities for further mitigation if employees choose to buy 
back a proportion of their leave in year. 

 
 
3.6  Parks & Environment: An adverse variance of £1.004m is forecast for 2022/23. 

£0.965m is due to overall increases in the waste contract, which is linked to rises in 
inflation and the Consumer Price Index (CPI) rate.  Negotiations are taking place with 
the contractor to determine whether any reductions can be sought, but as the impact 

Page 167



 

 

of national economic situation does not seem to be dissipating, a wholescale review 
of council priorities will need to take place to minimise the impact on the budget.  

 
3.7 In addition, there is a shortfall in income relating to enforcement for fines associated 

with litter and dog fouling.  The service is seeking to mitigate this through continuing 
negotiations with the contractors. 

 
3.8 Parks and Tree Management is forecasting and adverse variance of £0.161m. This 

is due to inflationary increases and contract costs.  This is mitigated in part through 
utilising the remaining reserve relating to this area. The service will aim to mitigate 
the remaining adverse variance through maximising income generating opportunities 
and reviewing expenditure on planned preventative maintenance and through 
favourable variances relating to Regulatory Services. 
 

3.9 Regulatory Services is reporting a favourable variance of £0.122m.  This is due to 
employees, as the service has faced challenges in recruiting and retaining staff due 
to current market demand. Some employee costs are funded through COVID-19 
grants as they continue to complete work on the outgoing COVID-19 response. This 
funding will end during this year and will not present any recurrent pressures into 
2023/24. 

 
3.10 Transport Levy: A favourable variance of £0.123m is reported at Quarter 1.  This is 

due to are reduction in overall charges from Liverpool City Region. 
 
 
TABLE 2 2022/23 Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee – 

Subjective Budget & Forecast Outturn 

  Budget Forecast Variance 
Adverse/ 

Favourable 

    
 

(+ Fav / - Adv)   

  £000 £000 £000 %   

    
  

    

Income -17,641 -17,181 -460 3% Adverse 

    
  

    

Expenditure:   
  

    

Employee 15,276 14,357 919 6% Favourable 

Non Pay 66,270 68,743 -2,473 -4% Adverse 

Total Expenditure 81,546 83,100 -1,554 -2% Adverse 

    
  

    

    
  

    

Total Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

63,905 65,919 -2,014 -3% Adverse 

            

 

Budget Virements  
3.11 There have been no budget virements in quarter 1 
 
 

Page 168



 

 

 
Progress on delivery of the 2022-23 savings programme. 

3.12 In terms of savings, £1.564m of the £1.734m savings targets are either delivered or 
on track to be delivered. Representing 90% of the total savings target with a further 
10% or £0.17m anticipated to be delivered. The table below summarises this 
progress by Directorate: 
 

TABLE 2: SUMMARY OF PROGRESS ON DELIVERY OF 2022-23 SAVINGS 

Committee Approved 
Saving 

Green Amber Red Mitigation   Actual 
Savings 

Delivered 
to Date 

Environment, 
Climate 
Emergency and 
Transport 

£1.734m £1.564m £0.17m £0.0m £0.17m  £0.674m 

  
3.13 For savings rated as Amber, an equal amount of temporary in-year mitigation has 

been identified to cover any shortfalls which may occur. For saving rated as red, a 
bid will need to be made from the £3m contingency fund set up for non-achieved 
savings at the end of the year.   

 
3.14 Full details on the progress on specific savings can be found in Appendix 1. 
 

Earmarked Reserves 
3.15 Earmarked reserves represent money that has been set aside for a clearly defined 

purpose, and which is available to meet future expenditure in that area. The use of 
earmarked reserves is only permitted with the approval of the Section 151 officer. 

 
TABLE 3: SUMMARY OF EARMARKED RESERVES 

Committee 
Opening 
Balance    

£000 

Forecast 
Use of 

Reserve 
£000 

Forecast 
Contribution 
to Reserve 

£000 

Closing 
Balance 

£000 

Environment, Climate Emergency 
and Transport 

1,345 -888 600 1,528 

 
3.16 Appendix 2 provides the full list of all earmarked reserves. 
 
 
 Capital Monitoring 
3.17 Capital budgets are the monies allocated for spend on providing or improving non-

current assets, which include land, buildings and equipment, which will be of use or 
benefit in providing services for more than one financial year. 

 
TABLE 4: 2022/23 Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee – 
Capital Budget & Forecast Outturn 
 
 
 

Page 169



 

 

Capital 
Programme 

2022/23   2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

Budget Forecast Variance   Budget Budget Budget Budget 

£000 £000 £000   £000 £000 £000 £000 

Buildings 900 740 160   0 0 0 0 

CCTV 79 79 0   0 0 0 0 

Climate 
Emergency 

0 125 -125   0 0 0 0 

Flood Prevention 11,406 11,696 -290   0 0 0 0 

Leisure 1,600 1,782 -182   0 0 0 0 

Parks 6,905 6,905 0   0 0 0 0 

Roads and 
Bridges 

3,594 9,344 -5,750   0 0 0 0 

Street Lighting 1,364 1,364 0   0 0 0 0 

Travel and 
Transport 

3,460 5,592 -2,132   100 0 0 0 

Tree Strategy 530 530 0   0 0 0 0 

 Total 29,838 38,157 -8,319   100 0 0 0 

 
 
3.18  Table 4 summarises the forecast expenditure against Capital Budgets.  A full 

breakdown of each Capital Scheme with details can be found in Appendix 3.  The 
adverse variance of £8.319m relates to Roads and Bridges and Travel and 
Transport.  These relate to increases in Combined Authority Transport, Traffic Signal 
Updates and Highway Maintenance. 

 

Page 170



 

 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 This is the Quarter 1 budget monitoring report that provides information on the 
forecast outturn for the Council for 2022/23. The Council has robust methods for 
reporting and forecasting budgets in place and alongside formal Quarterly reporting 
to Policy & Resources and Service Committees, the financial position is routinely 
reported at Directorate Management Team meetings and corporately at the Strategic 
Leadership Team (SLT). In the event of any early warning highlighting pressures and 
potential overspends, the SLT take collective responsibility to identify solutions to 
resolve these to ensure a balanced budget can be reported at the end of the year. 

 
 
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 The Council must set the budget in accordance with the provisions of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992 and approval of a balanced budget each year is a 
statutory responsibility of the Council. Sections 25 to 29 of the Local Government Act 
2003 impose duties on the Council in relation to how it sets and monitors its budget.  
These provisions require the Council to make prudent allowance for the risk and 
uncertainties in its budget and regularly monitor its finances during the year.  The 
legislation leaves discretion to the Council about the allowances to be made and 
action to be taken.     
 

5.2 The provisions of section 25, Local Government Act 2003 require that, when the 
Council is making the calculation of its budget requirement, it must have regard to 
the report of the chief finance (s.151) officer as to the robustness of the estimates 
made for the purposes of the calculations and the adequacy of the proposed 
financial reserves.  

 

5.3 It is essential, as a matter of prudence that the financial position continues to be 

closely monitored. In particular, Members must satisfy themselves that sufficient 

mechanisms are in place to ensure both that savings are delivered and that new 

expenditure is contained within the available resources. Accordingly, any proposals 

put forward must identify the realistic measures and mechanisms to produce those 

savings.  

 
6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS 
 
6.1 At this time, there are no additional resource implications as these have already 

been identified for the proposals agreed and submitted.  However, where the budget 
is unbalanced and further proposals are required, then there will be resource 
implications, and these will be addressed within the relevant business cases 
presented to the Committee. 

 
 
7.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
7.1 The Council’s ability to maintain a balanced budget for 2022/23 is dependent on a 

static financial position.  This is an impossible scenario due to estimated figures 

Page 171



 

 

being provided in the calculation for the 2022/23 budget, albeit the best estimates 
that were available at the time, plus any amount of internal and external factors that 
could impact on the budget position in year.  Examples of which are the significant 
emerging inflationary and cost of living pressures, new legislation, increased 
demand, loss of income, increased funding, decreased funding, inability to recruit to 
posts, ongoing impact of the pandemic etc 

 
7.2 A robust monitoring and management process for the 2022/23 budget is in place.  If 

at any time during the year an adverse position is forecast, remedial action must be 
agreed and implemented immediately to ensure the budget can be brought back to 
balanced position. 

 
7.3 The risk of this not being able to be achieved could mean that the Council does not 

have enough funding to offset its expenditure commitments for the year and 
therefore not be able report a balanced budget at the end of the year.  This could 
result in the Section 151 Officer issuing a Section 114 notice. 

 
7.4 A key risk to the Council’s financial plans is that funding and demand assumptions in 

particular can change as more information becomes available. Significant inflation 
and cost of living pressures have already impacted the quarter 1 forecast position. 
and the impact of these pressures will be reviewed and considered in the MTFP as 
part of routine financial management.  

 
 
8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  
 
8.1 Consultation has been carried out with the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) in arriving 

at the governance process for the 2022/23 budget monitoring process and the 
2022/23 budget setting process. This report will also be shared and reviewed by the 
Independent Panel. 

   
8.2 Since the budget was agreed at Full Council on 28 February, some proposals may 

have been the subject of further consultation with Members, Customer and 
Residents.  The details of these are included within the individual business cases or 
are the subject of separate reports to the Committee 
 
 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 

carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity. 

 
9.2 At this time, there are no further equality implications as these have already been 

identified for the proposals agreed and submitted.  However, where the budget is 
unbalanced and further proposals are required, then there may be equality 
implications associated with these, and these will be addressed within the relevant 
business cases presented to the Committee. 

 
 

Page 172



 

 

10.0  ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 This report has no direct environmental implications, however due regard is given as 

appropriate in respect of procurement and expenditure decision-making processes 
that contribute to the outturn position. 

 
 
11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS  
 
11.1  In year activity will have incorporated community wealth implications. Consideration 

would have taken account of related matters across headings such as the following:  
 

 Progressive Procurement and Social Value  
How we commission and procure goods and services. Encouraging 
contractors to deliver more benefits for the local area, such as good jobs, 
apprenticeship, training & skills opportunities, real living wage, minimising 
their environmental impact, and greater wellbeing. 

 

 More local & community ownership of the economy  
Supporting more cooperatives and community businesses.  
Enabling greater opportunities for local businesses.  
Building on the experience of partnership working with voluntary, community 
and faith groups during the pandemic to further develop this sector. 

 

 Decent and Fair Employment  
Paying all employees a fair and reasonable wage.  

 

 Making wealth work for local places 
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Sarah Cox 
  (Senior Finance Business Partner) 
  email:  sarahcox@wirral.gov.uk  
APPENDICES 
APPENDIX 1 – Progress on the delivery of the 2022-23 Saving Programme 
APPENDIX 2 – Earmarked Reserves 
APPENDIX 3 – Breakdown of Capital 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 
Policy and Resources Committee 

 
 13 July 2022 

 
Council 

 
28 February 2022 

 
Policy and Resources Committee 

 
15 February 2022 

Page 173



 

 

 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 
 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 
 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 
 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 
 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 
 
 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 
 
 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 
 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 
 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 
 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee 

 
22 October 2020 
 
 
3 December 2020 
 
 
1 February 2021 
 
 
16 March 2021 
 
 
14 June 2021 
 
 
 
7 September 2021 
 
 
 
15 November 2021 
 
 
20 January 2022 
 
 
1 March 2022 
 
 
20 June 2022 
 

Page 174



 

 Page 175



 

 

Appendix 1 - Progress on the delivery of the 2022-23 saving programme 
 
 
 

Saving Proposal Approved 
Saving 

Green Amber Red Mitigation Comment   Actual 
Savings 

Delivered 
to Date 

Neighbourhood 
Services 

                

Highways Operational 
Services - Income 
Exploration 

£0.030m £0.030m £0.000m £0.000m £0.000m On target to be achieved. No actual 
savings achieved to date, as due to 
income trends it will not be clear how 
much of this saving has been delivered 
until the end of the financial year and will 
be monitored monthly  

  £0.000m 

Fleet efficiencies in 
Transport - going 
green 

£0.020m £0.000m £0.020m £0.000m £0.020m This  saving will be achieved through 
appointing an independent expert to 
advise on fuel economy, vehicle choice 
and mileage reduction strategies.  There 
is a risk associated with this saving due to 
the cost of living increases which have 
impacted fuel bills. Mitigation to be 
achieved through opportunities that have 
arisen since April 2022 in relation to a 
review of the transport fleet and sale of 
vehicles which are no longer required.   

  £0.000m 

Capitalisation of 
Highways salaries  

£0.015m £0.015m £0.000m £0.000m £0.000m On target to be achieved. No actual 
savings achieved to date. Approximately 
£0.225m of costs have been identified to 
date relating to employees currently 
working on capital projects. 

  £0.005m 

 

P
age 176



 

 

 
 
 

Saving Proposal Approved 
Saving 

Green Amber Red Mitigation Comment   Actual 
Savings 

Delivered 
to Date 

Highways 
maintenance Contracts 

£0.025m £0.000m £0.025m £0.000m £0.025m This saving is flagged as "At Risk" as 
contract renegotiation is still being 
finalised and could be negatively 
impacted by inflation increases that were 
not foreseen when the saving was 
agreed. Mitigation to be achieved through 
opportunities that have arisen since April 
2022.  This includes part year vacant 
posts and a review of employee 
timesheets to establish whether some 
costs can be allocated to specific capital 
schemes. No actual savings achieved to 
date, as contracts will not be agreed until 
later in the year.   

  £0.000m 

Street Lighting Service 
Savings 

£0.050m £0.050m £0.00m  £0.000m £0.000m On target to be achieved. No actual 
savings achieved to date as this 
expenditure usually occurs in the winter 
months and relates to street light 
inspectors employed to check lights to 
ensure they are working correctly 

  £0.000m 

Car park maintenance 
1 year budget 
reduction 

£0.050m £0.050m £0.000m £0.000m £0.000m On target to be achieved but noting the 
ongoing risk of potential maintenance 
works if a Health and Safety issue is 
identified in year that was not foreseen at 
the time the savings was approved. 
Maintenance spend will be reduced this 
year as expenditure will only be incurred 
for essential works.   

  £0.000m 

P
age 177



 

 

 
 

Saving Proposal Approved 
Saving 

Green Amber Red Mitigation Comment   Actual 
Savings 

Delivered 
to Date 

Eco and Forest School 
Income 

£0.020m £0.000m £0.020m £0.000m £0.020m Saving is classified as "At Risk" as 
opportunities for income generation are 
still being finalised. Mitigation will be 
achieved through a current vacancy within 
the Forest Schools service whilst work 
continues to generate the income 
associated with this saving.  

  £0.000m 

Tree management 
Team Commercial 
Offer 

£0.025m £0.000m £0.025m £0.000m £0.025m Saving is classified as "At Risk" as due to 
the unforeseen departure of the Tree 
Manager, delays have been encountered 
to progress the saving meaning the 
service had to put temporary cover in to 
complete this project.  Mitigation will be 
achieved through a vacant Tree Manager 
post whilst work continues to generate the 
income associated with this saving. Work 
is commencing in July to explore options 
for income generation within this area 

  £0.000m 

 

P
age 178



 

 

Saving Proposal Approved 
Saving 

Green Amber Red Mitigation Comment   Actual 
Savings 

Delivered 
to Date 

Rent of Café - Royden £0.010m £0.010m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m This saving will not be achieved as rental 
income as this was not deemed viable 
given the recent review of the condition of 
the café. Refurbishment of the café is 
currently underway and will open from 
August as an in-house offer and is 
expected to generate the savings target of 
£0.010m this year.  

  £0.000m 

Income increase on 
allotments 

£0.050m £0.050m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m On target to be achieved. This saving is 
based on a price increase from £74 to 
£120 for a full plot and from £40 to £60 for 
a half plot. Customers have been notified 
of price changes. No actual savings 
achieved to date, as renewals are not due 
until October and no significant drop in 
non-renewals are expected 

  £0.000m 

Increase in charges for 
Waste and 
Environmental 
services. 

£0.462m £0.462m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m Garden waste prices have been increased 
from 01/04/22.  Garden Waste 
subscriptions are ahead of profile as at 
the end of May and are expected to 
achieve at least 40,000 subscribers by the 
end of July. No actual savings achieved to 
date, as residents are in the process of re 
subscribing to the garden waste service 
during the summer months.  

  £0.000m 

 

P
age 179



 

 

 

Saving Proposal Approved 
Saving 

Green Amber Red Mitigation Comment   Actual 
Savings 

Delivered 
to Date 

Removal of Vacancies 
in Environmental and 
Waste team 

£0.100m £0.100m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m Saving is fully achieved as straight 
reduction in the budget for vacant posts 
which have been deleted 

  £0.100m 

Suspension of Climate 
Emergency Initiatives 

£0.125m £0.125m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m Saving is fully achieved as straight 
reduction in the budget.  The team will 
use capital funding to meet additional 
requirements during the year 

  £0.125m 

Remodelling of Street 
Cleansing: Plus special 
events  

£0.214m £0.214m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m Saving is fully achieved as this relates to 
a removal of the permanent presence 
service and renegotiation of the contract 
with Biffa 

  £0.214m 

Review of overtime 
budget in Parks 

£0.015m £0.015m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m Saving is fully achieved as straight 
reduction in the budget to reflect reduced 
requirements 

  £0.015m 

Reduce grass cutting 
from 10 to 8 cuts 

£0.100m £0.100m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m Saving is fully achieved  as fewer 
seasonal staff have been recruited in line 
with the budget available 

  £0.100m 

Cease community 
firework displays 

£0.030m £0.030m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m Saving is fully achieved as straight 
reduction in the budget.  Firework 
displays will not take place this year 

  £0.030m 

 

P
age 180



 

 

 

Saving Proposal Approved 
Saving 

Green Amber Red Mitigation Comment   Actual 
Savings 

Delivered 
to Date 

Income Strategy - 
Cemeteries and 
crematorium service 

£0.053m £0.053m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m On target to be achieved. The saving is 
based upon price increases benchmarked 
against other Local Authorities and the 
price changes came into effect from April 
2022. No actual savings achieved to date, 
as due to income trends it will not be clear 
how much of this saving has been 
delivered until the end of the financial 
year. Income projections are currently on 
track and are being monitored monthly 

  £0.000m 

Fund ASB Post from 
PCC grant 

£0.050m £0.050m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m Saving is fully achieved as funding has 
been changed from revenue budget to 
PCC grant funding. 

  £0.050m 

Review Engagement 
Officer secondment 

£0.035m £0.035m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m Saving is fully achieved. Post is now 
vacant and has been deleted. 

  £0.035m 

Introduce Overnight 
Camper Van Parking 
Charge in New 
Brighton 

£0.035m £0.035m £0.000m 
  

£0.000m £0.000m Saving is expected to be fully achieved 
and scheme will be ready to commence 
from end of July. No actual savings 
achieved to date, as this scheme will be in 
place from the end of July 2022 which will 
enable income to be collected during the 
summer. 

  £0.000m 

 

P
age 181



 

 

 
 
 

Saving Proposal Approved 
Saving 

Green Amber Red Mitigation Comment   Actual 
Savings 

Delivered 
to Date 

Transport efficiencies £0.070m £0.040m £0.030m £0.000m £0.030m It was expected that savings would not be 
achieved in Quarter 1, due to consultation 
periods and the requirement for 
employees to work notice periods. 
Mitigation to be achieved through a 
review of the transport fleet and sale of 
vehicles which are no longer required.  
This will create one off income generation 
opportunities to assist in mitigating the 
saving this year. No actual savings 
achieved to date as employees 
associated with this saving are still in post 

  £0.000m 

Reduction in 
Community Patrol 
Service 

£0.150m £0.100m £0.050m £0.000m £0.050m It was expected that savings would not be 
achieved in Quarter 1, due to consultation 
periods and the requirement for 
employees to work notice periods. 
Mitigation to be achieved through one off 
use of remaining COVID-19 funding for 
staff who continued to work on COVID-19 
activities during Q1 Agreement as to what 
is available from remaining COMF 
(Contain Outbreak Management Fund) 
grant is still being finalised and will be 
reported at Q2.   

  £0.000m 

 Total Committee £1.734m £1.564m £0.17m £0.0m £0.17m     £0.674m 

P
age 182



 

 

Appendix 2 - Earmarked Reserves 2022-23 
Environment, Climate Emergency 
and Transport 

     

Reserve 
Opening 
Balance    

£000 

Use of 
Reserve 

£000 

Contribution 
to Reserve 

£000 

Closing 
Balance 

£000 

Health & Safety Flood 
Prevention 

455 -455   0 

Parks Tree 
Maintenance 

187 -187   0 

Environmental Health 300 0   300 

Climate Emergency 100 -100   0 

Litter Enforcement - 
development of 
initiatives 

49 0   49 

Weed Spraying : 
Mitigate against 
additional costs 

41 -41   0 

Birkenhead Park World 
Heritage Site Lottery 
Bid 

40 -40   0 

Coastal Protection 35 -35   0 

Storeton Quarry 30 -30   0 

Environmental Health 
F.S.A. Backlog 

28 0    28 

Trading Standards 25 0   25 

Hilbre Island – Legacy 21 0   21 

Health & Safety Armed 
Forces Welfare 
Pathway 

14 0   14 

BikeSafe 10 0   10 

Repairs & Maintenance 
upgrades on Public 
Conveniences 

8 0   8 

LAMPS to Concerto 
system replacement 

2 0   2 

Waste Levy 0   600 600 

Total 1,345 -888 600 1,057 

 

Page 183



 

 

Appendix 3 – Breakdown of Capital Programme 
 

Area Scheme 

  
Budget 
2022/23 

£000 

Forecast 
2022/23  

£000 

  
Variance 
2022/23 

£000 

  
Budget 
2023/24 

£000 

  
Budget 
2024/25 

£000 

  
Budget 
2025/26 

£000 

Buildings 
Energy 
efficient 
buildings 

900 740 160 0 0 0 

CCTV 

Removal of 
remaining 
analogue 
CCTV circuits-
21-22 

79 79 0 0 0 0 

Climate 
Emergency 

Climate 
Emergency 
Budget 

0 125 -125 0 0 0 

Flood 
Prevention 

Coastal 
Defence - 
Meols 
Feasibility 
Study 

100 100 0 0 0 0 

  

Connecting 
Wirral Waters: 
Detailed 
Design 

610 610 0 0 0 0 

  

Coronation 
Park 
Sustainable 
Drainage 

222 222 0 0 0 0 

  
Moreton 
Sandbrook 
Drainage 

433 433 0 0 0 0 

  
Quick Win 
Levy 16-17 

45 45 0 0 0 0 

  

SUD - 
Leasowe to 
Seacombe 
Corridor 

931 931 0 0 0 0 

  
Surface Water 
Management 
Scheme 

83 83 0 0 0 0 

  

Wallasey 
Embankment 
Toe 
Reinforcement 

100 100 0 0 0 0 

  
West Kirby 
Flood 
alleviation 

8,802 9,092 -290 0 0 0 

Page 184



 

 

  
Woodchurch 
Rd Drainage 

80 80 0 0 0 0 

Leisure 
Woodchurch 
Sports 
Pavillion 

1,600 1,782 -182 0 0 0 

Parks 
Allotment 
Sites 
Expansion 

125 125 0 0 0 0 

  

Arrowe 
Country Park - 
New Machine 
Shed & Wash 
Bay 

121 121 0 0 0 0 

  

Arrowe 
Country Park 
Depot: Re-
Surfacing, 
Material Bays 
& Electronic 
Entrance 
Barrier 

38 38 0 0 0 0 

  

Beach 
Cleaning - 
Replacement 
of equipment 

94 94 0 0 0 0 

  
Birkenhead 
Park Depot 
Resurfacing 

30 30 0 0 0 0 

  
Birkenhead 
Park Event 
Infrastructure 

164 164 0 0 0 0 

  

Birkenhead 
Park World 
Heritage 
Project Team 

85 85 0 0 0 0 

  

Cemetery 
Extension & 
Improvements 
(Frankby) 

142 142 0 0 0 0 

  
Landican 
Chapels 

119 119 0 0 0 0 

  

New Ferry 
Rangers 
Community 
Clubhouse 

1,042 1,042 0 0 0 0 

  
Parks and 
Countryside 
DDA 

447 447 0 0 0 0 

  
Parks 
Machinery 

2,635 2,635 0 0 0 0 

Page 185



 

 

  
Parks 
Vehicles 

1,071 1,071 0 0 0 0 

  
Play Area 
Improvements 

327 327 0 0 0 0 

  
Plymyard 
Cemetery 
Roadways 

75 75 0 0 0 0 

  
Plymyard 
Playing Field 

147 147 0 0 0 0 

  
Wirral Country 
Park Car Park 
Surfacing 

63 63 0 0 0 0 

  
Wirral Way 
Widening 

180 180 0 0 0 0 

Roads and 
Bridges 

Aids to 
Navigation 

40 40 0 0 0 0 

  
Bridges 
excluding 
Dock Bridge 

580 580 0 0 0 0 

  
Dock Bridges 
replacement 

500 210 290 0 0 0 

  
Highway 
Maintenance 

482 6,522 -6,040 0 0 0 

  

Highways 
Asset 
Management 
System - 
procurement 
of integrated 
asset 
management 
system 

49 49 0 0 0 0 

  

Key Route 
Network 
(LGF3) - 
Operate Key 
Roads / 
Routes 
Efficiently 

166 166 0 0 0 0 

  

Lyndale Ave 
Parking & 
Safety 
Measures 

125 125 0 0 0 0 

  

Major 
Infrastructure 
Development 
& Strategic 
Transport 
Forward 
Planning - 

333 333 0 0 0 0 

Page 186



 

 

Traffic 
Management 

  
Modernisation 
of CCTV 
System 

120 120 0 0 0 0 

  
Northbank 
West Cycle 
Scheme 

1 1 0 0 0 0 

  

Onstreet 
Residential 
Chargepoint 
Scheme 

102 102 0 0 0 0 

  
TAG Bus 
Case-A41 
Corridor North 

192 192 0 0 0 0 

  
TAG Bus 
Case-Wirral 
Waters outline 

179 179 0 0 0 0 

  

Tower Road 
National 
Productivity 
Investment 
Fund (NPIF) - 
ease 
congestion / 
upgrade 
national or 
local networks 

393 393 0 0 0 0 

  
Town Link 
Viaduct 

332 332 0 0 0 0 

Street 
Lighting 

Street Lighting 
Column - 
Replacement 
or Upgrade 

1,070 1,070 0 0 0 0 

  

Street Lighting 
-Illuminated 
Lighting and 
Signage 

294 294 0 0 0 0 

Travel and 
Transport 

Active Travel 
Tranche 1 

86 86 0 0 0 0 

  
Active Travel 
Tranche 2 

1,597 1,597 0 0 0 0 

  

Combined 
Authority 
Transport 
Plan (CATP) 

1,529 2,679 -1,150 100 0 0 

  
Depot Welfare 
Improvements 

232 232 0 0 0 0 

  STEP 16 16 0 0 0 0 

  Traffic Signal 0 982 -982 0 0 0 

Page 187



 

 

LED Upgrade 

Tree 
Strategy 

Tree Strategy 121 121 0 0 0 0 

  
Urban Tree 
Challenge 
Fund 

409 409 0 0 0 0 

Total   29,838 38,157 -8,319 100 0 0 

 
 

Page 188



 

 

 

  

 

ENVIRONMENT CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

THURSDAY 10 OCTOBER 2022 

 

REPORT TITLE: ENVIRONMENT CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND 

TRANSPORT COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE 

 
 
REPORT SUMMARY 
 
The Environment Climate Emergency and Transport Committee, in co-operation with the 
other Policy and Service Committees, is responsible for proposing and delivering an annual 
committee work programme. This work programme should align with the corporate priorities 
of the Council, in particular the delivery of the key decisions which are within the remit of 
the Committee.    
It is envisaged that the work programme will be formed from a combination of key 
decisions, standing items and requested officer reports. This report provides the Committee 
with an opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the municipal year. The 
work programme for the Environment Climate Emergency and Transport Committee is 
attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
  
The Environment Climate Emergency and Transport Committee is recommended to note 
and comment on the proposed Environment Climate Emergency and Transport Committee 
work programme for the remainder of the 2022/23 municipal year. 
 

 
 

Page 189

Agenda Item 10



 

 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

 
1.1 To ensure Members of the Environment Climate Emergency and Transport 

Committee have the opportunity to contribute to the delivery of the annual work 
programme. 
 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

2.1 A number of workplan formats were explored, with the current framework open to 
amendment to match the requirements of the Committee. 
 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

3.1 3.1 The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its 
partners. The programme will be informed by:  

 

            The Council Plan  

  The Council’s transformation programme  

  The Council’s Forward Plan  

            Service performance information  

  Risk management information  

  Public or service user feedback  

  Referrals from Council 

 
Terms of Reference  

  
The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee has responsibility 
for parks and open spaces, highways management and infrastructure, coastal 
protection and flood defence and environment and waste matters. It is the 
Committee that leads on behalf of the Council in responding to and matters 
concerning the Climate Emergency. The Committee is also responsible for the 
overview and scrutiny of flood risk management and coastal erosion management 
functions. 
 
The Committee is charged by full Council to undertake responsibility for the Council’s 
role and functions:- 
(a) in co-ordinating the response to cross-cutting sustainability issues such as 

reducing carbon emissions, air quality issues, climate change response, 
improving resource efficiency and developing sustainable energy;   

(b) in relation to all highways matters and as highway authority, street authority, 
bridge authority, including but not limited to public open spaces, street furniture 
on the highway and open spaces or parts of open spaces immediately adjacent 
to the highway; 

(c) in relation to traffic management and transport and as traffic authority, including 
but not limited to public passenger transport and the co-ordination of transport for 
service users, traffic orders and rights of way issues; 

Page 190



 

 

(d) in relation to parking, including on and off-street parking and civil parking 
enforcement;  

(e) in respect of parks, open spaces, countryside management, allotments, 
playgrounds and cemeteries, including arboricultural, gardening and warden 
services; 

(f) in relation to the management of authorised and unauthorised sites and 
encampments, this to include all activities necessary or incidental to the 
Council’s performance of its responsibilities in relation to Gypsies, Roma and 
Travellers; 

(g) in relation to waste and as waste collection authority, litter authority, including but 
not limited to dealing with litter, street cleansing, abandoned vehicles and dog 
fouling, and the Council’s relationship with Merseyside Recycling & Waste 
Authority (MRWA) as the joint waste disposal authority;  

(h) as coast protection authority and lead local flood authority;  
(i) in respect of emergency planning and community resilience (infrastructure and 

contract services); 
(j) providing a view of performance, budget monitoring and risk management in 

relation to the Committee’s functions; and 
(k) undertaking the development and implementation of policy in relation to the 

Committee’s functions, incorporating the assessment of outcomes, review of 
effectiveness and formulation of recommendations to the Council, partners and 
other bodies, which shall include any decision relating to the above functions. 

(l) in respect of Section 9JB of the Local Government Act 2000, the functions to review 
and scrutinise the exercise by risk management authorities of flood risk management 
and of coastal erosion management functions which may affect the local authority’s 
area. 

 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 This report is for information and planning purposes only, therefore there are no 
direct financial implication arising. However, there may be financial implications 
arising as a result of work programme items. 

 
5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. However, there may be 

legal implications arising as a result of work programme items. 
 
6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS 
 
6.1 There are no direct implications to Staffing, ICT or Assets. 
 
7.0 RELEVANT RISKS  
 
7.1 The Committee’s ability to undertake its responsibility to provide strategic direction to 

the operation of the Council, make decisions on policies, co-ordinate spend, and 
maintain a strategic overview of outcomes, performance, risk management and 
budgets may be compromised if it does not have the opportunity to plan and 
regularly review its work across the municipal year. 
 

Page 191



 

 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION  
 
8.1 Not applicable. 

 
9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 

carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity. 

 
 This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality 

 implications. 
 
10.0  ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 This report is for information to Members and there are no direct environment and 

climate implications. 
 
11.0  COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS 

 
11.1 This report is for information to Members and there are no direct community wealth 

implications. 
 
 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: Anna Perrett 
  telephone:  0151 691 8564 
  email: annaperret@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1: Environment Climate Emergency and Transport Committee Work Plan 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Wirral Council Constitution 
Forward Plan 
The Council’s transformation programme 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 192



 

 

ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND TRANSPORT 

COMMITTEE 

WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 

 

Contact Officer/s: 

 

Anna Perrett 

 

KEY DECISIONS – On forward plan to be scheduled Nov 2022 – February 2023 

Item 

 
Lead Departmental Officer 

Parking Strategy Julie Barnes 

Tender Acceptance 

and Design Approval 

of Sustainable Urban 

Development (SUD) 

Green Travel Corridor 

Phase 5 - Beaufort 

Road / Wallasey 

Bridge Road (ODN) 

Simon Fox 

Pollinators Strategy Mike Cockburn 

20mph Zones - 

Consideration of 

Objections and 

Officers' Responses 

Simon Fox 

Winter Maintenance 

Service Plan 2022/23 

Simon Fox 

Weed Control Mike Cockburn 

West Kirby Marine 

Lake 

Colin Clayton 

Active Travel Julie Barnes 

 

Page 193



 

 

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS – WAITING TO BE SCHEDULED  

Item Approximate timescale  Lead Departmental 

Officer   

Road Safety Update TBC Simon Fox 

Car Parking Options TBC Simon Fox 

Allotment Update TBC Mike Cockburn 

Flood Risk Update TBC Neil Thomas 

  

STANDING ITEMS AND MONITORING REPORTS   

Item Reporting Frequency   Lead Departmental 
Officer   

Budget Monitoring  Every Cycle Sarah Cox 

Performance dashboard Commencing July 2022 Nicki Butterworth 

Carbon Budget 
Performance Report 

Annually in June Andrew Snow 

 

WORK PROGRAMME ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE COMMITTEE  

Item Format Timescale  Lead 

Officer   

Progress  

Working Groups/ Sub Committees 

 

Car Parking Charges  Working Group Nov 2020 Simon Fox Completed 

Road Safety  Working Group Jan-Feb 

2021 

Simon Fox Complete  

Hoylake Beach  Working Group Feb 2021  Colin 

Clayton/Neil 

Thomas 

Completed 

Climate Emergency  Working Group December 

2020 

Mike 

Cockburn 

Completed 

Active Travel Working group December 

2021 

Julie Barnes Ongoing 

Page 194



Roadside Maintenance 

Working group 

Working Group 2022 Mike 

Cockburn 

TBC 

Tree Maintenance Working 

Group 

Working group 2022 Mike 

Cockburn 

TBC 

Task and Finish work 

Allotment provision Task & 

Finish 

Workshop and 

Report 

October 

2020 

Alex 

Davidson 

Complete 

Referral From Council 

Motion - Protecting 

Residents from Flood Risks 

TBC    

Motion – Equal Pavement 

Pledge 

TBC    

 

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee – Terms of 
Reference 
 
The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee has responsibility 
for parks and open spaces, highways management and infrastructure, coastal 
protection and flood defence and environment and waste matters. It is the 
Committee that leads on behalf of the Council in responding to and matters 
concerning the Climate Emergency. The Committee is also responsible for the 
overview and scrutiny of flood risk management and coastal erosion management 
functions. 
 
The Committee is charged by full Council to undertake responsibility for the Council’s 
role and functions:- 

(a) in co-ordinating the response to cross-cutting sustainability issues such as 
reducing carbon emissions, air quality issues, climate change response, 
improving resource efficiency and developing sustainable energy;   

(b) in relation to all highways matters and as highway authority, street authority, 
bridge authority, including but not limited to public open spaces, street furniture 
on the highway and open spaces or parts of open spaces immediately adjacent 
to the highway; 

(c) in relation to traffic management and transport and as traffic authority, including 
but not limited to public passenger transport and the co-ordination of transport 
for service users, traffic orders and rights of way issues; 

(d) in relation to parking, including on and off-street parking and civil parking 
enforcement;  

(e) in respect of parks, open spaces, countryside management, allotments, 
playgrounds and cemeteries, including arboricultural, gardening and warden 
services; 

(f) in relation to the management of authorised and unauthorised sites and 
encampments, this to include all activities necessary or incidental to the 
Council’s performance of its responsibilities in relation to Gypsies, Roma and 
Travellers; 

(g) in relation to waste and as waste collection authority, litter authority, including but 
not limited to dealing with litter, street cleansing, abandoned vehicles and dog 
fouling, and the Council’s relationship with Merseyside Recycling & Waste 
Authority (MRWA) as the joint waste disposal authority;  

(h) as coast protection authority and lead local flood authority;  
(i) in respect of emergency planning and community resilience (infrastructure and 

contract services); 
(j) providing a view of performance, budget monitoring and risk management in 

relation to the Committee’s functions; and 
(k) undertaking the development and implementation of policy in relation to the 

Committee’s functions, incorporating the assessment of outcomes, review of 
effectiveness and formulation of recommendations to the Council, partners and 
other bodies, which shall include any decision relating to the above functions. 

(l) in respect of Section 9JB of the Local Government Act 2000, the functions to 
review and scrutinise the exercise by risk management authorities of flood risk 
management and of coastal erosion management functions which may affect the 
local authority’s area. 

Page 197

Agenda Annex



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Development Funding For Transport Pipeline Birkenhead Central Gateway
	7 Future High Streets Fund Movement Schemes
	Appendix 1 FHSF (EXEMPT)
	Appendix 2 Conway St & Europa Boulevard - RIBA 1&2
	Appendix 3 Charing Cross & Grange Rd - RIBA 1&2
	Charing Cross & Grange Road, Birkenhead
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Slide Number 29
	Slide Number 30
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	Slide Number 33
	Slide Number 34
	Slide Number 35
	Slide Number 36
	Slide Number 37
	Slide Number 38
	Slide Number 39
	Slide Number 40
	Slide Number 41
	Slide Number 42
	Slide Number 43
	Slide Number 44
	Slide Number 45
	Slide Number 46
	Slide Number 47
	Slide Number 48
	Slide Number 49
	Slide Number 50
	Slide Number 51
	Slide Number 52
	Slide Number 53
	Slide Number 54
	Slide Number 55
	Slide Number 56
	Slide Number 57
	Slide Number 58
	Slide Number 59
	Slide Number 60
	Slide Number 61
	Slide Number 62
	Slide Number 63
	Slide Number 64
	Slide Number 65
	Slide Number 66
	Slide Number 67


	8 Active Travel Fund Tranche 2 - Bayswater Road & Leasowe Road
	Appendix 1 - DC-0692-100
	Appendix 1 DC-0676-100
	Appendix 2 - Bayswater

	9 2022-23 Budget Monitoring Quarter 1
	10 Work Programme Update
	Appendix 1 - Work Programme

	 Terms of Reference

